
 

 

 
At: Gadeirydd ac Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor 

Craffu Perfformiad 
Dyddiad: 

 
21 Tachwedd 2024 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712554 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PERFFORMIAD, DYDD IAU, 
28 TACHWEDD 2024 am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN 
A THRWY GYNHADLEDD FIDEO. 
 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Swyddog Monitro 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy’n rhagfarnu 
mewn unrhyw fusnes a nodwyd i’w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 
 

 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 

 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF  (Tudalennau 7 - 18) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd ar 26 
Medi 2024 (copi ynghlwm). 
 

10:05am – 10:10am 
 

5 ADRODDIAD AR Y GOFRESTR RISGIAU CORFFORAETHOL  
(Tudalennau 19 - 110) 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

 

 Ystyried adroddiad ar y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol gan y Swyddog 
Cynllunio Strategol a Pherfformiad sy’n adolygu’r risgiau sy’n wynebu’r 
Cyngor a datganiad parodrwydd y Cyngor i dderbyn risg (copi’n amgaeedig). 
 

10:10am – 11:00am 
 

EGWYL 11:00am - 11:10am 
 
6 CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL  (Tudalennau 111 - 192) 

 Ystyried adroddiad ar Ddiweddariad Perfformiad y Cynllun Corfforaethol: 
Ebrill i Fedi 2024 i drafod perfformiad y Cyngor a’r camau gwella (copi’n 
amgaeedig). 
 

11:10am – 12:00pm 
 

7 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU  (Tudalennau 193 - 220) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi ynghlwm) sy’n ceisio 
adolygiad o raglen waith y Pwyllgor ac yn cyflwyno’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf 
i’r aelodau am faterion perthnasol. 
 

12:00pm – 12:20pm 
 

8 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR   

 Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf gan gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a 
Grwpiau amrywiol y Cyngor. 
 

 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Hugh Carson Irving 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Gareth Sandilands (Is-
Gadeirydd) 

Ellie Chard 
Bobby Feeley 
Martyn Hogg 
Carol Holliday 
 

Alan Hughes 
Paul Keddie 
Terry Mendies 
Andrea Tomlin 
 

 
 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 



 

 

Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais ar gyfer 
caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y cwmni sydd wedi gwneud 
cais am gymorth ariannol'. Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PERFFORMIAD 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, 
Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun, a thrwy gynhadledd fideo ddydd Iau, 26 Medi 2024 am 10.00am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Ellie Chard, Bobby Feeley, Martyn Hogg, Carol Holliday, Hugh Irving 
(Cadeirydd), Paul Keddie, Terry Mendies, Gareth Sandilands (Is-gadeirydd) ac 
Andrea Tomlin ynghyd â Colette Owen (Aelod Addysg Cyfetholedig). 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 

Yr Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Phobl Ifanc, Diane King ac Aelod Arweiniol y 
Gymraeg, Diwylliant a Threftadaeth, Emrys Wynne ar wahoddiad y Pwyllgor. 
 

Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Llywodraethu a Busnes (GW), Pennaeth Addysg (GD), 

Swyddog Cynhwysiant – Gweithredu Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (JE), Prif Reolwyr 

Addysg (JB a RT) a Phenaethiaid Ysgol Pen Morfa (SD) ac Ysgol Uwchradd Dinbych 

(GW), Arweinydd Tîm Gwaith Cymdeithasol Addysg / Swyddog Diogelu (WW), Swyddog 

Datblygu Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg (MLlJ), Cydlynydd Craffu (RhE), 

Gweinyddwyr Pwyllgor (RhT-J Cofnodion) a Gweddarlledu (ED). 

 

Cynrychiolwyr / ymgynghorwyr GwE – Jacqueline Chan (Sector Cynradd) a Mair Herbert 

(Sector Uwchradd) 

 
 

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
 
Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd Alan Hughes a gan Neil 
Roberts (Aelod Addysg Cyfetholedig). 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 
 
Datganodd yr aelodau canlynol gysylltiad personol ag eitemau 5, 6, 7 ac 8 ar y 
rhaglen: 
 
Y Cynghorydd Ellie Chard – Llywodraethwr AALl yn Ysgol Tir Morfa a 
Llywodraethwr Cyngor Tref/Cymuned yn Ysgol Christchurch 
Y Cynghorydd Martyn Hogg – Rhiant-lywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gynradd Wirfoddol 
Llanelwy 
Y Cynghorydd Carol Holliday – Llywodraethwr Cyngor Tref/Cymuned yn Ysgol 
Penmorfa ac Ysgol Clawdd Offa 
Y Cynghorydd Gareth Sandilands – Llywodraethwr AALl yn Ysgol Clawdd Offa 
Y Cynghorydd Andrea Tomlin – gan fod perthynas agos ar y staff addysgu yn un o 
ysgolion uwchradd y sir. Hefyd, roedd yn adnabod aelod o Dîm Gwaith 
Cymdeithasol Addysg y Cyngor yn dda (eitem 6).   
 

3 MATERION BRYS Y CYTUNWYD ARNYNT GAN Y CADEIRYDD 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 4



 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw eitemau brys gyda’r Cadeirydd na’r Cydlynydd Craffu cyn 
dechrau’r cyfarfod. 
 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF 
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd ar 18 
Gorffennaf 2024.     
 
Penderfynwyd: y dylid cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu 
Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Gorffennaf 2024 fel cofnod gwir a chywir o’r 
gweithrediadau.  
 
Materion yn codi: 
 
Tudalennau 11 – 12 ‘Adroddiad Diwedd Blwyddyn Cefndy 2023/24’: holodd yr 
aelodau a oedd y fenter wedi newid ei henw o Fentrau Cefndy i Cefndy ac a oedd 
ymweliadau’r cynghorwyr sir â’r safle gweithgynhyrchu wedi cael eu trefnu.    
Dywedodd y Cydlynydd Craffu mai enw’r fenter ar y wefan oedd ‘Gofal Iechyd a 
Gweithgynhyrchu Cefndy’. Byddai tri dyddiad posibl yn ystod mis Tachwedd yn cael 
eu hanfon at  gynghorwyr cyn bo hir fel y gallant drefnu ymweliad â’r safle 
gweithgynhyrchu. 
 

5 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AR DRAWSNEWID ANGHENION DYSGU 
YCHWANEGOL  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Phobl Ifanc, ynghyd â’r Pennaeth 
Addysg, adroddiad ar y Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf ar Drawsnewid Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol (ADY) Medi 2024 (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw). Nod yr adroddiad yw 
rhoi diweddariad pellach ar y cynnydd a wnaed i sicrhau bod yr Awdurdod Lleol ac 
ysgolion yn bodloni eu gofynion statudol o dan Ddeddf Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol a’r Tribiwnlys Addysg (Cymru) 2018.   
  
Roedd y diweddariad yn canolbwyntio ar gynnydd y gwaith o roi diwygiadau ADY 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar waith, gyda’r nod o wella cefnogaeth i blant a phobl ifanc ag 
anawsterau dysgu. Yn ystod y flwyddyn ddiwethaf, trosglwyddodd tîm addysg Sir 
Ddinbych yn llwyddiannus o’r hen system Anghenion Addysg Arbennig (AAA) i’r 
fframwaith ADY newydd. Roedd hynny’n cynnwys cyflwyno Cynlluniau Datblygu 
Unigol (CDU) oedd yn disodli’r datganiadau o AAA. Roedd y Cynlluniau Datblygu 
Unigol yn sicrhau dull mwy personol o gefnogi dysgwyr, oedd yn cyd-fynd â’r 
gofynion deddfwriaethol newydd a amlinellir yn Neddf Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol a’r Tribiwnlys Addysg (Cymru) 2018. 
 
Dywedodd y swyddogion fod yr holl staff oedd yn cefnogi myfyrwyr ag ADY wedi 
cael hyfforddiant cynhwysfawr. Mae’r hyfforddiant wedi eu paratoi i ymdrin â’r 
prosesau newydd a sicrhau y gallant gyd-weithio’n effeithiol gydag ysgolion, rhieni a 
budd-ddeiliaid eraill. Hefyd, ymdrechwyd i wella cydweithrediad amlasiantaeth, yn 
enwedig gydag iechyd a gwasanaethau cymdeithasol, i ddarparu dull mwy cyfannol 
o gefnogi dysgwyr.  
  

Tudalen 8



Tynnodd y diweddariad sylw at sawl her a wynebwyd yn ystod y trawsnewid, yn 
enwedig o ran dyrannu adnoddau a bodloni’r galw cynyddol am asesiadau. Er hyn, 
roedd y swyddogion wedi bodloni terfynau amser hanfodol a osodwyd gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru i roi’r system newydd ar waith. Dywedodd y Pennaeth Addysg 
fod y gwasanaeth yn monitro ac yn craffu’n barhaus ar gydymffurfiaeth ysgolion â 
gofynion y Ddeddf, fel yr oedd Estyn yn ei wneud. Ers y pandemig, roedd bron i 
hanner ysgolion y wlad wedi cael eu harolygu gan Estyn, ac o’r 26 a arolygwyd, dim 
ond un oedd wedi cael argymhelliad yn ymwneud â gwella darpariaeth 
gwasanaethau ADY. 
  
Gan ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau, fe wnaeth yr Aelod Arweiniol, y swyddogion a’r 
Pennaeth Cynradd:  
  

 gadarnhau bod cynllun cyfathrebu cadarn ar waith i roi gwybod i rieni am y 
gofynion a roddwyd ar awdurdodau addysg lleol (AALl) ac ysgolion gan 
Ddeddf 2018 a sut oedd yr AALl ac ysgolion yn cynnig cyflawni’r 
dyletswyddau hynny. Roedd hyn yn helpu i reoli disgwyliadau. Roedd yr holl 
fanylion a’r wybodaeth am y gwaith a wnaed ar gael ar wefan y Cyngor.  
Roedd llawer o gyfathrebu rhwng ysgolion lleol hefyd, oedd yn helpu i rannu 
gwersi a ddysgwyd, arfer gorau ac ati. Roedd hyn yn ychwanegol at waith 
rhanbarthol a chenedlaethol i rannu arfer gorau a chefnogi dull cyson ar 
gyfer y broses drawsnewid. Roedd yr holl ddeialog agored yn gwneud y 
broses rywfaint yn haws.   

 er bod cyllid ar gael ar hyn o bryd tan mis Awst 2025 ar gyfer y 2 swydd 
athrawon ymgynghorol ADY, roedd y sefyllfa ariannol yn anodd i’r Cyngor 
cyfan a bydd angen gwneud penderfyniadau anodd o ran y cyllid yn y 
flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. Roedd y galw am gefnogaeth ADY ar gynnydd, ond 
roedd yn rhaid i’r gwasanaeth flaenoriaethu’r holl anghenion addysgol a 
darparu ei wasanaethau o fewn y gyllideb oedd ar gael iddo.  

 cadarnhau bod y tîm addysg yn defnyddio dull amlddisgyblaethol i fodloni 
anghenion pob unigolyn. Ychwanegodd y Swyddog Cynhwysiant - 
Gweithredu ADY bod perthnasoedd gwaith agos gyda’r bwrdd iechyd a 
gwasanaethau plant i sicrhau bod anghenion yr unigolyn yn cael eu bodloni 
a phan fo’n bosibl, yn cael eu teilwra’n briodol i gefnogi eu hanghenion 
unigryw.  

 cytuno ag aelodau bod y cyfyngiadau ar y gyllideb a’r prinder staff ar draws 
pob sector yn her barhaus, yn enwedig wrth recriwtio staff arbenigol. Fodd 
bynnag, roedd gan bob ysgol Gydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol 
oedd yn gweithio gyda’r ysgol i liniaru’r heriau oedd yn codi. Roedd 
Cydlynydd pob ysgol yn gweithio’n agos gyda’i gilydd yn eu clwstwr i 
gefnogi’r naill a’r llall, rhannu profiadau ac arfer gorau. Dangosodd Pennaeth 
Ysgol Penmorfa sut oedd yr ysgol yn wynebu heriau ar hyn o bryd gan fod 
eu Cydlynydd ADY wedi gadael yn ddiweddar. Yn y cyfamser, roedd y 
Dirprwy Bennaeth a hithau’n gwneud y gwaith ond roeddent yn hynod 
ddiolchgar am gefnogaeth a chyngor yr AALl pan oeddent ei angen.   

 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl: 
 

Tudalen 9



Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod a chan gydnabod yr heriau 
lleol a chenedlaethol i fodloni gofynion statudol Deddf Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol a Thribiwnlys Addysg (Cymru) 2018 – 
 

(i) llongyfarch yr holl fudd-ddeiliaid a chymeradwyo’r gwaith a wnaed hyd 
yma i ddarparu’r gwaith trawsnewid sydd ei angen i gydymffurfio â’r 
dyletswyddau dan y Ddeddf; a 

(ii) gofyn am i adroddiad cynnydd arall gael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor mewn 
deuddeg mis pan fydd disgwyl i bob ysgol a’r Awdurdod Addysg Lleol 
fod yn cydymffurfio’n llawn â’r dyletswyddau dan y Ddeddf.  

 
6 HYRWYDDO PRESENOLDEB YN YR YSGOL AC YMGYSYLLTIAD MEWN 

ADDYSG 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Phobl Ifanc, ynghyd â’r Pennaeth 
Addysg, adroddiad ar Hyrwyddo Presenoldeb yn yr Ysgol ac Ymgysylltiad Mewn 
Addysg (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw). Roedd yr Arweinydd Tîm / Swyddog Diogelu 
Gwaith Cymdeithasol Addysg, y Prif Reolwyr Addysg a Phennaeth Ysgol Uwchradd 
Dinbych hefyd yn bresennol ar gyfer y drafodaeth. Mae’r adroddiad yn cyflwyno’r 
sefyllfa bresennol o ran presenoldeb ysgol ac ymgysylltiad mewn addysg a’r broses 
a ddefnyddir i ymdrin â materion pan fo pryder o ran lefel ymgysylltu disgybl unigol 
gyda’u haddysg. Roedd hefyd yn rhoi gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor am y mesurau a 
ddefnyddir i gefnogi disgyblion diamddiffyn i ailgysylltu â’u haddysg. Roedd hefyd 
yn rhoi dealltwriaeth o’r cyd-destun rhanbarthol a chenedlaethol i ymdrin â’r pryder 
yn genedlaethol. Roedd presenoldeb yn yr ysgol yn flaenoriaeth genedlaethol ac yn 
un o flaenoriaethau Estyn hefyd.   
  
Dywedodd swyddogion fod cyfraddau presenoldeb ysgolion ym mlwyddyn ysgol 
2018/19 cyn y pandemig ar gyfer ysgolion cynradd yn 94.8% ac ysgolion uwchradd 
yn 93.7%. Yn y flwyddyn academaidd Medi 2023 i Fehefin 2024, roedd cyfartaledd 
presenoldeb cyfunol ar gyfer ysgolion cynradd / uwchradd yn 90.6%. Mae hyn wedi 
cynyddu o 89.2% dros yr un cyfnod yn 2022/23 ar draws Cymru. Yn Sir Ddinbych, 
roedd cyfanswm ysgolion cynradd / uwchradd gyda’i gilydd ar gyfer blwyddyn 
academaidd 2023 / 2024 yn 89.9 %, sy’n cyfateb i 0.7 % yn llai na chyfartaledd 
Cymru. Yn genedlaethol, bu i 10.3 % o ddisgyblion gyrraedd y trothwy absenoldeb 
cyson o 10% o sesiynau wedi’u methu ar gyfer y flwyddyn academaidd, sydd 
unwaith eto’n welliant o 12.9% dros yr un cyfnod yn 2022/23. Roedd ffigwr Sir 
Ddinbych yn 15.2% dros yr un cyfnod yn 2022/23. 
  
Cafodd yr aelodau wybod bod Cyngor Sir Ddinbych wedi cael cyllid ychwanegol 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru trwy’r Grant Addysg Awdurdod Lleol i ymdrin ag addysg ac 
ysgolion a’u cefnogi. Roedd y Gwasanaethau Addysg yn parhau i ddatblygu 
cysylltiadau cymunedol cydlynol ar draws yr awdurdod i geisio ymdrin â’r duedd 
hon a chanolbwyntio ar berthyn cymunedol a mynediad at wasanaethau. Nod y dull 
hwn yw sicrhau bod gan blant fynediad at eu hawl i addysg llawn amser ond hefyd 
yn cael mynediad at wasanaethau sy’n ehangach na dim ond addysg yn unig. Fel 
rhan o hyn, roedd y gwasanaeth wedi datblygu strategaeth ymgysylltu â disgyblion 
sy’n defnyddio’r gwasanaethau sy’n cefnogi’r rhaglen hon ac yn gosod cyfeiriad 
strategol clir ar gyfer y gwasanaeth. 
 

Tudalen 10



Gan ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau, fe wnaeth yr Aelod Arweiniol y swyddogion a’r 
Pennaeth:  
 

 egluro bod y polisi “amserlen lai” mewn addysg yn cyfeirio at sefyllfaoedd 
pan fo ysgolion neu leoliadau addysg yn lleihau nifer yr oriau neu ddyddiau y 
mae plentyn neu unigolyn ifanc yn yr ysgol, fel arfer oherwydd anghenion 
penodol neu broblemau ymddygiad. Weithiau roedd angen hyn i ymdrin â 
heriau disgyblion, a byddai’r amserlen lai ond yn cael ei defnyddio fel ateb 
tymor byr, dros dro i helpu disgybl ailintegreiddio i addysg llawn amser. Nid 
oedd Llywodraeth Cymru yn cymeradwyo defnyddio oriau llai yn y tymor hir 
neu’n barhaol. Y nod oedd cefnogi’r plentyn wrth ymdrin â’r problemau 
sylfaenol, megis heriau gydag ymddygiad, pryder, problemau iechyd neu 
anghenion addysgol arbennig. 

 rhoi sicrwydd na fyddai absenoldeb un plentyn, boed hynny’n wedi’i 
awdurdodi neu beidio, yn effeithio ar addysg plant eraill. Er hynny, byddai 
athrawon yn cefnogi myfyrwyr oedd wedi bod yn sâl ac wedi colli gwaith; 
byddai faint o gefnogaeth a roddwyd yn amrywio o un myfyriwr i’r llall ac yn 
dibynnu ar eu hanghenion. Os oedd yr absenoldeb yn gysylltiedig â salwch 
hirdymor, byddai ysgolion yn dilyn codau ac arferion sefydledig a osodir gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. Ar lefel AALl, byddai’r wybodaeth a gasglwyd yn ddata 
cyffredinol megis absenoldeb oherwydd salwch/rhesymau meddygol; fodd 
bynnag, ar lefel ysgol, byddai’r data a gasglwyd yn seiliedig ar y manylion a 
roddir gan rieni/gwarcheidwaid.  

 rhoi sicrwydd nad oedd absenoldeb heb awdurdod ar gyfer gwyliau teuluol 
yn broblem eang yn Sir Ddinbych.   

 cadarnhau nad oedd cysylltiadau rhwng presenoldeb gwael ac ardaloedd o 
amddifadedd. Roedd effaith y pandemig a’r argyfwng costau byw wedi 
gwneud y broblem yn waeth, roedd y gwaith i ymdrin â’r materion hyn yn 
gymhleth a byddai’n cymryd amser i ddwyn ffrwyth.  

 dywedwyd bod Rhybuddion Cosb Benodedig yn arf ataliol, a bod 
hysbysiadau rhybuddio i rieni/gwarcheidwaid am absenoldeb yn effeithiol.  
Roedd y systemau oedd ar gael iddynt yn effeithiol, ac roedd cyfraddau 
presenoldeb mewn ysgolion yn codi. Pe na bai cosbau ariannol am 
absenoldeb heb awdurdod yn cael eu talu, gallai’r mater fynd i’r llys.  

 roedd Polisi Presenoldeb y Gwasanaethau Addysg, Ysgolion a Phlant 
2024/25 yn pwysleisio y byddai angen edrych ar absenoldeb plant o’r ysgol 
fel Cyngor cyfan gan fod ffactorau y tu allan i addysg yn effeithio ar 
bresenoldeb. I’r rhan fwyaf o wasanaethau eraill, roedd y pandemig yn fater 
hanesyddol, fodd bynnag, roedd yn dal i gael effaith sylweddol ar ysgolion ac 
addysg.  

 cadarnhau bod sefyllfa ariannol y Cyngor yn cael effaith negyddol ar y 
Gwasanaeth Addysg. Roedd y Tîm Gweithwyr Cymdeithasol Addysg wedi 
cael ei gwtogi o 12 i 4 aelod o staff craidd, oedd yn golygu bod y llwyth 
gwaith yn anodd ei gynnal.  Er bod y staff craidd hyn yn cael eu cefnogi gan 
dri aelod arall o staff, roedd y cyllid ar gyfer eu swyddi’n dibynnu ar grantiau 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru, oedd yn cael ei adolygu bob mis Mawrth.  

 byddai rhywfaint o absenoldebau heb awdurdod mewn ysgolion bob amser, 
felly roedd yn bwysig defnyddio dull amlddisgyblaethol i geisio atal rhwystrau 
i ymgysylltu â disgyblion. Roedd lefel o apathi ymhlith rhai disgyblion am eu 
dyfodol, ac er mwyn ymdrin â’r apathi a’r ansicrwydd hwn, roedd angen 

Tudalen 11



gweithio gyda’r sectorau masnach a busnes i geisio mapio llwybrau gyrfa i 
bobl ifanc.   

 rhoddwyd sicrwydd i aelodau na ddylai plant fod yn colli ysgol oherwydd 
Polisi Cludiant Ysgolion y Cyngor, gan fod y polisi hwnnw yn unol â gofynion 
Mesur Teithio gan Ddysgwyr Llywodraeth Cymru gan nodi y byddai cludiant 
am ddim yn cael ei ddarparu i’r ysgol addas agosaf yn amodol ar y meini 
prawf yn y Mesur. Roedd copi o’r polisi hwn ar gael ar wefan y Cyngor. 

 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod - 
 

(i) cymeradwyo ymdrechion a dull ysgolion a’r Awdurdod Addysg Lleol hyd yma 
i hyrwyddo pwysigrwydd presenoldeb yn yr ysgol ac ymgysylltu mewn 
addysg gyda disgyblion a rhieni/gwarcheidwaid; a 

(ii) er mwyn monitro effeithiolrwydd y polisi presenoldeb templed newydd ar 
gyfer 2024/25, ynghyd ag unrhyw fentrau eraill a ddefnyddir o ran 
presenoldeb disgyblion yn yr ysgol a’u hymgysylltiad ag addysg, gofyn am i 
adroddiad arall ar gynnydd gael ei gyflwyno i’r aelodau mewn 12 mis. 
 

7 TRAWSNEWID CYNLLUN STRATEGOL CYMRAEG MEWN ADDYSG 
 
Cyflwynodd Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Phobl Ifanc, ynghyd â Phennaeth 
Addysg, adroddiad Trawsnewid Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (CSCA) 
(a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw).  Yr oedd Swyddog Datblygu CSCA yn bresennol i 
roi cefnogaeth ar agweddau technegol ar y Cynllun. Yr oedd yr adroddiad yn 
hysbysu’r Pwyllgor am y cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma yn y gwaith o gyflawni Cynllun 
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (CSCA) yn holl ysgolion y sir yn unol â 
gweledigaeth Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer darpariaeth y Gymraeg; gofynnodd y 
Pwyllgor am adroddiad yn dilyn trafodaeth ar adroddiad cynnydd ym mis Medi 2023 
mewn perthynas â Darpariaeth Cyfrwng Cymraeg. 
  
Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau bod gan y Cyngor weledigaeth ddeng mlynedd i gynyddu a 
gwella’r gwaith cynllunio o ran darpariaeth addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn y sir. 
Mynegwyd hyn yng Nghynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (CSCA) y Cyngor. 
Erbyn Medi 2032, dyhead Sir Ddinbych yw y byddai 40% o’r holl ddisgyblion saith 
mlwydd oed yn cael Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg. Rhoddwyd gwybod i’r Aelodau, er 
mwyn cyflawni’r weledigaeth hon, mae’r Cynllun yn nodi saith canlyniad a fydd yn 
cyfrannu tuag at yr uchelgais. Yr oedd gofyn i’r Cyngor gyflwyno adroddiad 
blynyddol i Lywodraeth Cymru ar gynnydd y Cynllun hwn, a chynhwyswyd copi 
ohono yn atodiad i’r adroddiad. 
  
Yr oedd y prif gynnydd o ran y Cynllun yn cynnwys gweledigaeth glir a chefnogaeth 
i ddatblygu prosiectau. Bu Tîm ymroddedig Cefnogi’r Gymraeg yn darparu 
cefnogaeth ac arweiniad ardderchog i staff ysgolion yn Sir Ddinbych. Yr oedd 
gwybodaeth yn amlygu buddion dwyieithrwydd ac addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg ar gael 
ar wefan CSDd. Hyd yma, mae 6 ysgol gynradd cyfrwng Saesneg wedi newid eu 
categori iaith ac wedi dod yn ysgolion T2, gan ymrwymo (dros gyfnod o ddeng 
mlynedd) i gynyddu faint o Gymraeg a addysgir yn yr ysgol, gyda’r dyhead o 
addysgu 50% o wersi drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Yr oedd nifer yr hwyrddyfodiaid i 

Tudalen 12



addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg ac sy’n derbyn cefnogaeth arbenigol yn cynyddu.  Yn 
ogystal, yr oedd cydweithio agos yn digwydd gyda Thîm Ymgynghorol y Gymraeg 
yng Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy er mwyn rhannu arferion da, ac yr oedd hyn 
yn datblygu’n dda. 
  
Wrth ymateb i gwestiynau’r Aelodau, fe wnaeth yr Aelod Arweiniol, swyddogion a 
Phennaeth Ysgol Uwchradd Dinbych: 
 

 gynghori bod Grŵp Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg yn monitro’n rheolaidd 
y cynnydd a wneir parthed cyflawni CSCA.  

 cadarnhau, fel y nodir ym Mharagraff 4.6 yr adroddiad, ei fod yn galonogol 
bod nifer y disgyblion sy’n derbyn eu haddysg yn nwy o’r ysgolion cyfrwng 
Cymraeg mwyaf yn dechrau dychwelyd i’r lefelau a welid cyn Covid. Bu nifer 
o ffactorau’n gyfrifol am y gostyngiad yn y niferoedd yn dilyn Covid. Y ffactor 
cyntaf: yn ystod y cyfnod clo nid oedd plant o aelwydydd di-Gymraeg a oedd 
yn mynd i ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg yn gallu clywed na siarad yr iaith am 
gyfnod hir, felly teimlai’r teuluoedd na allent gefnogi addysg y plant, a dyma’u 
rheswm dros eu hanfon i leoliadau addysg cyfrwng Saesneg pan ailagorodd 
yr ysgolion. Ffactor arall oedd bod gweithgareddau cyn ysgol wedi cau o 
ganlyniad i COVID-19. Cafodd hyn effaith enfawr ar addysg Gymraeg, 
oherwydd mae’r saith mlynedd gyntaf o addysg unrhyw blentyn yn hanfodol, 
ac yr oedd colli addysg Gymraeg gynnar yn niweidiol iawn i addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg.  Er hynny, bu’r Gwasanaeth Addysg yn gweithio’n agos gyda’r 
ysgolion, y Mudiad Meithrin, yr Urdd, Rhieni dros Addysg Gymraeg (RhAG), 
ac ati, mewn ymgais i wrthdroi’r tuedd.  Yr oedd yr ystadegau diweddaraf yn 
dangos bod y gwaith hwn bellach yn dechrau dwyn ffrwyth, a’r niferoedd sy’n 
cael addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn dychwelyd bron i’r lefelau a welid cyn 
Covid.  

 dangos sut oedd y defnydd dyddiol o’r Gymraeg mewn ysgolion cyfrwng 
Saesneg yn cael ei gyflwyno a’i ddatblygu. Yr oedd Ysgol Uwchradd Dinbych 
yn enghraifft ardderchog o’r ffordd y mae menter Cymraeg Campus – sy’n 
annog defnyddio’r Gymraeg – yn gweithio. Yr oedd y cymhelliant dros 
lwyddiant y fenter yn dod o’r brig i lawr, ac yn cael effaith gadarnhaol drwy’r 
ysgol i gyd. Amlinellodd y Pennaeth y cynllun datblygu yr oeddynt wedi ei roi 
ar waith a oedd yn cynnwys yr holl staff, nid staff addysgu yn unig; e.e. yr 
oedd staff y ffreutur yn cymryd archebion y disgyblion ac ati yn y Gymraeg.  
Yr oedd Safon Uwch Cymraeg yn bwnc poblogaidd yn yr ysgol, ac yr oedd 
disgyblion Blwyddyn 7, a oedd eisoes yn gyfarwydd â defnyddio’r Gymraeg o 
ddydd i ddydd yn eu hysgol gynradd, yn hynod gyfforddus â dull Cymraeg 
Campus wrth bontio i’r ysgol uwchradd.  Yr oedd yr ysgol eisoes wedi derbyn 
gwobr efydd Cymraeg Campus am ei hanogaeth a’i defnydd o’r Gymraeg, 
ond yr oedd ar fin derbyn achrediad lefel arian.  Yr oedd 7 ysgol uwchradd 
cyfrwng Saesneg neu Ddwy Iaith y sir wedi cyfrannu tuag at Fframwaith 
Cymraeg Campus, ac yr oedd pob un ar hyn o bryd yn ymdrechu i gyflawni 
gwahanol lefelau o achrediad.  Yr oedd Fframwaith Cymraeg Campus yn 
fenter gan CSDd; fodd bynnag, yr oedd LlC ar hyn o bryd yn cymryd 
diddordeb mawr yn y dull hwn ac yn monitro ei ddatblygiad yn ofalus.  Y nod 
yn y pen draw oedd ‘normaleiddio’ y defnydd o’r iaith mewn sefyllfaoedd 
dyddiol.  

Tudalen 13



 pwysleisio mai un o’r heriau sylweddol yr oeddynt yn eu hwynebu wrth 
gyflawni CSCA oedd staffio, yn arbennig wrth recriwtio staff addysgu mewn 
meysydd pwnc arbenigol drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Yr oedd Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi creu amryw fwrsariaethau i annog pobl i fynd i’r proffesiwn; fodd 
bynnag, ni fyddai hyn yn datrys y prinder yn y byrdymor. 
 

Canmolodd y Cynghorydd Hogg y tîm ar ddatblygu adnodd ‘Sglein ar lein’ – bu 
ei ferch yn ei ddefnyddio ac yr oedd wedi bod yn ddefnyddiol iawn iddo yntau fel 
un sy’n dysgu’r iaith.  Teimlai ei fod yn adnodd gwych i gynorthwyo gyda 
phopeth yn ymwneud â’r Gymraeg.  Credai y byddai sicrhau bod y Gymraeg o 
gwmpas plant drwy’r adeg yn arwain at gysylltu ac ymwreiddio’r iaith ym mywyd 
pob dydd. Byddai wedyn yn cyrraedd trobwynt a fyddai’n arwain at fwy o bobl yn 
siarad yr iaith. Cytunodd y swyddogion i drosglwyddo’r ganmoliaeth ynglŷn ag 
adnodd ‘Sglein ar lein’ i’r swyddogion perthnasol.  

 
Felly: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod – 
 

(i)   cymeradwyo’r cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma o ran cyflawni Cynllun 
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (CSCA) yn holl ysgolion y sir yn 
unol â gweledigaeth Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer darpariaeth 
Gymraeg; a  

(ii)  bod y gwaith o fonitro cyflawniad Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn 
Addysg yn y dyfodol yn cael ei wneud gan Grŵp Strategol Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg, ar yr amod bod problemau neu rwystrau sylweddol 
rhag cyflawni’r Cynllun yn cael eu cyfeirio at y Pwyllgor Craffu am 
archwiliad manwl pe deuid ar eu traws.  

 
8 CWRICWLWM I GYMRU  

 
Cyflwynodd Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Phobl Ifanc, ynghyd â Phennaeth 
Addysg, adroddiad Cwricwlwm i Gymru (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw). Yr oedd 
ymgynghorwyr GwE hefyd yn bresennol i gefnogi staff y Gwasanaeth Addysg.  Nod 
yr adroddiad oedd rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ar y cynnydd a wnaed gan 
ysgolion ers i’r Cwricwlwm i Gymru ddod yn statudol ym mis Medi 2022. Yr oedd yr 
adroddiad yn darparu gwybodaeth am wersi a ddysgwyd o werthusiadau ar draws 
ysgolion yn ystod y cam gweithredu dechreuol a’r effaith ar staff a dysgwyr. 
  
Manylai’r adroddiad ar y cynnydd a wnaed wrth weithredu a gwreiddio’r Cwricwlwm 
newydd i Gymru mewn ysgolion cynradd ac ym mlynyddoedd 7 ac 8 mewn ysgolion 
uwchradd – beth oedd yn gweithio’n dda, meysydd i’w gwella a’r gwersi a 
ddysgwyd gan yr holl fudd-ddeiliaid yn ystod y cam gweithredu dechreuol.  Yn 
ogystal, yr oedd yn darparu gwerthusiad o’r broses weithredu dros yr holl gyfnodau 
allweddol, effaith y Cwricwlwm ar recriwtio a chadw staff, trosolwg o’r adborth a 
dderbyniwyd gan benaethiaid, athrawon a staff ysgolion am eu profiadau o’r broses 
weithredu a manteision ac / neu anfanteision y Cwricwlwm newydd i ddysgwyr. 
  
Hysbyswyd y Pwyllgor bod y Cwricwlwm newydd i Gymru wedi dod yn statudol i’r 
holl ddysgwyr o’r Dosbarth Meithrin i Flwyddyn 6 ym mis Medi 2022. Yr oedd pob 

Tudalen 14



ysgol a lleoliad uwchradd wedi dechrau gyda’r Cwricwlwm i Gymru ym 
Mlynyddoedd 7 ac 8 erbyn mis Medi 2023. 
  
Yr oedd pob ysgol wedi dylunio eu cwricwlwm yn unol â’r Pedwar Diben i fodloni 
gofynion gorfodol y Cwricwlwm i Gymru, a chynigir cwricwlwm cytbwys i fodloni 
anghenion pob dysgwr. Cafodd y broses o gyflwyno’r Cwricwlwm fesul dipyn mewn 
ysgolion uwchradd effaith wahanol i effaith y broses gyflwyno fyrrach mewn 
ysgolion cynradd, a bu arweinwyr ac ymarferwyr yn ymwneud â newid parhaus a 
sylweddol bob blwyddyn rhwng 2022 a 2026. Byddai Blwyddyn 9 yn dechrau’r 
Cwricwlwm newydd ym mis Medi 2024. Byddai dau gam gweithredu pellach yn 
dilyn wrth i’r dysgwyr hyn ddechrau’r cymwysterau 14-16 newydd yn 2025 a’r 
dysgwyr Blwyddyn 8 presennol yn 2026. Datblygwyd dogfennau crynhoi cwricwlwm 
gan bob ysgol a’u darparu i rieni a’r gymuned leol yn unol â gofynion Llywodraeth 
Cymru. 
  
Ychwanegodd swyddogion fod cyflwyno’r Cwricwlwm newydd yn ddarn pwysig o 
ddiwygiad. Yn ogystal â newidiadau ADY, y gwaith a wnaed gyda Chynllun 
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (CSCA) a gwaith adfer yn dilyn Covid, yr oedd 
wedi golygu llawer iawn o waith i’r Gwasanaeth Addysg a staff ysgolion. Fodd 
bynnag, yr oedd yr holl ysgolion wedi croesawu’r newidiadau a’r gwaith a oedd yn 
gysylltiedig â’r diwygio. 
  
Wrth ymateb i gwestiynau’r Pwyllgor, fe wnaeth yr Aelod Arweiniol, Swyddogion a 
chynrychiolwyr GwE: 
  

 ddweud bod y gwersi a ddysgwyd gan y sector cynradd wedi cynorthwyo’r 
gwaith o gyflwyno’r Cwricwlwm yn y sector uwchradd, a phwysleisiwyd bod 
dull clwstwr o weithio wedi bod o gymorth mawr o ran y llwyth gwaith a oedd 
yn gysylltiedig â’r cyflwyno yn y sector uwchradd, yn arbennig cynllunio ar 
gyfer dilyniant. Fodd bynnag, yr oedd gwahaniaethau yn y ffordd y mae’r 
sectorau cynradd ac uwchradd yn gweithio – e.e. y sector cynradd yn 
cymryd ymagwedd gyfannol at addysg a’r sector uwchradd wedi ei seilio fwy 
ar ddisgyblaeth.  Yr oedd cyflwyno’r Cwricwlwm newydd wedi herio’r 
gwasanaeth a’r ysgolion i feddwl am yr hyn yr oeddynt yn ei addysgu, pam, a 
sut yr oedd yn cael ei addysgu.  Yr oedd y Cwricwlwm newydd yn cynnwys 
llawer mwy o ddysgu ysgogol ac yn yr awyr agored, felly rhoddwyd mwy o 
sylw i ddefnyddio sgiliau a chynnwys yn y dysgu. 

 cadarnhau bod cyllid i ategu dysgu proffesiynol bob amser yn her. Fodd 
bynnag, yr oedd ysgolion yn greadigol wrth sicrhau eu bod yn cael y buddion 
mwyaf o unrhyw gyllid grant a dderbynnid.  Byddent yn parhau i ymgysylltu 
mewn dysgu proffesiynol gymaint â phosibl, rhannu arferion gorau ac 
adnoddau, defnyddio dulliau fel dysgu ‘ysgol i ysgol’, yn ogystal â chael elfen 
o hyfforddiant proffesiynol pwrpasol.  Yr oedd yn ofynnol i bob ysgol lunio 
cynllun gwella. Byddai GwE, yn rhan o’i waith, yn herio gallu’r ysgol i 
gyflawni a darparu ei gynllun gwella, ac yr oedd rhan o’r broses herio hon yn 
canolbwyntio ar hyder yr ysgol wrth sicrhau’r hyfforddiant angenrheidiol i’w 
galluogi i gyflawni ei Chynllun Gwella.  
 

Gwnaeth yr Aelodau sylwadau ynglŷn â pha mor galonogol ydoedd i weld 
disgyblion yn dysgu codio a sgiliau TG eraill i’w cynorthwyo gyda chyflogaeth yn y 

Tudalen 15



dyfodol. Yr oedd Llywodraeth Cymru’n annog addysg a sgiliau TG. Fodd bynnag, yr 
oedd hyn yn creu heriau gan fod cyflogi staff sydd â’r wybodaeth a’r sgiliau digidol 
priodol yn anodd ar adegau. Yr oedd hyder staff yn eu sgiliau digidol eu hunain 
weithiau’n broblem; fodd bynnag, bu’r dull ‘Clwstwr Ysgolion’ yn ddefnyddiol mewn 
sawl achos gan fod yna, yn amlach na pheidio, ‘arbenigwr’ neu aelod o staff ‘digidol 
hyderus’ mewn un neu fwy o’r ysgolion a allai ddarparu cefnogaeth i gydweithwyr 
mewn ysgolion eraill.  Ar adegau, darparu cefnogaeth i feithrin hyder cydweithwyr 
yn eu sgiliau eu hunain oedd yr unig beth oedd ei angen.  Yr oedd tuedd bod 
prinder athrawon a oedd yn hyderus wrth addysgu sgiliau TG drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg.  Meysydd arbenigol eraill lle’r ymddangosai fod prinder unigolion a oedd 
yn gymwys i addysgu’r pynciau oedd ieithoedd tramor modern ac Iaith Arwyddion 
Prydain, yn enwedig yn y sector cynradd.  Pan ddigwyddai hyn, gofynnid am 
gefnogaeth gan ysgol uwchradd leol er mwyn gallu addysgu’r pynciau hyn.  Mae 
manteision i hyn hefyd, oherwydd yr oedd yr ysgolion hynny’n gallu dod i adnabod 
eu darpar ddisgyblion ymlaen llaw cyn iddynt bontio.  Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar y sylwadau uchod – 
 

(i) cydnabod y gwaith a wnaed hyd yma wrth weithredu a gwreiddio’r 
Cwricwlwm i Gymru yn ysgolion y sir, ac ym mlynyddoedd 7 ac 8 mewn 
ysgolion uwchradd, yn cynnwys arferion gorau a nodwyd, gwersi a 
ddysgwyd a meysydd i’w gwella ar gyfer parhau i gyflwyno’r 
Cwricwlwm fesul dipyn yn y sector addysg uwchradd; a  
 

(ii) gofyn i adroddiad cynnydd a gwerthuso pellach ar weithredu’r 
Cwricwlwm gael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor ym mis Medi 2026 yn dilyn 
cyflwyno Ton 1 y cymwysterau TGAU newydd.   

 
9 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU 

 
Cyflwynodd y Cydlynydd Craffu’r adroddiad a’r atodiadau (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen 
llaw) oedd yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu ei raglen waith. 
 
Hysbysodd y Cydlynydd Craffu aelodau’r Pwyllgor fod ganddynt raglen waith lawn 
yn eu cyfarfod nesaf ar 28 Tachwedd – byddai dwy o’r eitemau yn rhai sylweddol, 
sef ‘Recriwtio, Cadw a Chynllunio’r Gweithlu’ a’r adroddiad monitro ar ‘Ysgol Crist y 
Gair’. 
 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i’r aelodau hefyd bod Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion 
Craffu wedi cyfarfod yr wythnos flaenorol. Nid ychwanegwyd unrhyw eitemau i 
Gynllun Gwaith Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad.  Trefnwyd cyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp ar 
gyfer 25 Tachwedd.   
 
Yr oedd y ddogfen ‘Briff Gwybodaeth’ a ddosbarthwyd i aelodau’r Pwyllgor dros e-
bost yn gynharach yr wythnos honno yn cynnwys adroddiadau gwybodaeth yn 
nodi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am berfformiad yn ôl Gweithdrefn Gwyno 
Gorfforaethol y Cyngor, ‘Eich Llais’, a’r ‘Strategaeth a Chynllun Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig’.  Dywedwyd wrth yr aelodau, os oedd ganddynt unrhyw bryderon yn 
ymwneud â pherfformiad y Cyngor ar ôl archwilio’r adroddiadau hyn, gallent wneud 
cais i’r Pwyllgor Craffu ymchwilio’n fanwl i unrhyw feysydd pryder.  Gellid gwneud 

Tudalen 16



hyn drwy lenwi Ffurflen Cynnig gan Aelodau, sydd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 2 adroddiad 
Rhaglen Waith Craffu.   
 
Felly: 
 
Penderfynwyd:  cadarnhau Rhaglen Waith y Pwyllgor, fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 
yr adroddiad. 
 

10 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR  
 
Siaradodd yr Is-gadeirydd am gyfarfod diweddar y bu’n bresennol ynddo gyda 
chynrychiolwyr o’r Grŵp Adolygiad gan Gymheiriaid a fu’n ymweld â’r Awdurdod yn 
ddiweddar.  
 
Penderfynwyd:  nodi’r adroddiad. 
 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 1pm. 
 

Tudalen 17



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod  28 Tachwedd 2024 

Aelod Arweiniol / Swyddog Helen Vaughan-Evans – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 

Cymorth Corfforaethol: Perfformiad, Digidol ac 

Asedau / Y Cynghorydd Julie Matthews, Aelod 

Arweiniol Polisi, Cydraddoldeb a Strategaeth 

Gorfforaethol 

Awdur yr Adroddiad Heidi Barton-Price, Swyddog Cynllunio Strategol a 

Pherfformiad 

Teitl Adolygiad o’r Risgiau Corfforaethol, Medi 2024 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1 Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am Adolygiad mis Medi 2024 o'r Gofrestr Risg Gorfforaethol 

a Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor. Gweler yr atodiadau canlynol: 

 Atodiad 1 - Crynodeb   

 Atodiad 2 – Manylion llawn y Risgiau Corfforaethol hyd at fis Medi 2024  

 Atodiad 3 - Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg  

 Atodiad 4 - Risg newydd 53 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1 Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad adolygu’r risgiau sy’n 

wynebu’r Cyngor, yn cynnwys yr argymhelliad i ychwanegu risg newydd i’r Gofrestr 

Risg Gorfforaethol (atodiad 4). 

 

2.2 Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad adolygu Datganiad 

Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor (atodiad 3) fel rhan o’r adolygiad hwn 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Agenda 5



 
 

(adolygwyd ddiwethaf Ebrill 2024) gan ystyried argymhellion y Tîm Gweithredol 

Corfforaethol (Gweler 4.9 isod) 

 

2.3 Rydym hefyd yn rhoi gwybod i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad am ein Datganiad 

Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg diwygiedig ynglŷn ag ariannu prosiectau:  O ystyried yr 

amgylchedd ariannol presennol, byddai’n briodol yn awr i ddiwygio parodrwydd 

‘gofalus’ y Cyngor i dderbyn risg o ran cyllid prosiectau i ‘agored’.  

3 Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1 Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad yn ystyried y diwygiadau a awgrymir i’r Gofrestr 

Risgiau Gorfforaethol ym mis Medi 2024 (atodiad 2) ac yn trafod unrhyw ddiwygiadau 

eraill sydd eu hangen, yn cynnwys risgiau newydd - gan nodi ac adrodd yn ôl ar y 

risg newydd yn benodol [risg rhif 53 - Atodiad 4]. 

3.2 Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad yn ystyried statws pob risg a’r parodrwydd i’w 

derbyn (atodiad 3), pa mor briodol yw perchnogion y risg a pha mor effeithiol yw’r 

rheoliadau.  

3.3 Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad yn rhoi unrhyw adborth cychwynnol ar Ddatganiad 

Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor, ar ôl ystyried adborth y Tîm Gweithredol 

Corfforaethol ym mharagraff 4.9 isod a’r argymhelliad i symud i barodrwydd “agored” 

i dderbyn risg ar gyfer prosiectau ariannol.  

4 Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1 Yr Uwch Dîm Arwain, ynghyd â’r Cabinet, sy’n datblygu ac yn berchen ar y Gofrestr 

Risgiau Gorfforaethol.  Mae’n cael ei hadolygu ddwywaith y flwyddyn gan y Cabinet 

yn ystod sesiwn friffio’r Cabinet.  Ar ôl adolygiadau mis Chwefror a mis Medi, mae’r 

gofrestr wedi’i diweddaru wedyn yn cael ei chyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

a’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio. Rhennir crynodeb o’r adolygiadau er 

gwybodaeth yn unig yn y pwyllgorau hyn yn eu cyfarfodydd ym mis Ionawr a mis 

Gorffennaf.  

4.2 Defnyddiwyd Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor yn ystod yr 

adolygiadau gan berchnogion risgiau, ac mae ein lefel risg (yn seiliedig ar y sgôr) yn 

cael ei ddadansoddi o fewn y Gofrestr Risgiau Gorfforaethol (Atodiad 2).   

Tudalen 20

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6562&Ver=4&LLL=1


 
 

4.3 Mae gan y Cyngor 13 o Risgiau Corfforaethol ar y Gofrestr ar hyn o bryd.  Mae 

crynodebau o’r adolygiad ar gyfer y cyfnod hwn i’w gweld ar ddechrau pob risg yn 

Atodiad 2.  Ni chafodd unrhyw risgiau eu dad-ddwysau yn ystod yr adolygiad hwn.  

Cynigir risg newydd i’w hychwanegu at y Gofrestr. Byddai ychwanegu’r risg newydd 

(risg 53, gweler atodiad 4) yn golygu bod 14 o risgiau ar y Gofrestr Risgiau 

Gorfforaethol. 

4.4 Gweler atodiad 4 ar gyfer drafft o’r risg newydd fel a ganlyn: Y risg nad yw buddion y 

Rhaglenni Trawsnewid a Phrosiectau Mawr yn cael eu gwireddu’n llawn. 

4.5 Mae’r Aelod Arweiniol, y Cynghorydd Diane King wedi cymryd lle’r Cynghorydd Gill 

German ar gyfer Risgiau 01, 21, 34 a 50.  

4.6 Er bod pob risg wedi’i hadolygu, nid yw sgôr risg weddilliol unrhyw un o’r 13 Risg 

Gorfforaethol wedi newid. 

 

Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg 

4.7 Ar hyn o bryd, mae saith risg – 01, 21, 34, 45, 50, 51 a 52 (54%) – yn anghyson â 

Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor (atodiad 3). Fodd bynnag, mae 

hynny i’w ddisgwyl gan fod y gofrestr yn cynnwys risgiau mwyaf difrifol y Cyngor. 

4.8 Mae’n amserol i ni edrych eto ar Ddatganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor 

(atodiad 3) a adolygwyd ddiwethaf ym mis Ebrill 2024.  Dylai’r datganiad adlewyrchu 

ein ffactorau allweddol allanol (Gwleidyddol, Economaidd, Cymdeithasegol, 

Thechnolegol, Cyfreithiol ac Amgylcheddol) sy’n dylanwadu ar y sefydliad, ynghyd â 

deinameg a galw mewnol. Gofynnwyd am drafodaeth gychwynnol ym Mwrdd y 

Gyllideb a Thrawsnewid ym mis Gorffennaf 2024 a’r Tîm Gweithredol Corfforaethol 

ym mis Hydref 2024 (gweler 2.3 uchod) i roi adborth ar ba mor briodol oedd y 

Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg presennol.  

4.9 Tynnodd y trafodaethau hyn sylw at ein parodrwydd gofalus presennol i dderbyn risg 

o ran prosiectau ariannol.  Cynigir ein bod yn symud y parodrwydd i dderbyn risg hwn 

i “agored”, er mwyn darparu fframwaith mwy priodol i gefnogi’r trawsnewidiad sy’n 

ofynnol ar y sefydliad er mwyn cyflawni cynaliadwyedd ariannol ac ymatebion 

creadigol i ofynion ein preswylwyr.  

Tudalen 21



 
 

5 Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 
Corfforaethol? 

5.1 Diben y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yw amlygu digwyddiadau posib yn y dyfodol a 

allai gael effaith niweidiol ar allu’r Cyngor i gyflawni ei amcanion, gan gynnwys ei 

flaenoriaethau corfforaethol.  Mae’r camau rheoli a gweithredu dynodedig felly yn 

hanfodol i gyflawni Cynllun Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027. 

6 Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1 Mae costau datblygu, monitro ac adolygu’r Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yn cael eu 

cynnwys yn y cyllidebau cyfredol.  

7 Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1 Mae dogfennau’r Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yn cofnodi risgiau a’r camau lliniaru.  

Nid yw’r broses o ddatblygu ac adolygu’r ddogfen ei hun yn cael effaith niweidiol ar 

unrhyw un o’r nodau lles. Fodd bynnag, efallai y bydd angen cynnal asesiad o effaith 

ar les ar gyfer unrhyw broses, strategaeth neu bolisi newydd sy’n cael eu llunio o 

ganlyniad i gam lliniaru. 

8 Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1 Adolygodd y Bwrdd Cyllideb a Thrawsnewid y Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg 

Corfforaethol ym mis Gorffennaf yn sgil y rhaglen drawsnewid a syniadau yn dod i 

law er mwyn arbed arian i’r sefydliad. O’r herwydd, y cais gan y Cabinet a’r Tîm 

Gweithredol Corfforaethol yw i’r Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg ar gyfer 

prosiectau ariannol symud o ofalus fel y mae ar hyn o bryd, i agored.  

 

8.2 Cyn y Tîm Arwain Strategol, gofynnwyd i Berchnogion Risg y Tîm Gweithredol 

Corfforaethol adolygu eu risgiau dros e-bost ac fe’u trafodwyd gan y Tîm Gweithredol 

Corfforaethol ar 12 Hydref, 2024. 

8.3 Yn y Sesiwn Friffio i’r Cabinet ar 4 Tachwedd 2024, cefnogwyd y gofrestr a 

ddiweddarwyd.  

Tudalen 22



 
 

8.4 Mae’r gofrestr a ddiweddarwyd bellach yn cael ei chyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 

ac Archwilio (20 Tachwedd) a’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad (28 Tachwedd).  

9 Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1 Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol yn codi wrth ddatblygu, monitro ac adolygu’r 

Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol.  

10 Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 
lleihau? 

10.1 Nid oes unrhyw risgiau’n gysylltiedig ag adolygu ein cofrestr risgiau.  

10.2 Bydd methiant i adolygu ein datganiad parodrwydd i dderbyn risg yn arwain at fwy o 

risg amhriodol i’r Cyngor, neu i’r gwrthwyneb, cyfleoedd risg yn cael eu methu. 

11 Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

11.2 Mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn amlinellu swyddogaethau a chyfrifoldebau uwch 

swyddogion ac yn nodi bod rhaid i weithdrefnau a phrosesau clir fod yn eu lle i reoli 

risg yn effeithiol. 

11.3 Mae Adran 21 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 ac Adran 7 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor 

yn nodi pwerau Craffu. 

 

Tudalen 23



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Summary of Corporate Risk 
Register 
September 2024  

Tudalen 25



 

 

Corporate Risk Register 

The Council’s Corporate Risk Register (CRR) contains the Council’s most serious 

risks. It is owned by Cabinet and the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). 

We define our risks using a scale of likelihood of the risk occurring and the impact of 

the risk occurring. We also determine whether the risk is in line with our risk appetite. 

Risk appetite is the level of risk we are prepared to tolerate or accept in pursuit of our 

long term, strategic objectives. 

The Risk Management Strategy is available on our website. 

Risk Score Risk 
Severity 

Escalation Criteria 

C5, D4, D5, E4, E5 Minor 

(Green) 

Risk easily managed locally and no need to 

involve management 

A5, B4, B5, C3, C4, 

D3, E2, E3 

Moderate 

(Yellow) 

Risk containable at service level and senior 

management and SLT may need to be kept 

informed 

A3, A4, B3, C2, D1, 

D2, E1 

Major 

(Orange) 

Intervention by SLT with Cabinet 

involvement 

A1, A2, B1, B2, C1 Critical (Red) Significant SLT and Cabinet intervention 

Summary of current corporate risks and score (September 2024) 

We have 13 corporate risks on our register.  54% (7) are outside of our risk appetite.   

Tudalen 26

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/risk-management-strategy.aspx


 

 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – SUMMARY SEPTEMBER 2024 REVIEW 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

01. Safeguarding 

incident 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

The Lead Member, Councillor Diane King 

has replaced Councillor Gill German for 

this risk. 

 

Same  No 

 

11. Unexpected or 

unplanned serious 

event 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

C3 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Possible and 

Medium Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same Yes 

T
udalen 27



 

 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

12. Negative 

reports from 

external regulators 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

C3 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Possible and 

Medium Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same  Yes 

 

14. Health and 

Safety 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

E2 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Rare and High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same Yes 

21. Integration of 

health and social 

care does not 

develop further 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

The Lead Member, Councillor Diane King 

has replaced Councillor Gill German for 

this risk. 

Same No 

T
udalen 28



 

 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

31. Fraud and 

corruption 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

E2 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Rare and High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same Yes 

34. Insufficient 

regulated care 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

The Lead Member, Councillor Diane King 

has replaced Councillor Gill German for 

this risk. 

Same No 

37. Partnerships B1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

Very High Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same Yes 

T
udalen 29



 

 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

45. Net Carbon 

Zero and 

Ecologically 

positive 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact  

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same No 

48. Recruitment 

and retention 

B3 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Likely and 

Medium Impact 

B3 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Likely and 

Medium Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same Yes 

50. Placements for 

Children Looked 

After  

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

The Lead Member, Councillor Diane King 

has replaced Councillor Gill German for 

this risk. 

Same No 

T
udalen 30



 

 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

51. Economic and 

financial 

environment 

worsens and results 

in the inability to set 

a balanced budget. 

B1 – Critical Risk: 

Likely / Very High 

Impact 

C1 – Critical 

Risk: Possible / 

Very High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same No 

52. Insufficient 

funding leads to 

withdrawal or 

scaling back of 

services, even 

when a balanced 

budget is delivered 

B1 – Critical Risk: 

Likely / Very High 

Impact 

B1 – Critical 

Risk: Likely / 

Very High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and confirmed scoring and 

narrative as accurate. 

Same No 

T
udalen 31



 

 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2024 Review Trend since 

last report 

(July 2024) 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

53. The risk that 

Transformational 

Programmes and 

Major Project 

benefits are not 

fully realised. 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

Proposed new Risk 53 Not 

applicable 

No 

 

T
udalen 32



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Corporate Risk Register – September 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 33



 

 
2 

CONTENTS 

Corporate Risk Register – September 2024 .................................................................... 1 

Risk 01: The risk of a serious safeguarding or practice error, where the council has 

responsibility, resulting in serious harm or death .......................................................... 4 

Risk 11: The risk of an unexpected or unplanned serious event occurring ............... 13 

Risk 12: The risk of a significantly negative report(s) from external regulators. ....... 17 

Risk 14: The risk of a health & safety incident resulting in serious injury or the loss 

of life. (where H&S is referred to, this incorporates fire safety) .................................. 22 

Risk 21: The risk that the integration of health and social care services between 

BCUHB and DCC does not develop further ................................................................... 26 

Risk 31: The risk of fraud and corruption resulting in financial and reputational loss 

and possibly impacting on service delivery in the Corporate Risk Register ............. 30 

Risk 34: The risk that there is insufficient regulated care ............................................ 35 

Risk 37: The risk that partners don't have the resources, matching priorities or 

commitment to support delivery of shared plans and priorities ................................. 41 

Risk 45: The risk to the Council’s reputation of not responding swiftly or sufficiently 

enough in making our contribution to tackle climate change and bring about natures 

recovery following the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency 

in July 2019. ..................................................................................................................... 44 

Risk 48: The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to a loss of expertise 

and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate performance ......................................... 49 

Risk 50: The risk that Welsh Government’s commitment to eliminate profit from the 

care of Children Looked After results in an unstable or unsuitable supply of 

placements ....................................................................................................................... 53 

Risk 51: The risk that the economic and financial environment worsens and results 

in the Council’s inability to set a balanced budget. ...................................................... 56 

Tudalen 34



 

 
3 

Risk 52: The risk that insufficient funding leads to withdrawal or scaling back of 

services, even when a balanced budget is delivered ................................................... 62 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 35



 

 
4 

Corporate Risk Register (September 2024) 

September 2024 Review changes are summarised under each risk title summary. 

Risk 01: The risk of a serious safeguarding or practice error, 

where the council has responsibility, resulting in serious harm 

or death 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Elen Heaton, Councillor Diane King, and Councillor Julie 

Matthews 

Risk Owner:  Nicola Stubbins 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

The Lead Member Councillor Diane King has replaced Councillor Gill German. 

It continues to feel appropriate to keep the residual risk score at A1 – Critical Risk 

Almost Certain and Very High Impact. 

Keeping the risk score at this level enables the risk to be further prioritised and 

escalated with significant scrutiny continuing at CET, Cabinet and Governance & Audit 

Committee (GAC). In addition to the controls listed further below, CET and Cabinet will 

review as and when by exception at their monthly meetings. 

 

Description 

This risk - concerning children and adults at risk - is increasing as the environment is 

changing, with growing expectations around our duties in relation to third party provision. 

The cumulative impact of recruitment and retention issues in social care is significantly 

impacting on the council’s ability to deliver statutory social care functions. As at 

Tudalen 36



 

 
5 

September 2024, we remain deeply concerned that a death could occur as a result of 

insufficient staffing resources.  

There is a national recruitment and retention crisis in social care (see also risk 48). Social 

care frequently loses staff due to the superior pay and conditions offered by recruitment 

agencies, other local authorities and the health board, often for similar but less demanding 

roles. Our services are often only able to replace experienced staff with newly qualified or 

inexperienced workers that require significant support and are unable to independently 

work with the increasingly complex cases referred to the service. Many new starters are 

younger, newly qualified staff and rates of maternity leave in some teams are high. 

There were already reported shortages in social care and health sector. However, an 

impact of Covid-19 is a significant movement of the workforce away from social care and 

health. As described above, fewer social workers are entering the profession than are 

leaving. The market is extremely competitive and there is no national pay structure in 

place in the sector (like there is for education). Other employers offer more competitive 

and attractive packages that the council cannot compete with. 

At the same time, caseloads are becoming more complex and are increasing. There is a 

risk of people not being supported, or not being seen with the right intensity. 

Recruitment and retention challenges, together with more demanding cases and 

workloads, are impacting social care services’ ability to deliver its statutory responsibilities; 

are placing increased pressure on remaining staff in the teams, negatively impacting their 

well-being and increasing levels of unplanned absence. 

Failure of social care services to deliver its statutory responsibilities could result in: 

 Death, injury or neglect to vulnerable citizens and their carers 

 Legal challenge 

 Financial damage 

 Reputational damage 

 Sanction by Regulatory Body 

 

 

 

Tudalen 37



 

 
6 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The impact of Covid-19, the continued pressures with recruitment and retention, the 

deterioration in the economy and the pressures people are facing, all escalated this risk in 

terms of its inherent and residual risk scores, with the overall risk score being heightened 

to its maximum level in September 2022. Since the situation has not improved. We will 

ensure continued extremely close management at the most senior operational, corporate 

and political levels of the council, and we continue to raise this risk at a national level. 

 

Impact / Consequences 

 Individual(s) experience significant harm or death. 

 Significant reputational loss. 

 Possible intervention by Welsh Government or Care Inspectorate Wales. 

 Legal/compensation costs. 

 Poor staff well-being and sickness  

Inherent Risk 

A1 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / Very high impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

In addition to the controls listed further below, CET and Cabinet will review as and when 

by exception at their monthly meetings. 

Critical controls: 

 The joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023.  

 

o The report outlined findings about the effectiveness of partnership working 

and of the work of individual agencies in Denbighshire and found in common 

with many areas across Wales, challenges in recruitment and retention of 

staff across key agencies in Denbighshire is impacting on safeguarding 

Tudalen 38

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire


 

 
7 

children’s arrangements.  This is made more difficult by the high levels of 

demand and increasing complexity of children’s needs. 

o Due to a lack of social workers, there is a growing reliance on newly qualified 

and agency social workers. In the local authority, the situation has been 

categorised as a corporate high risk. 

o They found there are systems and relationships in place to facilitate effective 

partnership working where a child is at risk of harm. Partners are working to 

a shared ethos of safeguarding children at different levels of vulnerability. 

Organisational leaders have a shared vision with a positive approach to 

regional safeguarding arrangements. 

o This clear strategic commitment has resulted in the commissioning of a 

sufficient range of effective local services to support children and families. 

 

 This was a new multi-agency inspection by four regulators and was the first in 

Wales to be carried out.   

 The first risk focus session for CET took place on October 17, 2022 following the 

escalation of this risk and discussion at CET on October 13, 2022. CET agreed to 

focus on progress in relation to key actions, which it now discusses every month by 

exception The actions under review bring together the critical operational, strategic 

and political actions the council is undertaking to manage this risk.  

 Cabinet now receives monthly verbal updates at Cabinet Briefing, from Lead 

Members, the risk owner and Heads of Service by exception. 

Performance Scrutiny Committee and Governance and Audit Committee received 

reports on the February 2024 risk review. To follow up on previous lines of enquiry 

at Governance and Audit - and to support discussions related to the interconnected 

nature of this risk with other risks contained within this register - a report on 

recruitment and retention issues in Social Services was submitted as an 

information report.   

 Governance and Audit Committee received a report on October 4, 2022, about a 

Care Inspectorate Wales inspection. The report highlighted recruitment and 

retention challenges and the Committee was reassured that safeguarding was 

being managed as a critical risk on the council’s corporate risk register and that 

steps were being taken to try to alleviate the situation. 

Tudalen 39

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6954&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6835&LLL=0


 

 
8 

 Meetings with Welsh Government have taken place to discuss the extent of our 

concerns and how the risk has escalated. We are having internal meetings involving 

CET, and with the Leader and lead members. There is now a memorandum about 

children’s agency workers, and is being led by All Wales Children’s’ Heads of 

Service, and is being adhered to.  

 We have set the care fees to ensure that providers can pay their social care staff 

the Real Living Wage.  Although the Welsh Government settlement notification 

states that they have included funding to enable authorities to continue to meet the 

additional costs of introducing the Real Living Wage for care workers, the total 

Revenue Support Grant fell well short of funding all pressures within social services 

so the commitment remains a pressure for the Council. 

 Ongoing discussions with HR are taking place and we are taking action as part of 

our efforts to resolve recruitment and retention issues in social care and health and 

more widely across council service (see also controls for the recruitment and 

retention risk 48).  

 The Corporate Social Care Recruitment & Retention Board has been stepped down 

and work is continuing – any outstanding actions are being pursued by the  

Corporate Director as usual business.  

 The Corporate Director and Lead Members continue to raise this issue with the 

WLGA and WG. 

 We have a statutory responsibility for safeguarding and the operational delivery of 

our statutory functions, alongside our partners’, are our critical controls to mitigate 

the risk. Other services, and our wider corporate response, is about understanding 

and awareness so that people know what to do if and when they have concerns 

about a person or family’s welfare.  

 

Ancillary controls:  

 We have asked other councils in North Wales how they are evaluating and 

managing any safeguarding risks on their corporate risk registers. 

 We have responded to a Welsh Government call for evidence regarding 

independent schools’ legislation and guidance in Wales.  Some of the proposed 

Tudalen 40



 

 
9 

changes to safeguarding are a direct result of issues and concerns raised by 

Denbighshire County Council. 

 The North Wales Safeguarding Children Board Local Delivery Group, developed by 

Denbighshire, has been recognised as good practice. 

 The Corporate Parenting Forum continues to progress well and is well attended. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Safeguarding policy and procedures are in place. The Corporate Safeguarding 

Policy has been reviewed and updated in line with legislation. 

 Corporate Safeguarding Training Programme. 

 Framework of self-assessment for schools in relation to safeguarding has been 

established. 

 Section 28 audit tool in place for voluntary sector to ensure safeguarding practices 

are in place.  

 Compliance with safeguarding practises is part of the annual HR audit of schools. 

 Regional arrangements for safeguarding a) children and b) adults at risk are in 

place. The regional safeguarding boards set priorities and actions regionally, e.g. 

training and policies & procedures. This includes, for example, working in 

partnership with North Wales Police on such issues as County Lines. 

 The Corporate Director Social Services and Education is the new Chair of the North 

Wales Safeguarding Adults Board. 

 Risk assessments in place for recruiting staff who require a DBS check and/or 

references and this is monitored and scrutinised by the Corporate Safeguarding 

Panel. 

 Safeguarding policy review has taken place with Schools and guidance has been 

developed 

 Key posts within the Council that could have an impact on safeguarding have been 

identified and Heads of Service are reviewing the posts to ensure that adequate 

checks are undertaken by the Council or and external body. All employee contracts 

make reference to safeguarding. 

Tudalen 41



 

 
10 

 Corporate Safeguarding Panel has been reviewed including the terms of reference, 

roles and responsibilities. 

 Heads of Service have been asked to ensure they consider safeguarding when 

reviewing their risk registers and that safeguarding be included in service challenge 

where appropriate. 

 Briefing sessions on safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation have been 

delivered to County Council. Safeguarding features in three Cabinet Members' 

portfolios. 

 Improvements have been made to safeguarding arrangements with contractors 

including (i) DBS contract checks, (ii) ensuring that Council staff responsible on site 

for the contractor and managing the tendering / contract process are clear of their 

responsibilities in respect of safeguarding, (iii) ensuring contacts terms and 

conditions (including JCT) in relation to DBS checks are appropriate, (iv) ensuring 

that self-assessment arrangements as part of contract management are 

appropriate. 

 Safeguarding e-learning module in place and compliance is monitored and 

scrutinised by the Corporate Safeguarding Panel. 

 Recording and sharing safeguarding incidents and near misses is a standing item of 

the Corporate Safeguarding Panel. It also shares case reviews where there is a 

corporate perspective for lessons learned.  Service representatives are responsible 

for reporting any key messages from panel meetings to members of staff within 

their services. 

 Adoption of Wales Safeguarding Procedures. 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSP102m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date DBS (DCC) 

 CSP103m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date reference check 

or risk assessment (DCC) 

 CSP104m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date DBS (schools) 

 CSP105m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date reference check 

or risk assessment (schools) 

Tudalen 42



 

 
11 

 CPCSP47i Percentage of employees that have completed all 10 mandatory e-

learning modules (including Safeguarding) by the end of the year (excluding 

schools)  

 

Assurance: 

 A joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023.   

 Corporate Support Services: People took a report on Workforce Planning, 

Recruitment & Retention to Performance Scrutiny in July 2023. 

 Senior Leadership : All recruitment to the vacant Head of Service posts have now 

been completed with the following appointments and start dates: 

Head of Adult Social Care & Homelessness Services – commenced post 1st July 

2023 

 In summary, the report confirmed that Human Resources (HR) have robust HR 

initiatives and strategies in place to support the Corporate Workforce Plan. The 

development of some policies and guidance has been delayed due to vacancies 

within the team and workload pressures, however these have new revised 

completion dates. 

 A Corporate Recruitment and Retention paper was presented to January 2023 

Governance and Audit Committee, which included aspects of social care issues.  

 This risk is a standing item on Cabinet Briefing and Corporate Executive Team 

monthly meetings. 

 The North Wales Safeguarding Children Board Local Delivery Group and Adult 

Local Delivery Group continue to meet and influence policy and practice. 

 

Residual Risk 

A1 – Critical Risk Almost certain / Very high impact 

Tudalen 43

https://hmicfrs.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/publications/joint-inspection-of-the-multi-agency-response-to-keeping-children-and-young-people-safe-in-denbighshire/
https://hmicfrs.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/publications/joint-inspection-of-the-multi-agency-response-to-keeping-children-and-young-people-safe-in-denbighshire/
http://mgintranet/documents/s51571/Workforce%20Planning%20Recruitment%20and%20Retention%20Report%20200723.pdf?LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6664&LLL=0


 

 
12 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a minor risk. The Risk 

Owner has confirmed that the scoring accurately reflects the current risk to the council. 

  

Tudalen 44



 

 
13 

Risk 11: The risk of an unexpected or unplanned serious event 

occurring 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews (Lead Member for Emergency Planning) 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

September 2024 update:   

Risk reviewed and updated. 

The residual risk score remains unchanged as: 

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact. 

 

Description  

Serious unexpected and unplanned events can occur at any time, and are planned for and 

responded to via our strategic corporate approach to emergencies. 

Emergency Planning in North Wales is coordinated by the North Wales Councils Regional 

Emergency Planning Service, the host authority for which is Flintshire County Council. 

The Region has an agreed Emergency Management Policy and the Council has its own 

Major Emergency Arrangements Procedure. 

We have in place a Strategic Emergency Management Team (SEMT) structure which (i) 

plans and prepares the Council for an emergency and (ii) coordinates the Council’s 

response to a significant emergency. SEMT is Chaired by the CEO and meets quarterly to 

review plans and preparations/responses to an emergency. There are 4 sub-groups under 

the SEMT, each one Chaired by a senior Officer; (i) Corporate Emergency Information 

Team (ii) Corporate Emergency Humanitarian Response Team (iii) Corporate Emergency 

Operational Team and (iv) Corporate Emergency Recovery Team. 

In addition Corporate Executive Tema (CET) are on a 24/7 Gold Rota, so a Senior Officer 

is always available to lead on an emergency. In the event of an emergency the Senior 

Officer on call via the Gold Rota will initially coordinate the Council’s response, including 

Tudalen 45



 

 
14 

considering calling an SEMT meeting. Depending on the circumstances of the emergency 

the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is likely to take overall strategic control. 

All emergency arrangement are supported by the regional team, including working with 

partners, and any regional dimension to the emergency. 

The Senior Lead Officer (i.e. Gold Rota lead) will need to consider the role of the Lead 

Member, Cllr Julie Matthews in any emergency, as well as how best to inform other 

relevant Lead Members, Cabinet as a whole and the wider Membership of the Council.  

Heads of Service have responsibility to plan for Service response to emergencies e.g.  

seasonal variations in weather, other environmental related emergencies relating to food, 

water, air quality etc, cyber-attacks, terrorism, and of course viral pandemics and public 

health events such as Covid. 

Major emergencies put terrific strain on organisations such as ours, impacting on service 

delivery, staff capacity, and of course finances. It also challenges the resource capacity of 

partners. 

Our approach to this risk is to strategically plan to minimise the impact of an unplanned 

event should it occur. 

Anticipated direction of travel:  

We expect this to be a risk that consistently features in our corporate risk register. This 

ensures continued close management at the most senior operational, corporate and 

political levels of the council.  

Impact / Consequences  

 Serious injury or fatality  

 Significant disruption to core services. 

 Reputational risk to the council in the way it responds to any emergency  

 Significant cost pressures to our budget. 

Tudalen 46



 

 
15 

Inherent Risk 

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost Certain / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls (strategic relevance): 

 The North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service, provides a high 

level of support in terms of planning for and responding to an emergency 

 The strategic approach via SEMT, the associated sub groups, the Gold Rota and 

individual Service planning (including Service Business Continuity Plans) ensures 

we are prepared for an unexpected or unplanned serious event. 

 Close regional partnership working 

 Emergency Planning training and mock events. 

Ancillary controls: 

 An annual Emergency Planning Response report is taken to SLT, the Lead Member 

and Partnerships Scrutiny, as requested, every year. 

 We undertake regular reviews to ensure ICT systems are secure, including making 

updates to our Firewall.  

 We have a vulnerable people mapping tool to help us identify those that require 

specific support in an emergency. 

 Deputies for Chairs of SEMT and subgroups have been appointed. 

 Seeking more volunteers to be loggists to support record taking during an 

emergency 

 Guide for Members in terms of their role during an emergency 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSPHS1001i RIDDOR accident rate (National measure – No. of RIDDOR x 

100,000 / No. of FTE employees)  

Tudalen 47



 

 
16 

 PDA904i Denbighshire County Council achieves Public Services Network (PSN) 

security Standard compliance (0 = pass; 1 = fail)  

 

Qualitative indicators: 

 Production, and where needed implementation of, Service business continuity plans 

 Establishment, uptake and effectiveness of emergency rest centres. 

 (Please note: some of these indicators are only measured should a serious event occur) 

Residual Risk 

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 48



 

 
17 

Risk 12: The risk of a significantly negative report(s) from 

external regulators. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis and Councillor Jason McLellan 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

We expect this risk to always feature in our corporate risk register, but one that may 

increase or decrease in line with other factors, for example the financial environment. 

The risk has been reviewed and the residual risk score remains as C3 – Moderate Risk: 

Possible / Medium Impact 

 

Description  

Negative reports from regulators could lead to a range of impacts that could be negative 

for Denbighshire County Council. The council is committed, however, to responding to 

reports and working with partners, including external regulators, to addressing any 

concerns that may arise. 

Our relationships with external regulators are very important. We need mutual confidence 

in our relationships to ensure the best possible outcomes in terms of service improvement 

and shared learning. We ensure we alert external regulators to issues that may be 

becoming problematic early on, and we work closely with them on programmes of work to 

share learning more widely.   

Governance and Audit Committee received a report on October 4, 2022, about a Care 

Inspectorate Wales inspection. The report highlighted recruitment and retention challenges 

and the Committee was reassured that safeguarding was being managed as a critical risk 

Tudalen 49

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6835&LLL=0


 

 
18 

on the council’s corporate risk register and that steps were being taken to try to alleviate 

the situation. 

A further piece of work, this time focussed on children’s services highlighted some issues, 

such as - once again - recruitment. CIW is currently undertaking a national study of child 

placements in unregulated settings.  

A paper about Audit Wales’s report about commissioning older people’s care homes has 

been presented to Governance and Audit Committee. This was a national study that 

included a review of regional arrangements, including in North Wales.  

A recent CIW inspection of Dolwen Care Home was very positive. 

An inspection report was received regarding the Joint Youth Justice Service of Conwy and 

Denbighshire. The report highlighted problems in partnership working at a strategic level 

but was positive about the work of staff within the service. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The score has been considered in relation to current performance and is felt to be 

accurate. The current position is generally positive. We expect this risk to always feature in 

our corporate risk register, but one that may increase or decrease in line with other factors, 

for example the financial environment. This risk will continue to be reviewed regularly to 

ensure all necessary controls are effective and operating as they should be. 

Impact / Consequences  

 A wider lack of confidence in council services. 

 Reputational damage. 

 Potential intervention by the WG. 

 Significant resources may be required to be diverted to deliver immediate and 

substantial change. 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Tudalen 50



 

 
19 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Regulation we are subject to includes: CIW (Care Inspectorate Wales); WAO Office; 

Estyn; HSE (Health & Safety Executive); ICO (Information Commissioner's Office) Public 

Services Ombudsman, NRW (Natural Resources Wales). Information, studies and other 

reports are also published by other commissioners such as the Welsh Language 

Commissioner for Wales, the Children’s and Older People’s Commissioners for Wales and 

the Well-being of Future Generations Commissioner for Wales,. 

Critical controls: 

 SLT, Estyn, CIW and Audit Wales hold an annual Audit Risk Assessment meeting 

to reach consensus on the regulatory inspections to take place throughout the year. 

 SLT on 2nd February 2024 received this year’s Joint Audit Risk Assessment setting 

out the programme of assurance planned for the year ahead. The report included 

the priorities of the inspectorates, and their intentions at a national and local level to 

identify strengths and areas of concern. The issues identified within the report affect 

all local authorities across Wales and nothing was raised as a specific local concern 

regarding Denbighshire. Estyn highlighted some local concerns but these are 

issues we are already aware of and managing. 

 A joint Inspectorate Review of Child Protection Arrangements (JICPA), involving 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW), Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and 

Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS), Healthcare Inspectorate Wales (HIW), and 

Estyn, was undertaken in Denbighshire during the week commencing 6th February 

2023. 

 We maintain positive and proactive relationship management and ongoing 

communication with external regulators. We have healthy and open relationships 

with our regulators. 

 The corporate performance management framework (PMF) is the main control in 

this area. 

 Head of Corporate Support Services: Performance, Digital & Assets, Strategic 

Planning Team Manager and Chief Internal Auditor meet monthly with Wales Audit 

Office to understand and respond to their concerns. 

Tudalen 51



 

 
20 

 Regulators sit on Service Performance Challenges as agreed appropriate with the 

regulatory body. 

 Protocol developed for addressing recommendations from WAO national studies: 

services' response will be the subject of performance scrutiny and service 

challenge. 

 Procurement controls in place to minimise risk of Environment Act (2016) breaches 

through contracted construction work. 

Ancillary controls: 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Annual Governance Statement and Performance Self-Assessment are aligned. 

Relevant indicator of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CH012i: The cumulative number of negative reports from external regulators, 

financial year to date 

Assurance: 

 The joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023. (Links to Risk 01) 

 Internal Audit reviews forward work programme 

 External regulatory bodies. For example, CIW monitor progress through routine 

performance review activities and through a CIW local authority risk based 

approach to inspection planning. CIW is currently undertaking a national study of 

child placements in unregulated settings.  

 

Residual Risk  

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact  

Tudalen 52

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire


 

 
21 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Yes 

Further actions: 

Explore the following process changes with the procurement department: 

 Ask potential suppliers about any recorded breaches of environmental law 

 Include consideration of supplier’s record of breaches in the selection process for 

contractors 

 Review the standard contracts DCC offers suppliers to reduce risk of breaches 

occurring and to indemnify the council from any penalty for such breaches. 

Action Due Date: March 2025  

Person Responsible: Climate Change Manager  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 53



 

 
22 

Risk 14: The risk of a health & safety incident resulting in 

serious injury or the loss of life. (where H&S is referred to, this 

incorporates fire safety) 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews 

Risk Owner:  Gary Williams 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

Critical controls have been updated and the Residual Risk score remains as E2 – 

Moderate Risk: Rare / High Impact 

 

Description  

This could be as a result of unsafe acts, unsafe work places or ineffective H&S 

management. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This impact of this risk had previously been heightened as a consequence of risks 

associated with Covid-19. The risk has been reviewed and is considered to be static.  

Impact / Consequences 

 Serious injury or death of an employee and/or any other person. 

 Significant reputational damage 

 Substantial legal/litigation costs. 

 Criminal prosecution of staff or the organisation. 

Tudalen 54



 

 
23 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

Critical controls: 

 Dedicated health and safety team within property services that are responsible for 

elements for building safety. 

 In response to National concerns regarding Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated 

Concrete (RAAC) the Council has revisited surveys of schools and other buildings 

to identify the presence of RAAC and any measures required to mitigate any risk 

posed by it. 

 Many staff continue to work from home some or most of the time. The New Ways of 

Working Project team, led by our Corporate Director: Governance and Business, 

continues to monitor the situation. There may be risks associated with a potential 

lack of fire wardens and first aiders in the office buildings under these current 

working arrangements. This is being explored and any actions or solutions identified 

will be added to our controls. 

 Strategic leadership is provided by the Corporate Director: Governance and 

Business, with delegated responsibility for Health and Safety. 

 Competent H&S advisors are employed by the organisation to provide competent 

advice, guidance and training on H&S to all Council employees and services.  

 H&S maintain Service Level Agreements with all Local Authority Schools. 

 .A Corporate Health and Safety Policy is in place, which defines the H&S 

organisation and arrangements in the council. 

 There is an established H&S Management System in place. 

 H&S training programme focussed on council activities and the way we manage 

H&S. 

 “Managing safely in Denbighshire” training is mandatory for all managers. 

 The Corporate H&S team carry out a programme of targeted monitoring 

 An online accident, incident reporting process is in place. There is an expectation 

that all accidents and incidents are reported. 

Tudalen 55

http://linc-ad/sorce/beacon/default.aspx?pageid=corporate_health_and_safety_guidance
http://linc-ad/sorce/beacon/default.aspx?pageid=corporate_health__safety_training


 

 
24 

 An online Staff Protection Register where staff can search for or request the 

addition of records in connection with their authorised activities. All access requests 

are monitored by the system and records of all access is recorded by the system for 

auditing purposes.  

 Quarterly Health & Safety newsletter is published to keep staff up to date with 

health and safety management within the Council. 

Ancillary controls: 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 An established Corporate H&S Committee is in place as part of the Joint 

Consultative Committee for Health and Safety and Employee Relations which is a 

forum for the employer and employee representatives to discuss and consult on 

H&S. 

 A number of service level H&S committees meet to provide a forum for service 

managers and employee representatives to discuss and consult on H&S. 

 Significant H&S related accidents, incidents and near misses are investigated 

internally.  

 Schools have effective health and safety practices.  

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSPHS1001i RIDDOR accident rate (National measure – No. of RIDDOR x 

100,000 / No. of FTE employees) 

 PDA608m The percentage of properties with asbestos where a re-inspection has 

been carried out in line with the asbestos management plan 

 PDA607m The percentage of properties with a valid Fire Risk Assessment (please 

note asbestos, fire, water, gas, electricity etc. are building compliance risks rather 

than health and safety risks, although failure to manage will have a health and 

safety impact)  

Tudalen 56



 

 
25 

 Gas servicing, fixed wire testing and water hygiene are relevant indicators that are 

also monitored regularly 

Assurance: 

 Annual Corporate Health & Safety Report reported to Governance & Audit 

Committee.  The latest report presented in September 2024 for the period 2023/24.  

 Annual Property Compliance report which includes fire safety compliance, gas and 

electricity testing, asbestos re-inspection and legionella testing is reported to 

Governance & Audit Committee. The most recent report was presented in 

September 2024. 

Residual Risk 

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?   

Yes. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a cautious risk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 57

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
26 

Risk 21: The risk that the integration of health and social care 

services between BCUHB and DCC does not develop further 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Elen Heaton and Councillor Diane King 

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

 

Councillor Diane King has replaced Councillor Gill German as Lead Member. 

CET have closely monitored developments at the Health Board having particular regard to 

their potential impact on this risk.  Risk reviewed and updated. 

 

The residual risk score remains as C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

 

Description  

Integrated social care and health services and delivering on the Social Services and Well-

being (Wales) Act 2014 is a fundamental part of our partnership with the health board and 

more widely, across North Wales, through the Regional Partnership Board and the North 

Wales Social Care and Well-being Improvement Collaborative. 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB), which covers the whole of North 

Wales, was placed back in special measures on Monday 27, February 2023 having 

previously been in the category between 2015 and 2020.  Health at a local level, and the 

effectiveness of health and social care working together, is subject to increased political 

and regulatory scrutiny.  This requires a level of scrutiny and a strong commitment to 

partnership. There is a national agenda to drive effective partnership working.  

Relationship management and communication is critical to successful mitigation.  

Tudalen 58

https://socialcare.wales/hub/statutory-guidance
https://socialcare.wales/hub/statutory-guidance


 

 
27 

Since going back into special measures the Health Board has put an interim Chair and 

interim Chief Executive in post, however, there are still a number of interim posts at 

various levels which affects decision making. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The longer term impact of Covid-19 is becoming apparent but is by no means fully 

understood. The catch up required in routine/planned treatment, exacerbated health 

inequalities and hidden harms (due to not having treatment, mental health impact of 

Covid-19), all create a potential for challenge in the system, and therefore the relationship, 

which could affect delivery of integrated social care and health services in Denbighshire. 

The funding arrangements with Welsh Government create an ongoing friction.  

The partnership arrangements and relationships we have built means there is enough 

interface and opportunity to deal with issues before they become significant problems.  

However, the reinstatement of special measures means there is a possibility that this risk 

could increase in terms of both likelihood and impact (and sit further beyond our risk 

appetite), until such time the Board is no longer in special measures, the Board’s 

restructure settles or should our controls be ineffective. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Inefficient services 

 Gaps in service provision 

 Delays/failure to deliver joint projects 

 Reputational damage 

 Ability to meet statutory duties - Well-being of Future Generations Bill, Social 

Services and Well-being Act 

Inherent Risk  

A1 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / Very high impact 

Tudalen 59



 

 
28 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

Critical controls: 

 Delivery of the North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Plan.   

The 2022 to 2023 annual report was presented to Partnerships Scrutiny Committee 

on 12th September 2024. 

 The posts of Chief Executive and the Chair of the Health Board have been made 

permanent. 

 Other Senior posts remain as vacant or  interim and pose a challenge to the 

integration agenda. 

 The Regional Partnership Board and the North Wales Social Care and Well-being 

Improvement Collaborative have reviewed needs in relation to social care and 

health services as part of our population needs assessment (Social Services and 

Well-being (Wales) Act 2014). 

 Four Community Resource Teams have been established. 

 The Regional Partnership Board is in place to progress cooperation and integration. 

 BCUHB is a member of the Conwy/Denbighshire PSB, which has shared priorities 

and a shared governance vision. 

Ancillary controls: 

 We assume, as at last time the Board was put into special measures that an 

Assurance Board will be established.  The Council to look to engage with that Board 

and receive regular updates.  

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 NWWSIC has reviewed its governance arrangements in partnership with BCUHB. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

Tudalen 60

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
29 

 Pathways of Care: There is a requirement for each health board to measure 

delayed pathways of care activity via a monthly validated census with local authority 

partners. This will enable monitoring of the number and length of delays, plus their 

reasons, assisting NHS and LA partners in prioritising actions to alleviate delays.   

Qualitative indicators that describe what effective management/partnerships looks and 

feels like may be more appropriate in this instance. Such as, governance (e.g. Regional 

Partnership Board) and service level agreements, Memorandums of Understanding.  

Assurance: 

 Audit Wales: Urgent and Emergency Care: Flow Out of Hospital – North Wales 

Region was presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 25th September 

2024 

 Audit Wales has examined Regional Partnership Boards’ commissioning of older 

people’s care homes recently and a report was presented to Governance and Audit 

Committee in March 2022. 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact  

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Major risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. The Risk 

Owner has confirmed that they are comfortable that the scoring accurately reflects the 

current risk to the council. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 61

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6491&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6491&LLL=0


 

 
30 

Risk 31: The risk of fraud and corruption resulting in financial 

and reputational loss and possibly impacting on service 

delivery in the Corporate Risk Register 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

Indicators of the effectiveness of controls have been reviewed and revised.  New relevant 

indicators have been identified and will be developed with Corporate Support Services: 

People for this risk: 

This risk is a static risk, and our aim is to maintain it as a moderate risk. We would not 

foresee a time when this risk would not be on the risk register. 

 

Critical controls have been updated and the Residual Risk score remains unchanged as 

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High impact 

 

Description  

Denbighshire County Council employs around 4,500 staff and spends in excess of £300 

million per year. It commissions and provides a wide range of services to individuals and 

households and works with a wide range of private, public and voluntary sector 

organisations. 

As with any other large organisation, the size and nature of the Council’s services mean 

that there is an ongoing risk of loss due to fraud and corruption from both internal and 

external sources. There is also an ongoing risk of bribery as the Council provides and 

procures goods, works and services. The Council has therefore put in place proportionate 

systems to minimise this risk and these are kept under constant review. 

Tudalen 62



 

 
31 

The council recognises that as well as causing financial loss, fraud is also detrimental to 

the provision of services, and damaging to the reputation of, and confidence in, the council 

and public bodies in general. 

 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk is a static risk, and our aim is to maintain it as a moderate risk. We would not 

foresee a time when this risk would not be on the risk register. There are no performance 

measures currently available to quantify progress in reducing this risk. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Financial loss. 

 Loss of reputation and confidence in the council and public bodies in general. 

 Negative impact on service provision / delivery. 

 Negative impact on the council’s culture. 

 Legal / compensation costs. 

 Criminal prosecution. 

 Negative audit / inspection reports. 

 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

In its policies and procedures, the council gives out the clear message that it will not 

tolerate any impropriety by employees, elected Members or third party organisations. It 

has put in place appropriate and proportionate systems to minimise this risk and these are 

kept under constant review, including the following: 

Critical controls: 

 Internal Audit held Fraud Awareness Sessions for Schools in January 2023 to raise 

awareness and promote the Corporate Strategy for the Prevention and Detection of 

Fraud, Corruption and Bribery to schools. 

Tudalen 63



 

 
32 

 The fraud policy has been updated. 

 The Council has appointed a Corporate Director: Governance and Business. 

 The Governance & Audit Committee received in September 2023 the Annual 

Whistleblowing Report. 

 Internal Audit has conducted a review of ethical culture. As a result, we introduced 

clearer guidance about our code of conduct (for officers) to strengthen 

arrangements for declarations of conflicts and interests, including gifts and 

hospitality. 

 Strategy for the Prevention and Detection of Fraud, Corruption and Bribery which 

includes fraud response plan, was updated and ratified by Governance and Audit 

Committee in July 2021. The purpose of the Strategy and Fraud Response Plan is 

to provide management with a tool to ensure progress and transparency with 

regards to counter-fraud activities. It is designed to heighten the Council’s fraud 

resilience and demonstrate its protection and stewardship of public funds.  

 In developing this Strategy, the Council has adopted the guiding principles included 

in "Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020” (FFCL2020) which is the counter 

fraud and corruption strategy for local government. It provides a blueprint for a 

coordinated response to fraud and corruption perpetrated against local authorities 

with the support of those at the top. 

 IT systems have authorisation controls in place, which reduce the risk of fraud 

(remote working does not increase the risk) 

 The Code of Corporate Governance 

 The Code of Conduct for Elected Members has been updated with refresher 

training being rolled out in 2024 / early 2025 

 The Employees’ Code of Conduct is in the process of being updated and a 

refresher training carried out across services (by mid-2025) 

 Financial Regulations including Contract Procedure Rules 

 The Whistleblowing Policy 

 The Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 Recognition and monitoring of the risk of fraud in service risk registers 

 Systems of internal control 

 Recruitment processes include checks on identity and document verification  

Tudalen 64

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/prevention-and-detection-of-fraud-bribery-and-corruption-strategy.aspx
https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities/ffcl-strategy-2020#:~:text=Fighting%20Fraud%20and%20Corruption%20Locally%202020s%20is%20the%20counter%20fraud,of%20those%20at%20the%20top.


 

 
33 

 Bi-annual review of UK and local government fraud risk trends and emerging issues 

from Fraudscape shared with the Corporate Executive Team - 

https://www.fraudscape.co.uk/  

 Annual review by the council's Internal Audit team 

 Regular internal and external review of our systems and procedures using the FFCL 

Checklist 

 The risk of fraud and corruption is also managed at a service level. 

 

Ancillary controls: 

 The Communications team has a close working relationship with Internal Audit with 

relevant low assurance rated reports flagged up at an early stage.  

 Internal Audit team are due to launch a fraud awareness training package targeting 

2,500 staff at an up-coming leadership conference (2024/2025)  

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter, and seek opportunities to highlight the value of whistleblowing and 

consequences of fraud to individuals and the council. 

 Engagement with the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

 E-learning modules on Whistleblowing and Code of Conduct in place, and a 

mandatory e-learning module on Fraud is under development (due for launch early 

2025) 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

Indicators of the effectiveness of controls have been reviewed and revised.  The following 

new relevant indicators have been identified and will be developed with Corporate Support 

Services: People for this risk: 

 The number of whistleblowing incidences reported to DCC relevant to fraud  

 The number of disciplinary processes pursued relevant to fraud  

 The number of fraud issues referred to the police 

 The number of reported whistleblowing incidences related to fraud not pursued  

Tudalen 65

https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities/ffcl-strategy-2020#:~:text=Fighting%20Fraud%20and%20Corruption%20Locally%202020s%20is%20the%20counter%20fraud,of%20those%20at%20the%20top.
https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities/ffcl-strategy-2020#:~:text=Fighting%20Fraud%20and%20Corruption%20Locally%202020s%20is%20the%20counter%20fraud,of%20those%20at%20the%20top.


 

 
34 

 % of new employees where detailed identity checks completed  

 % of DCC funding schemes reviewed by fraud leads prior to launch 

 % of staff trained in fraud awareness (training package under development) 

 

Residual Risk  

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 66



 

 
35 

 

Risk 34: The risk that there is insufficient regulated care 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Diane King and Councillor Elen Heaton 

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

September 2024 review: 

 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

 

Councillor Diane King has replaced Councillor Gill German as Lead Member. 

The residual risk score remains the same:  B2 – Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact. 

 

Description  

Availability of some regulatory adult and child service can be scarce, leading to the 

requirement to provide alternative and/or expensive services. A reduction in the availability 

of domiciliary care provision means we find it challenging to provide services needed 

(particularly in the south of the county). 

This continues to be a significant risk. We were in a position of having circa 1,000 hours 

that we were unable to meet / commission for domiciliary care agency allocation (some of 

which had been handed back by providers exiting the market). Although this figure is 

reducing as we have now managed to bring that figure down to just under 500 hours this is 

still being managed extremely closely. 

As previously highlighted, the reasons for this situation are summarised as follows: 

 

 Recruitment and retention – This is a national issue for the care sector. At the 

root of this are many factors, including the relatively low wages, high demands, and 

sometimes a perceived lack of esteem/value in the care career path. Even internally 

in DCC, we struggle to recruit to care work positions. 

Tudalen 67



 

 
36 

 Increase in scale and complexity of needs – The ageing population brings 

obvious additional pressures in this area. We have seen an increase in need for 

double‐handed packages. Some individuals currently awaiting domiciliary care have 

also had previous agencies withdraw, due to their being unable to manage the 

level/complexity of need. 

 Denbighshire’s rural geography – This presents a number of challenges, 

including because of costs, e.g. travel time can make a rural care package much 

less attractive to prospective providers, and recruitment, e.g. as usually care 

workers covering more rural areas must be able to drive. 

 Citizens’ choice – A number of individuals currently awaiting care have been made 

offers that they have declined, on the basis that they are unhappy with the specific 

hours being offered.  

 The prevention and reablement agenda – Enabling people to remain independent 

and prevent the need for residential care, prolonged hospital stays etc. as far as 

possible ‐ while of course significant wellbeing goals and priorities for the council ‐ 

naturally creates additional pressures on domiciliary care/interim services. 

 

The wider long-term consequences of the pandemic are also making this issue more 

challenging. People are also making life changes with some leaving the sector altogether.  

The risk is also heightened as a result of risk 50. The Welsh Government’s Programme for 

Government makes a commitment to ‘eliminate private profit from the care of Children 

Looked After during the next Senedd term’. The objective of removing profit is a positive 

one and it has the region’s resounding commitment.  However, it is imperative that Welsh 

Government take steps in pursuit of not-for-profit arrangements that do not disrupt children 

and young people’s lives in the short term. Our key concern is that providers become 

unsettled and the sufficiency and suitability of placements will be affected, affecting the 

lives of Children Looked After, and increases this risk that demand for specialist care 

cannot be met locally. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

Currently, the risk associated with us being unable to meet the demand for regulated care 

locally is a critical risk, which is beyond our appetite. In the longer term, we hope to bring 

Tudalen 68



 

 
37 

the risk under control and return to a ‘business as usual’ scenario. It is not clear how long 

this will take. 

Impact / Consequences  

 High cost 

 Individuals with eligible needs unable to receive suitable domiciliary care due to lack 

of resources and service provision 

 If far from home, there is a detrimental impact on a client's well-being (and that of 

their family) 

 Unable to meet need in preferred language 

 Staff become over-stretched 

 Reputational damage. 

Inherent Risk  

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / High Impact  

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

These critical controls relate to action being taken to deal with the current demand and 
challenges for domiciliary care provision in the county: 

 Develop a new Children’s Assessment Centre (Bwthyn y Ddôl) jointly with Conwy 

CBC.  This is an ongoing project.    

 Micro‐enterprises/micro providers has been brought back in-house, previously we 

paid a provider called Community Catalysts to run our Micro-Provider project.  We 

now directly employ a full-time Deputy Team manager to run the service whose role 

includes: recruitment, training and monitoring of micro-providers. Maintenance of 

the Micro-Provider Directory.  Promoting Micro-Providers as an effective alternative 

to traditional forms of care support, amongst health and social care staff designing 

packages of care for vulnerable citizens and their un-paid carers.   

Tudalen 69



 

 
38 

 Denbighshire now has a pool of over 50 Micro-Providers.  Collectively, the 52 

businesses provide around 850 hours of care and support in Denbighshire to over 

220 residents each week. 

 Implementation of Welsh Government’s decision to fund the Real Living Wage 

(RLW) for registered social workers. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Our in‐house teams (Reablement, Interim and Health & Social Care Support 

Workers) are covering as many outstanding care packages as possible. 

 We are currently looking at how we can safely (in compliance with CIW/SCW 

requirements) draw on more support from other internal social care staff who do not 

currently deliver personal care. 

 Working closely with health colleagues to manage workload and explore the 

potential to tap into their care applicants. 

 Continue to explore alternative ways of meeting people’s needs, within a strengths‐

based, enabling approach.  

 We are working with Procurement to look at contractual arrangements to respond to 

the exceptional circumstances. 

 We are returning to discussions with other local authorities to look at opportunities 

for joint commissioning. 

 We will continue working to ensure that carers have the support they need. 

 We are looking at ways that we can try to manage the expectations of 

citizens/families; to continue to honour preference as much as possible, while at the 

same time ensuring that we are realistic about what we can provide, and that we 

are ultimately led by need.  

Critical controls under usual circumstances include: 

 Single Point of Access is fully established and proving successful in providing 

advice and information to individuals in order for them to access community 

services themselves. 

Tudalen 70



 

 
39 

 Community Led Conversations 'What Matters' project changing the way staff 

support individuals enabling them to take control of their own well-being and 

utilising other external resources where possible. 

 Developing a range of staff skill mixes through workforce development in order to 

enable staff to work in new ways that complement the new government agenda. 

 Series of meetings with providers across Adult Social Care are underway to discuss 

annual fee setting process. 

 Review and re-assessment project to ensure individuals are still eligible under new 

criteria  

 Further development of support budgets 

 Regional project considering issues. 

 Recommissioning domiciliary care project in progress - this includes the 

implementation of the new regional domiciliary care framework in Denbighshire to 

include patch based commissioning for difficult rural areas.  

A number of posts remain un-recruited to Reablement and Health and Social Care 

in the south of Denbighshire.  This does limit our ability to pick up care packages.  

We have successfully recruited 4 staff members who will work across the whole of 

Denbighshire with the more complex cases, however this is funded with temporary 

funding.  We continue to work on a rolling recruitment programme with the support 

from a dedicated HR officer.   

 

Ancillary controls: 

 Recruitment fayres taken place in county to highlight the need for specific health 

and social care staff. 

 Continue to look at the use of grant monies in creative and combined ways to 

deliver better solutions. 

 CIW national review of domiciliary care - implementing recommendations. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 Vacancies (internal and external) and recruitment activity 

 Budget variance 

Tudalen 71



 

 
40 

 ASCHAD005:  Of the number of new assessments completed for adults, the 

number where needs were only able to be met with a care and support plan 

Assurance: 

 CIW monitor progress through routine performance review activities and through a 

CIW local authority risk based approach to inspection planning. 

Residual Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. The Risk 

Owner, together with the Head of Childrens Services, are actively managing this risk to 

bring it back under control. This is a national issue though and one that is unlikely to be 

resolved quickly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 72



 

 
41 

Risk 37: The risk that partners don't have the resources, 

matching priorities or commitment to support delivery of 

shared plans and priorities 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Jason McLellan 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

September 2024 update: 

 

The risk has been reviewed and updated. 

The residual risk score remains unchanged as : C2 – Major risk: Possible / High Impact 

 

Description  

With finite resources and competing priorities, there is a risk of a lack of commitment or 

capacity within strategic partner organisations to support shared plans, priorities and 

outcomes. 

In delivering services to our communities the Council is reliant on a number of strategic 

partners including Health (inc Public Health Wales), North Wales Police, National 

Resources Wales, Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council, City/Town/Community 

Councils, neighbouring authorities, etc. 

There is a complex structure of regional working, including Corporate Joint Committees 

(CJC), North Wales Economic Ambition Board (Ambition North Wales), Regional 

Partnership Board (RPB), Conwy & Denbighshire Public Service Board (PSB), Safer 

Communities Board etc. Much resource goes into attending and servicing these structures, 

but with budget pressures the risk is they become less effective, impacting on our ability to 

provide services to our communities. The biggest impact is likely to be on our more 

deprived communities. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

Tudalen 73



 

 
42 

We therefore do not expect the risk to diminish in likelihood or severity soon.  

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Very Likely / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls (strategic relevance): 

 Denbighshire is represented at collaborative boards by senior managers and/or 

political leadership, for example, at the Regional Partnership Board (Corporate 

Director Social Services & Education and Lead Member Health & Social Care), 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board (CEO and Leader), Conwy & Denbighshire 

Public Service Board (CEO and Leader) etc 

 Collaborative plans and priorities have been developed by the regional boards for 

which there is commitment from partners. 

 Our Corporate Plan 2022 to 2027 has been approved, with Pledges that specifically 

address the need for working with partners 

 Partnership and Alternative Service Delivery Model Toolkit recommends an annual 

review of partnerships to ensure membership and shared commitment remains 

relevant. 

 

Ancillary control: 

 Corporate Director Economy & Environment has regular meetings with senior 

management in NRW. 

Assurance: 

 Feedback from the Welsh Government and the Well-being of Future Generations 

Commissioner on the Public Service Board’s Well-being Assessment and Well-

being Plan. 

 

Impact / Consequences  

 Objectives not delivered. 

Tudalen 74

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/corporate-plan.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/documents/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/alternative-service-delivery-model-toolkit-oct2021.pdf


 

 
43 

 Failure to maximise opportunities to collaborate to resolve issues no single 

organisation is responsible for or capable of resolving on its own. 

 Ineffective management of expectations among partners/public/Members leading to 

reputational damage. 

 Investment of council resources with minimal return. 

 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major risk: Possible / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes. This risk fits within our open risk appetite in relation to operational and policy delivery. 

Further actions: 

To explore further the organisations understanding of current partnerships and support 

discussions at HoS, Directors, and/or Cabinet level as appropriate as to where 

partnerships aren’t delivering as hoped. 

Action due date: 31 October 2024 

Person Responsible: Chief Internal Auditor 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 75



 

 
44 

Risk 45: The risk to the Council’s reputation of not responding 

swiftly or sufficiently enough in making our contribution to 

tackle climate change and bring about natures recovery 

following the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological 

Emergency in July 2019. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Barry Mellor 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

Description  

Since declaring a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in July 2019, we have 

adopted the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy (2021-2030) and put in place the 

Climate and Ecological Change Programme to deliver on the strategy goals to become a 

net carbon zero and ecologically positive council by 2030. This Strategy was reviewed and 

refreshed in 2024 and renamed the Climate and Nature Strategy. The refreshed strategy 

was adopted by Council in July 2024. The delivery of Climate and Ecological Change 

Programme is a large part of the Council’s A Greener Denbighshire theme within the 

Council’s Corporate Plan 2022-2027. In addition to aspects around supporting 

communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of climate change. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

September 2024 update 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

Further actions have been updated : Actions 3 to 5 regarding the review and refresh of 

the Strategy were completed. 

The residual risk score remains unchanged as C2 – Major: Possible / High Impact 

Tudalen 76

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx
http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6882&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
45 

This risk is not within our risk appetite. Following positive feedback from Audit Wales on 

our programme management and organisational ambition on this agenda we are 

reassured that we have a well-scoped action plan in place. However, a national report 

about the public sector’s response more generally, to becoming carbon neutral by 2030, 

broadly says organisations need to be bold and take risks if they are to stand a chance of 

meeting this ambitious target. Analysis of 2022/23 data suggests we are not currently 

delivering at the pace required for us to feel assured we will achieve Net Carbon Zero 

Council by 2030 and interdependencies of elements outside our control is also a limiting 

factor. The assessment for Ecologically Positive Council by 2030 is more promising 

although recent challenges with extending wildflower meadow grassland management 

approaches are acknowledged as concerning to further progress on this goal. We will be 

reviewing the Strategy, its scope, the targets within and our now 7-year Programme during 

2023/24. Careful communication planning will be required as part of that process and 

through the decision making board process the revised strategy document will go through 

(performance scrutiny, cabinet and council). This risk will require regular management to 

ensure controls are working as intended. We expect the likelihood to reduce, although the 

impact is anticipated to remain high.  

Impact / Consequences  

 Damage to the organisations credibility and reputation. 

 Public complaints and protest. 

 Deteriorating staff morale. 

 Inability to meet statutory obligations and avoid legislative offenses. 

 Opportunity loss in coproduction approaches with communities and partners around 

climate change impact, climate risk resilience and nature recovery. 

 Opportunity loss in securing external funding for work in this area. 

 

Inherent Risk  

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost Certain / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

Tudalen 77



 

 
46 

 2023/24 Strategy Review and Refresh work has been completed. It received public 

involvement and engagement through surveys and a workshop held in November 

2023. 

 The strategy was adopted by Council in July 2024.  

 Analysis of net carbon zero performance to date and forecasted progress to 2030 

following 2022/23 data return indicates there is a gap between what we forecast 

can be achieved and the carbon reduction/carbon sequestration increase targets.  

 A national report about the public sector’s response more generally, to becoming 

carbon neutral by 2030, broadly says organisations need to be bold and take risks 

now if they are to stand a chance of meeting this ambitious target.  

 The Climate Change and Ecological Emergency cross party political working group 

has been re-established and is meeting regularly. Cross party consensus around 

being upfront with our knowledge to date on progress and forecast within the 

updated strategy document. 

 Communication representatives on the Greener Denbighshire Board and cross 

party political working group to enable the Communications Team to manage media 

and public relations and internal communications on the matter. 

 Effective programme management is in place, including communications and risk 

management. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss.  

 Climate Change team has been established, with a programme board in place. 

Resource plans are in place for services for key areas of the Climate and Ecological 

Change Programme. 

 We have secured budget to deliver the 2023/24 programme, including recruiting a 

procurement business partner to reduce emissions in our procurements. Other roles 

being explored will largely be expansions of existing roles and teams.  

 The Climate and Ecological Change programme actively seek opportunities for 

external grant funding 

 Introduction to Climate Change training is available to all staff. All but one of the 

Senior Leadership Team have attended a one-day accredited Carbon Literacy 

course. Intranet pages launched to increase awareness of staff to the contribution 

they can make. 

Tudalen 78

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6882&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
47 

 Active participation in national, regional and local strategy and operational groups to 

leverage benefits from collaboration. 

 Active engagement with Environmental Representative groups active in 

Denbighshire. Public engagement within strategy review and refresh every 3 years. 

 Procurement controls in place to minimise risk of Environment Act (2016) breaches 

through contracted construction work. 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: 

 NCZCORP: Net Carbon Zero - Total carbon tonnage emitted and absorbed by the 

council (excluding supply chains)  

 CTOTALCORP: Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) for the Net Carbon 

Zero goal 

 STOTALCORP: Total carbon tonnage sequested (Corporately) for the Net Carbon 

Zero goal 

 SRHIGHCORP: Percentage of DCC owned and operated land in highest categories 

of species richness  

 SRLOWCORP: Percentage of DCC owned and operated land in lowest categories 

of species richness 

 

Assurance: 

 Internal Audit Review planning prompts for testing-related controls in all relevant 

projects 

 Office Accommodation Internal Audit Review 2020 

 Included in Internal Audit 2022/23 plan 

 Audit Wales – Delivering Environmental Ambitions 2020-21 

 Audit Wales – Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030 

 Verto reporting capability to track projects that help, hinder or are neutral to carbon 

management and nature recovery 

. 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major: Possible / High Impact 

Tudalen 79



 

 
48 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Major risk. Risk Appetite suggests this risk should/could be tolerated as a major risk as 

long as appropriate steps have been taken to proactively manage community relations and 

media and coverage.  Although, clearly, our ambition is to meet the 2030 goals, we hope 

to be able to reduce the likelihood of the risk closer to 2030 once sufficient benefits and 

positive impacts have been achieved. 

Further actions: 

1. Ensure all of SLT, including any new members, attend one-day carbon literacy training 

Action Due Date: Rolling  

Person Responsible: Climate Change  Manager  

2. Roll out ecological literacy training  

Action Due Date: 31/03/2025 

Person Responsible: Climate Change  Manager  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 80



 

 
49 

Risk 48: The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to 

a loss of expertise and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate 

performance 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews, Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

While pressures in relation to recruitment and retention in social care and health, in 

particular, are acute, the risk level across the organisation and across all services remains 

the same as it was in July 2024.   

The residual risk score remains unchanged as: B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

 

Description  

The Council has a regular turnover off staff as individuals move on for a host of reasons. A 

number of service areas then face difficulties to recruit to those vacancies, particularly but 

not limited to critical front line social care and highways and environment roles. This is a 

national issue. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

From a corporate perspective the risk is likely to reduce as we embark upon finding 

significant savings. Vacant posts may need to be deleted from the structure to contribute 

to savings or be left open to offer redeployment opportunities in connection with savings 

elsewhere. It is anticipated that certain Services will retain the risk in their Service Risk 

Registers. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Failure to recruit to and retain staff in key roles, including front line positions 

Tudalen 81



 

 
50 

 Difficulty in sustaining services 

 Difficulty meeting statutory requirements 

 Declining performance in critical areas, particularly Childrens’ Services. 

 Deteriorating staff morale/well-being 

 Increased pressure on middle and senior managers 

 Well-being of staff members expected to cover additional work due to the Council 

carrying a high number of vacant posts 

 

Inherent Risk  

B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Services are taking specific actions, to deliver targeted recruitment programmes. This risk 

though captures the impact on the organisation corporately and the following controls 

reflect a corporate response. Whilst these controls are regarded as important to undertake, 

we are not currently certain that they will reduce the risk. There are regional and national 

pressures around recruitment and retention and some of these pressures may resolve 

themselves.  

Critical controls: 

 The Council has completed the review of the Senior Leadership Team structure and 

has successfully recruited to all vacant SLT posts. 

 Corporate Plan Theme – A Well-Run, High Performing Council will be considering 

issues of retention and recruitment. 

 An Internal Audit has been completed of the workforce plan action plan, reported to  

Governance and Audit Committee in July 2023. 

In summary, the report confirmed that Human Resources (HR) have robust HR 

initiatives and strategies in place to support the Corporate Workforce Plan. The 

development of some policies and guidance has been delayed due to vacancies 

within the team and workload pressures, however these have new revised 

completion dates. 

Tudalen 82

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
51 

 Workforce planning actions are underway to progress the findings of the corporate 

and service-level workforce planning reviews. There continues to be a significant 

focus on recruitment, especially in social care and health roles. A six monthly 

update report on delivery of the action plan was presented to the Corporate 

Executive and Senior Leadership Teams during the period. An annual update was 

presented in April 2023. 

 A Group has been established looking a recruitment issue in social care, chaired by 

the Corporate Director for Social Services & Education. An action plan has been 

developed. 

 Work is taking place regionally to tackle particular/acute recruitment issues (such as 

those in social care and health).  

Ancillary controls: 

 The Denbighshire County Council Pay Grading Structure will need reviewing 

 Activities that are likely to be considered in relation to a taking a corporate approach 

to the issue could include a review of our marketing, recruitment process, and how 

managers and 121s support learning and development.  

 Work experience, career grade job roles, apprenticeships are available in the council. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 LHRD10i: % of people who started in the last 12 months and who are still working 

for DCC 

Qualitative indicators (delivery of activities): 

 CPCSP6a: Undertake an annual review of the Corporate Workforce Plan 2022 to 

2027 

 CPASCH4001a: Deliver the action plan of the Social Care Recruitment and 

Retention Operational group 

Assurance: 

Tudalen 83



 

 
52 

 An Internal Audit has been completed of the workforce plan action plan, reported to  

Governance and Audit Committee in July 2023 (see above under Critical Controls). 

Residual Risk  

B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes. If operational and policy delivery is regarded as the most significant impact, our risk 

appetite in this regard is open.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 84

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
53 

Risk 50: The risk that Welsh Government’s commitment to 

eliminate profit from the care of Children Looked After results 

in an unstable or unsuitable supply of placements 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Diane King  

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

September 2024 review: 

This risk has been agreed Regionally for inclusion in Corporate Risk Registers 

 

Councillor Diane King has replaced Councillor Gill German as Lead Member. 

The risk has been reviewed and in some cases, where a placement is necessary but 

cannot be sourced due to national placement insufficiency a bespoke arrangement may 

have to be established.  In this regard the residual risk score remains as B2 – Critical Risk: 

Highly Likely and High Impact.  

Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk.  

We continue to monitor the long-term implications of this commitment from Welsh 

Government on adult placements.  For now, the risk Lead Member is Councillor Diane 

King but should it become a risk for adult placements Councillor Elen Heaton will be added 

as a Lead Member. 

Description  

The Welsh Government’s Programme for Government makes a commitment to ‘eliminate 

private profit from the care of Children Looked After during the next Senedd term’. 

The objective of removing profit is a positive one and it has the region’s resounding 

commitment.  However, it is imperative that Welsh Government take steps in pursuit of 

not-for-profit arrangements that do not disrupt children and young people’s lives in the 

short term. 

Tudalen 85



 

 
54 

Our key concern is that providers become unsettled and the sufficiency and suitability of 

placements will be affected, affecting the lives of Children Looked After. 

This risk is closely linked to risk 34 (The risk that there is insufficient regulated care) 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk has been regionally agreed. We will review the anticipated direction of travel as 

our management of this risk progresses over the next few months. We always felt this 

would take time to be resolved but there have been delays, but there is a real desire from 

Welsh Government to implement but it is a complex and challenging issue to resolve. It is 

becoming more challenging to find placements. In some cases, where a placement is 

necessary but cannot be sourced due to national placement insufficiency a bespoke 

arrangement may have to be established. This is known by CIW as Operating Without 

Registration (OWR) and is an offence. Work is ongoing between CIW, ADSSC, AWHoCS 

and WLGA to agree a process for the monitoring of OWRs. It is accepted that national 

placement insufficiency is leading to an increased use of OWR arrangements. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Reduction in the number of placements for Children Looked After both generally 

and within the region or reasonable travel distance to the region. 

 Current placements will be destabilised. 

 Reduced investment in the area to develop local supply by private providers. 

 Inability to source placements may result in the establishment of an emergency 

bespoke provision, contrary to regulations (OWR). 

Inherent Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Highly likely and High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

Tudalen 86



 

 
55 

 Work with Welsh Government to ensure children are supported as close to home as 

possible. 

 Raise the issues connected with this approach with Welsh Government and stress 

that a detailed and informed approach, attuned timing, and compatible messaging 

is essential to the competent management of the journey. 

 Identify other alternative provision that is available 

 Raise awareness within the Regional Partnership Board and partner organisations. 

 The Regional Commissioning Board to consider other models such as In-house 

delivery 

Ancillary controls:  

 None. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 Costs associated with care for CLA will be available. 

Residual Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Highly likely and High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council's 

Risk Appetite?  

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 87



 

 
56 

Risk 51: The risk that the economic and financial environment 

worsens and results in the Council’s inability to set a balanced 

budget. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Liz Thomas 

September 2024 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated to reflect current assumptions in Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Residual risk remains as C1 – Critical Risk: Possible / Very High Impact 

Description  

The Local Government provisional settlement for 2024 to 2025 was 3.6% (on cash year on 

year comparison), this compares to a settlement of 8.2% in 2023 to 2024. There continues 

to significant demand led pressures related to inflation (e.g. pay,), social care, and support 

for schools, that are outside of the council’s ability to fully control.  

The economy has suffered several shocks in recent years. Leaving the European Union, 

Covid-19, war in Ukraine and increases in cost of living. Cost of fuel, goods and services 

have increased due to high levels of inflation in the UK, prompting The Bank of England to 

increase base rates.  

Although the Council’s budgetary position is based on a range of assumptions and 

estimates that can change, the projections at budget setting time indicated that pressures 

of £24.5m for 2024/25 required funding. The budget was balanced by the increase in 

funding from WG (provisional settlement equated to an additional £6.7m), savings totalling 

£10.4m and a Council Tax yield of £7.5m.  £10.4m is a significant and ambitious level of 

savings to deliver in a single year and comes with risk.  At the time of setting the budget 

services were working through how to achieve their share of £3m (part of the £10.4m).  

Council Tax was increased by 8.23% for council services and 1.11% for the increase in the 

fire levy, a combined total of 9.34%.  Similar pressures are being experienced by other 

Welsh local authorities.   

Tudalen 88



 

 
57 

The position for the medium term (2025/26 and 2026/27) within the Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) look as equally as challenging as 2024/25.  The costs of delivering 

services are forecast to increase by £12m to £26m in 2025/26, and £14m to £25m in 

2026/27.  Funding is even more uncertain as the current UK Government spending plans 

end in 2024 to 2025 and therefore WG cannot provide an indicative settlement for that 

year.  Based on information from the Wales Fiscal Analysis the Council is planning for no 

increase in funding for WG in the next 2 years, which coincides with continued increases 

for demand in services and costs pressures.  The current MTFP includes a range for 

Council Tax increases between 6% and 12%, even with a working assumption of Council 

Tax increase of 9%, there is an estimated gap of £12m to set a balance budget in 

2025/26.  (Please note: no decisions regarding Council Tax have been made).   

Any plans require the approval of Cabinet and in some instances Council, and must be 

implemented in a timely manner that complies with legislation.  While the budget process 

has been successful historically the Council has never faced the scale of financial 

challenges that we are currently. Substantial savings need to be made by the local 

authority and the political environment remains sensitive. 

As decisions are becoming harder lead in times are becoming longer. Decisions may 

become more challenging as the financial and economic environment becomes tighter. 

The main areas of pressure relate to: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this pressure relates to the ever increasing demand due to 

need and demographic pressure. It is also impacted by inflationary pressures 

especially the annual increase in the Real Living Wage and the impact this has on 

the care home fees that are agreed on an annual basis. 

 Childrens’ Services – the main driver of pressures in this area is the increasing 

number and cost of external placements. 

 Pay and grading – the pressure for increases in public sector pay is a major 

concern for the Council’s finances when the expected settlement falls well short of 

inflation. It is expected that due to the RLW increasing at an even higher rate over a 

number of years that the Council’s whole grading structure will need to be 

redesigned – a project team has been established to carry out this work and we 

await the results of the 2024 pay negotiations before this work can be progressed. 

Tudalen 89



 

 
58 

 School Budgets – the Council provides schools with inflationary pressures each 

year and then decides whether or not a savings target is applied. All the inflationary 

pressures (e.g. pay and energy) also impact schools’ budgets. 

 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk remains outside of our risk appetite, and has the potential to worsen, as the scale 

of financial challenge has become clearer. We do have control on the likelihood of not 

being able to deliver a balanced budget, based on the decision-making processes we put 

in place.  The outlook has deteriorated significantly over the last twelve months. The 

outlook for public bodies has worsened and we expect that financial settlements won’t 

keep up with the increasing demands and complexity for services from the most vulnerable 

in our society - at least in the near term. We continue to work closely with the WLGA and 

Welsh Government to ensure everyone is aware of the situation. Services have already 

made significant savings over the last 13 years and further savings will result in reductions 

in service which will be more difficult to prioritise and deliver. 

The direction of travel on the particular pressures are summarised below: 

 Social Care (Adults) –  the pressure (excluding pay) in 2023/24 was £8.2m, £8m in 

2024/2025 and a further pressure of £4.2m has been included for 2025 to 2026.  

 Childrens’ Services - the pressure (excluding pay) in 2023/24 was £2.7m, £2m in 

2024/25 and a further pressure of £4.3m has been included for 2025 to 2026. 

 Pay and grading - this year the estimated pay pressure is included at £4m (unions 

balloting members for industrial action as this report is being written), a further 

pressure of around £3.5m is expected for 2025 to 2026. On top of this core 

pressure, the impact of the grading issue is currently included at a high level 

estimate of £3m  

 School Budgets – Inflationary and demographic pressures of £7.6m was included in 

the 2024 to 2025 budgets. After which a savings target of 3% was applied bringing 

the net position to an increase of schools’ budgets of £4.9m. For 2025 to 2026  

pressure of £4.7m is forecasts – however a savings target will be required and 

schools have asked to plan for savings target of between 3% - 5%.  

Tudalen 90



 

 
59 

Impact / Consequences  

 The council experiences increased costs. 

 The council’s ambition and the scope of projects and programmes are curtailed due 

to increased costs. 

 Stretched resources, affecting our ability to deliver on statutory functions. 

 Low staff morale. 

 Regulatory action, and poor reputation if unprepared. 

 Reputational damage. 

 Ultimately the risk is that the Council cannot set a balanced budget which may lead 

to the issuing of a Section 114 notice and external intervention. 

 

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

The council has no control over the global economy or the WG settlement. Therefore, the 

inherent and residual risk scores are likely to remain high. 

Critical controls: 

 Since September 2024 we are currently having two weekly CET and Cabinet 

meetings to discuss the Council’s financial position, this group is now called the 

Budget and Transformation Board. This forms the basis of how we identify the 

efficiencies, savings and cuts necessary in order to ensure the financial 

sustainability of the council.  Each major savings proposal is shared with all 

Members through a report and a workshop session, and a detailed plan is 

developed including communication before final decisions are made.  

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is reported regularly to Cabinet, 

Governance and Audit Committee and Performance Scrutiny.  This includes high 

level plans for the transformation of the Council to make longer term savings.   

 Our level of financial reserves are kept at a sensible level so that shocks to 

economy can be dealt with. 

Tudalen 91



 

 
60 

 The collaborative approach to partnership working and sharing lessons learned 

during the Covid-19 pandemic (with Welsh Government and the Welsh Local 

Government Association) has been mutually beneficial and we hope that this same 

approach could be established should we experience further economic shocks in 

the future. Working collaboratively, pan Wales, has been an effective way to 

develop solutions. However the financial capacity for Welsh Government to help is 

also very limited. 

 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is refreshed periodically throughout the 

financial year, contains different scenarios to try to ensure that it can deal with 

changes in the external environment and is reported regularly alongside the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

 We try to reduce the likelihood of this risk occurring, where we can, for example 

through individual, regional, national lobbying and through other meetings/fora. 

 Annual, detailed budget setting process that considers economic environment 

 Regular (usually monthly) financial planning meetings between services and 

management accountants are in place.  Financial management will be strengthened 

in year, by the introduction of tracking savings monthly that are reported regularly.  

Enabling early identification of any issues, so prompt action can be taken. 

 The Procurement Team supports services to ensure value for money and explore 

collaborative procurement where that may be a possibility.  

 The budget setting process involves Members, so they understand that difficult 

decisions are necessary, and they are involved with developing the proposals. This 

should make them more likely to support the recommendations made. 

 

Ancillary controls: 

 A detailed Communications Strategy has been developed to ensure that all 

stakeholders are informed and can have input into the budget process. Monthly 

meetings are held to monitor the progress of the detailed Communications Action 

Plan. This aims to provide clear communications around financial challenges and 

the budget process to Members and we try to ensure our residents are informed 

about how the council is funded and spends its funds. 

 

Tudalen 92



 

 
61 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: During 2024/25 the Head of Finance 

and Audit’s service plan includes key performance indicators that are associated with 

effective management of this risk and provides a monthly budget report to Cabinet. 

 FINA101m The % of required efficiency savings identified for next year (Quarterly) 

 FINA102m The % of required efficiency savings achieved for this year (Quarterly) 

 Council reserves (£k) 

 

Key performance indicators regards budget and savings are included in all service plans.   

Assurance: 

 The Budget Strategy is being reviewed regularly by the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

Residual Risk  

C1 – Critical Risk: Possible / Very High Impact 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 93



 

 
62 

Risk 52: The risk that insufficient funding leads to withdrawal 

or scaling back of services, even when a balanced budget is 

delivered 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

September 2024 update: 

 

The risk has been reviewed and updated. 

Residual risk score remains as :  B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

 

Description  

Description  

The Local Government provisional settlement for 2024 to 2025 is 3.6% (on cash year on 

year comparison), this compares to a settlement of 8.2% in 2023 to 2024. There continues 

to be an ever growing list of significant economic and demand led pressures related to 

inflation (e.g. pay, energy), social care, support for schools, and homelessness that are 

outside of the council’s ability to fully control.  

The economy has suffered several shocks in recent years. Leaving the European Union, 

Covid-19, war in Ukraine and increases in cost of living. Cost of fuel, goods and services 

have increased due to high levels of inflation in the UK, prompting The Bank of England to 

increase base rates.  

Although the Council’s budgetary position is based on a range of assumptions and 

estimates that can change, the projections at budget setting time indicated that pressures 

of £24.5m for 2024/25 required funding.. The budget was balanced by the increase in 

funding from WG (provisional settlement equated to an additional £6.7m), savings totalling 

£10.4m and a Council Tax yield of £7.5m.  £10.4m is a significant and ambitious level of 

savings to deliver in a single year and comes with risk.  At the time of setting the budget 

Tudalen 94



 

 
63 

services were working through how to achieve their share of £3m (part of the £10.4m).  

Council Tax was increased by 8.23% for council services and 1.11% for the increase in the 

fire levy, a combined total of 9.34%.  Similar pressures are being experienced by other 

Welsh local authorities. 

As decisions are becoming harder lead in times are becoming longer. Decisions may 

become more challenging as the financial and economic environment becomes tighter. 

The main areas of pressure relate to: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this pressure relates to the ever increasing demand due to 

need and demographic pressure. It is also impacted by inflationary pressures 

especially the annual increase in the Real Living Wage and the impact this has on 

the care home fees that are agreed on an annual basis. 

 Childrens’ Services – the main driver of pressures in this area is the increasing 

number and cost of external placements. 

 Pay and grading – the pressure for increases in public sector pay is a major 

concern for the Council’s finances when the expected settlement falls well short of 

inflation. It is expected that due to the RLW increasing at an even higher rate over a 

number of years that the Council’s whole grading structure will need to be 

redesigned – a project team has been established to carry out this work and we 

await the results of the 2024 pay negotiations before this work can be progressed. 

 School Budgets – the Council provides schools with inflationary pressures each 

year and then decides whether or not a savings target is applied. All the inflationary 

pressures (e.g. pay and energy) also impact schools’ budgets. 

 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk remains outside of our risk appetite, and has the potential to worsen, as the scale 

of financial challenge has become clearer. We do have control on the likelihood of not 

being able to deliver a balanced budget, based on the decision-making processes we put 

in place.  The outlook has deteriorated significantly over the last twelve months. The 

Tudalen 95



 

 
64 

outlook for public bodies has worsened and we are expecting a return to financial 

settlements well below the rate of inflation - at least in the near term. We continue to work 

closely with the WLGA and Welsh Government to ensure everyone is aware of the 

situation. Services have already made significant savings over the last 13 years and 

further savings will result in reductions in service which will be more difficult to prioritise 

and deliver. 

The direction of travel on the particular pressures are summarised below: 

 Social Care (Adults) –  the pressure (excluding pay) in 2023/24 was £8.2m, £8m in 

2024/2025 and a further pressure of £4.2m has been included for 2025 to 2026.  

 Childrens’ Services - the pressure (excluding pay) in 2023/24 was £2.7m, £2m in 

2024/25 and a further pressure of £4.3m has been included for 2025 to 2026. 

 Pay and grading - this year the estimated pay pressure is included at £4m (unions 

balloting members for industrial action as this report is being written), a further 

pressure of around £3.5m is expected for 2025 to 2026. On top of this core 

pressure, the impact of the grading issue is currently included at a high level 

estimate of £3m  

 School Budgets – Inflationary and demographic pressures of £7.6m was included in 

the 2024 to 2025 budgets. After which a savings target of 3% was applied bringing 

the net position to an increase of schools’ budgets of £4.9m. For 2025 to 2026  

pressure of £4.7m is forecasts – however a savings target will be required and 

schools have asked to plan for savings target of between 3% - 5%.  

 

Impact / Consequences  

 Further savings will result in reductions in service which will be more difficult to 

prioritise and deliver  

 Stretched resources, affecting our ability to deliver on statutory functions. 

 Leading to an inability to deliver current levels of service provision. 

 Overspends in Social Care place significant budget pressures on the council and 

could result in the scaling back or withdrawal of non-statutory services. 

 Denbighshire overspends on its budget. 

Tudalen 96



 

 
65 

 Denbighshire cannot deliver savings. 

 Low staff morale. 

 Regulatory action, and poor reputation if unprepared. 

 Reputational damage. 

 

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

The council has no control over the global economy or the WG settlement. Therefore, the 

inherent and residual risk scores are likely to remain high. 

Critical controls: 

 Since September 2024 we are currently having two weekly CET and Cabinet 

meetings to discuss the Council’s financial position, this group is now called the 

Budget and Transformation Board. This forms the basis of how we identify the 

efficiencies, savings and cuts necessary in order to ensure the financial 

sustainability of the council.  Each major savings proposal is shared with all 

Members through a report and a workshop session, and a detailed plan is 

developed including communication before final decisions are made.  

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is reported regularly to Cabinet, 

Governance & Audit Committee and Performance Scrutiny.  This includes high level 

plans for the transformation of the Council to make longer-term savings. 

 Our level of financial reserves are kept at a sensible level so that shocks to 

economy can be dealt with. 

 The collaborative approach to partnership working and sharing lessons learned 

during the Covid-19 pandemic (with Welsh Government and the Welsh Local 

Government Association) has been mutually beneficial and we hope that this same 

approach could be established should we experience further economic shocks in 

Tudalen 97



 

 
66 

the future. Working collaboratively, pan Wales, has been an effective way to 

develop solutions. However the financial capacity for Welsh Government to help is 

also very limited. 

 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is refreshed periodically throughout the 

financial year, contains different scenarios to try to ensure that it can deal with 

changes in the external environment and is reported regularly alongside the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

 We try to reduce the likelihood of this risk occurring, where we can, for example 

through individual, regional, national lobbying and through other meetings/fora. 

 Annual, detailed budget setting process that considers economic environment. 

 Regular (usually monthly) financial planning meetings between services and 

management accountants are in place.  Financial management will be strengthened 

in year, by the introduction of tracking savings monthly that are reported regularly.  

Enabling early identification of any issues, so prompt action can be taken. 

 The Procurement Team supports services to ensure value for money and explore 

collaborative procurement where that may be a possibility.  

 The budget setting process involves Members, so they understand that difficult 

decisions are necessary, and they are involved with developing the proposals. This 

should make them more likely to support the recommendations made. 

Ancillary controls: 

 A detailed Communications Strategy has been developed to ensure that all 

stakeholders are informed and can have input into the budget process. Monthly 

meetings are held to monitor the progress of the detailed Communications Action 

Plan. This aims to provide clear communications around financial challenges and 

the budget process to Members and we try to ensure our residents are informed 

about how the council is funded and spends its funds. 

Tudalen 98



 

 
67 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: During 2024/25 the Head of Finance 

and Audit’s service plan includes key performance indicators that are associated with 

effective management of this risk and provides a monthly budget report to Cabinet. 

 FINA101m The % of required efficiency savings identified for next year (Quarterly) 

 FINA102m The % of required efficiency savings achieved for this year (Quarterly) 

 Council reserves (£k) 

Key performance indicators regards budget and savings are included in all service plans. 

Assurance: 

 The Budget Strategy is being reviewed regularly by the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

Residual Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 99



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Appendix 3:  

Risk Appetite : Classification and Description: 

 

Averse is the avoidance of risk and uncertainty. We are therefore not willing to  

tolerate any risk within this appetite classification. 
 

 

Minimalist is the preference for ultra-safe options that have a low degree of inherent  

risk and have a potential for only limited reward. Within this classification, we are  

willing to accept only minor risks. 

 
 

Cautious is the preference for safe options that have a medium degree of inherent  

risk and may have some potential for rewards. In terms of our risk exposure rating,  

we would therefore accept a minor or moderate risk. 
 

 

Open is the willingness to consider all delivery options and choose one that is most  

likely to result in successful delivery with an acceptable level of reward (and value  

for money). Within this, we will accept minor, moderate and major risks. 

 
 

Hungry is the eagerness to be innovative and to choose options offering potentially  

higher business rewards despite greater inherent risk. All risk exposure is accepted  

within this classification – minor, moderate, major and critical. 

 

Tudalen 101



 
2 

 

Summary of Denbighshire’s Risk Appetite Statement  

(Reviewed September 2024): 

Denbighshire County Council’s risk appetite in relation to different aspects of council 

business is summarised below: 

 Reputation and Credibility (risks about the trust / confidence people have in 

the council)– Open risk appetite, willing to consider all options and choose one 

that is most likely to result in successful delivery with an acceptable level of reward 

(and value for money). This means we will tolerate minor, moderate or major risks. 

 

 Operational and Policy Delivery (risks which focus on long term goals and the 

service which our customers receive) – Open risk appetite, willing to consider all 

options and choose one that is most likely to result in successful delivery with an 

acceptable level of reward (and value for money). Again, this means we will tolerate 

minor, moderate or major risks. 

 

 Financial Projects (risks about financial loss and value for money) - Open risk 

appetite, willing to consider all options and choose one that is most likely to result in 

successful delivery with an acceptable level of reward (and value for money). As 

above, we will tolerate minor, moderate or major risks. 

 

 Financial Treasury Management (risks about financial loss and value for 

money) – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe options that have a medium 

degree of inherent risk and may have some potential for rewards. Within this risk 

appetite, we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks. 

 

 Compliance and Regulation - Safeguarding (risks about adherence to law, 

regulations and guidelines) – Minimalist risk appetite, preference for ultra-safe 

options where the well-being of individuals is concerned, with a low degree of 

inherent risk and have a potential for only limited (safe) reward. This means we will 

only accept minor risks in this area. 

 

Tudalen 102



 
3 

 Compliance and Regulation - Other (risks about adherence to law, regulations 

and statutory guidelines) – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe options 

that have a medium degree of inherent risk and may have some potential for 

rewards. Again, we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks in this area. 

 

 People (Workforce) Learning and Development – Cautious risk appetite, 

preference for safe options that have a medium degree of inherent risk and may 

have some potential for rewards. As above, minor or moderate risks only will be 

tolerated. 

 

 People (Workforce) – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe options that have 

a medium degree of inherent risk and may have some potential for rewards. Again, 

we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks in this area. 

Tudalen 103



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

Appendix 4 

New Risk 53: The risk that Transformational Programmes 

and Major Project benefits are not fully realised. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

October 2024 

This risk was added to the Corporate Risk Register in October 2024 recognising the 

increasing number and complexity of transformation / change projects we are 

delivering and the growing significance of delivering cost savings and benefits 

associated with projects. 

Description  

The council is embarking on a series of transformation projects within and across 

services, in addition to its portfolio of major projects. The requirement for 

transformation projects is driven by changes in the current and anticipated operating 

scenario across financial, social and environmental issues. Projects are likely to 

encompass restructuring and innovation which will touch on elements of other risks 

in our corporate risk register. However, adding this as a separate risk draws together 

the heightened risks from expanding cross-service working and the risk of investing 

in changes that do not deliver the anticipated benefits, partly or wholly. This would 

lead to reputational and financial consequences, especially where significant funding 

is coming from Welsh and UK governments, which could affect their confidence in us 

in the future.  

Benefits management within projects is the responsibility of the Senior Responsible 

Officer (SRO) and requires clear identification and – to the extent possible – 

quantification of benefits, weighed up against the costs and risks carried by the 

project. These should be tested for optimism bias and sensitivity to major risks, with 

assumptions challenged through the design and implementation of the project. 

Tudalen 105



 

 

Existing processes within the council to assess benefits and costs include: 

 Business Case options appraisal - delivery options have been considered for 

the project  

 Wellbeing impact assessments as live documents - amended for the project, 

updating where there are significant project changes, including cumulative 

assessments considering the potential for compounding impacts of multiple 

change projects. 

The majority of council projects deliver benefits as scoped, with notable recent 

successes including: 

 East Rhyl Costal Defence - protection against flooding  

 Corwen Town Centre Improvements – partnership with community council  

 Electric vehicle charging points in car parks across Denbighshire 

However, there are opportunities to strengthen processes as we begin to work 

across services to ensure consistent and joined-up approaches to managing change, 

risks and benefits. This will support more effective delivery of the whole 

transformation portfolio, and key programmes such as the Transformation 

Programme and the Climate Change & Nature Recovery Programme. In addition, 

strengthening programme and project management will support delivery and 

governance associated with the Sustainable Communities for Learning Fund, Shared 

Prosperity Fund (SPF), the Levelling Up Fund (LUF) and any successor funding 

programmes.  

Processes to be reviewed and enhanced that would help mitigate this risk include:  

 Project definition and budgeting  

 Benefit identification, analysis and realisation 

 Risk identification, analysis and mitigation 

 Cost benefit analysis, including optimism bias and sensitivity testing 

 Change management at project, programme and portfolio levels 

 Communications.  

Anticipated direction of travel: 

Tudalen 106



 

 

The risk was raised in October 2024 to reflect the range of transformation / change 

projects we are and will be delivering, against anticipated instability in costs and 

delivery scenarios.  

Impact / Consequences  

The changes anticipated in business cases do not materialise and, hence, neither do 

their benefits. 

While benefits could be underestimated and additional benefits be realised, the 

greater risk to Denbighshire County Council is where programmes or projects have a 

greater negative impact than anticipated, which could result in the following: 

 The council’s ambition and the scope of projects and programmes are 

curtailed due to increased costs.  

 Services that are important for our residents are no longer available 

 Performance deteriorates in important areas of our business (for our 

residents)  

 Reinstatement/correction in performance is difficult and slow to achieve 

 Reputation can suffer if performance deteriorates 

 Reputation can suffer if messages are not managed 

 The impact of not fulfilling our programmes and realising benefits could result 

in poor social, cultural, economic and environmental outcomes.  

 Financial liabilities 

 Regulatory liabilities 

 Deteriorating staff morale and wellbeing 

 Inability to meet statutory obligations 

 Disproportionate return on investment. 

 Failure to maximise opportunities for the benefit of communities and 

businesses in Denbighshire. 

 Failure to agree a regional approach to funding projects. 

 

Importantly, as resources reduce, there is less capacity to respond to new, emerging 

and unplanned issues of importance to residents, councillors or partners. As it is 

expected this coming period will be characterised by continued environmental, social 

Tudalen 107



 

 

and economic turbulence, management of this risk becomes more significant for the 

organisation. 

Inherent Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

Critical controls: 

 Budget & Transformational Board established. 

 The Corporate Plan 2022 to 2027 has been approved by Members and a 

performance management framework is in place. This captures the ambition 

of elected members for their term of office.  

 Strategic Planning team supporting the appropriate governance arrangements 

for the corporate plan, and also support performance management in the 

organisation, therefore there's a strong alignment between 'change' and 

business-as-usual. 

 More robust challenge is being directed at project sponsors around costs, 

contingency allocation and optimism biases; through CET, programme and 

project boards, at Cabinet, the Capital Scrutiny Group and through other 

committees. 

 Programmes and projects are developed within robust management and 

governance systems.  Notably, both the Corporate Programme Office and the 

Post-Brexit funding team includes project trained and experienced officers.  

 Corporate Project register goes to CET on a quarterly basis and provides 

information about the status of projects. 

 We ensure we have senior-level representation at board meetings. The North 

Wales Economic Ambition Board is attended by Denbighshire's Leader. 

Director-level representation is in place for the officer groups that support the 

Board and relevant key officers are represented on work stream meetings. 

 Impact assessments are undertaken and form part of the cover report for 

decisions. 

 Risk are considered and form part of the cover report for decisions. 

Tudalen 108



 

 

 The Verto project management platform records project benefits  

 Significant outcomes from projects are identified as part of Service Planning 

processes. 

 Finance remove savings from budgets to ensure financial savings are 

delivered. 

 Performance Reports on the Corporate Plan are sent to SLT, Cabinet and 

Scrutiny every 6 months. 

 SLT reviews key projects every three months. 

 

 

Ancillary controls: 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as 

possible, on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The 

Communications Team manage media and public relations and internal 

communications on the matter. 

 As a result of lessons learned previously, Corporate Plan Theme Boards have 

had a standing agenda item about communications and proactive 

communications management. 

 Communications and stakeholder management are core parts of project 

briefs, businesses cases and project/programme management. 

 The council partakes in government consultations on new legislation (either 

directly or through the WLGA). 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CPPRCORP: The percentage of Council projects whose delivery confidence 

was updated within the past three months (Corporate Project Register) 

 [TBC] The percentage of completed Council projects that include a closure 

report in Verto 

 

Residual Risk  

B2 - Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact  

Tudalen 109



 

 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the 

council’s Risk Appetite? 

Critical risk. Our risk appetite statement says that at most, this risk should be a major 

risk at most.  

Further Actions 

 Identify code for risk indicator above  

 Establish a project managers forum comprising champions from each service to 

support with project management skills and the use of Verto 

 Develop an internal project management training programme  

 Develop an introduction to Project Management and Verto module available to 

any interested employee 

 Further embed our approach on project closure and lessons learned 

 Further embed our approach on benefit realisation and evaluation post project 

closure 

Action Due Date: July 2025  

Person Responsible: Lead Project Manager, Corporate Programme Office 

 
 

Tudalen 110



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod         28 Tachwedd 2024 

Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol  Y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Ellis, Aelod Arweiniol Cyllid, 

Perfformiad ac Asedau Strategol 

 Helen Vaughan-Evans, Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth 

Cymorth Corfforaethol: Perfformiad, Digidol ac 

Asedau  

Awdur yr adroddiad Emma Horan, Swyddog Cynllunio a Pherfformiad 

Teitl Diweddariad ar Berfformiad y Cynllun Corfforaethol: 

Ebrill - Medi 2024 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Perfformiad y Cyngor yn erbyn ei Gynllun Corfforaethol rhwng mis Ebrill a mis Medi, 

gan gynnwys amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol a’r saith maes llywodraethu 

(cynllunio corfforaethol; cynllunio ariannol, rheoli perfformiad; rheoli risg; cynllunio’r 

gweithlu; asedau; a chaffael). 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Mae adrodd yn rheolaidd ar berfformiad yn rhan o’n gwerthoedd a’n hegwyddorion. 

Mae’n ofyniad monitro hanfodol o fethodoleg rheoli perfformiad y Cyngor, a’n 

dyletswyddau statudol fel y nodir yn adran 11.  

2.2. Nod yr adroddiad yw cefnogi penderfyniad ar ein perfformiad a’r camau a nodwyd i 

wella. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu yn ystyried yr adroddiad ac yn cytuno ar unrhyw gamau 

pellach sydd eu hangen i ymateb i unrhyw faterion perfformiad a nodir ynddo. 

Tudalen 111

Eitem Agenda 6

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cy/eich-cyngor/strategaethau-cynlluniau-a-pholisiau/cynlluniau/cynllun-corfforaethol/cynllun-corfforaethol.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cy/swyddi-a-gweithwyr/gweithio-i-ni/gweithio/ein-gweledigaeth-gwerthoedd-ac-egwyddorion.aspx


  

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1. Yr adroddiad yn atodiad 1 yw ein Hadroddiad Diweddariad ar Berfformiad 

cyfarwydd sef ein proses ar gyfer hunanasesiad parhaus, ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 

mis Ebrill a mis Medi 2024. Dylai’r adroddiad gael ei ystyried fel adnodd i gefnogi 

trafodaeth adeiladol, agored ac onest am ein perfformiad, gan helpu i adnabod 

ymarfer da a meysydd ar gyfer ymyrraeth neu graffu pellach. Rydym yn ceisio 

atebion i’r cwestiynau ‘Pa mor dda ydym ni’n perfformio?’, ‘Sut gwyddom ni?’ a 

‘Beth allwn ni ei wneud yn well, a sut?’. 

4.2. Fe gyflwynir yr adroddiad mewn dau ran sy’n ceisio amlinellu cynnydd yn erbyn ein 

hamcanion perfformiad. Mae’r rhain yn cynnwys ein Cynllun Corfforaethol/ 

Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol (sydd hefyd yn ffurfio ein Hamcanion Lles o dan 

Ddeddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015) a’r saith maes llywodraethu 

(fel y nodir yn Neddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021).  

4.3. Mae’r adroddiad hwn hefyd yn nodi dangosyddion neu weithgareddau sydd yn 

Amcanion Cydraddoldeb neu’n cyfrannu at Y Gymraeg a Diwylliant (gwaith sydd yn 

mynd rhagddo).  Mae’r adroddiad hefyd bellach yn cynnwys astudiaethau achos i 

roi enghreifftiau o waith da sydd wedi cael ei wneud.   Bydd unrhyw gyfleoedd 

pellach i wella’r Fframwaith Rheoli Perfformiad ac Adroddiadau Diweddariad ar 

Berfformiad yn barhaus, yn cael eu cymryd gan y Tîm Cynllunio Strategol. 

4.4. Er nad yw hi’n bosibl tynnu sylw at bob pwynt sylweddol o ddiddordeb yma (gweler 

atodiad 1), mae meysydd i dynnu sylw atynt a’u gwella rhwng mis Ebrill a mis Medi 

2024 yn cynnwys:  

 Lleihau dibyniaeth ar lety Gwely a Brecwast (er mae nifer sylweddol o bobl dal i fod 

ar y rhestr aros am dŷ).   

 Yn ôl Arolwg Boddhad Tenantiaid Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol 2024 Llywodraeth 

Cymru, Sir Ddinbych ydi’r Cyngor sy’n perfformio orau yng Nghymru o’r rhai sydd â 

stoc tai, o ran boddhad cyffredinol tenantiaid gyda Thai Sir Ddinbych. 

 Rhai manteision cymunedol ardderchog yn sgil dau gaffaeliad mawr.  

 Gwaith ataliol cadarnhaol wedi’i seilio yn y gymuned; nid yw 99% o’r rheini sydd 

angen cymorth gan Pwyntiau Siarad angen cael eu cyfeirio i Ofal Cymdeithasol i 

Oedolion.  

 Mae cefnogaeth blynyddoedd cynnar yn golygu bod niferoedd da yn manteisio ar y 

cynnig gofal plant.  

Tudalen 112

https://www.llyw.cymru/landlordiaid-cymdeithasol-arolwg-boddhad-tenantiaid-2024-html


  

 Cafodd adolygiad ac ailwampiad swyddogol cyntaf o Strategaeth ar Newid 

Hinsawdd a Newid Ecolegol ei gynnal rhwng 2023 a 2024, ac yn dilyn 

ymgynghoriad, cafodd y fersiwn derfynol ei mabwysiadu gan y Cabinet a’r Cyngor 

ym mis Mehefin 2024.  

 Mae yna feysydd cyffrous i weithredu arnynt yn dod i’r amlwg yn dilyn y grwpiau 

tasg a gorffen sy’n agosach at gymunedau.  Rydym ni’n gobeithio y bydd y rhain yn 

helpu i fynd i’r afael â’r hollt sy’n bodoli rhwng ymatebion budd-ddeiliad yn ein 

harolwg budd-ddeiliad, a pherfformiad gwirioneddol, a phrofiad o weithio i, neu 

gyda’r Cyngor.  

 Fe wnaethom barhau i ddarparu rheolaeth ariannol gadarn er gwaetha’r heriau 

ariannol sy’n gwaethygu o amgylch ein cyllideb, ac mae pob awdurdod lleol yn eu 

hwynebu.  Mae olrhain arbedion wedi cael ei weithredu ac fe fydd y gyllideb a 

thrawsnewid yn ganolbwynt i Heriau Perfformiad y Gwasanaeth. Rydym ni’n parhau 

i archwilio a dod o hyd i ffyrdd o liniaru effeithiau cynigion y gyllideb, gan adeiladu ar 

yr asesiad effaith gronnus a gyflwynwyd i’r Cyngor Sir ym mis Ionawr. Er enghraifft, 

cynhaliwyd gweithdy gyda Phenaethiaid ar 18 Mehefin.  

 Mae sefyllfa’r gyllideb yn dal i fod yn eithriadol o heriol ac fe fydd yn rhoi mwy o 

bwyslais ar allu’r Cyngor i ddarparu disgwyliadau’r cwsmeriaid.  

 Mae angen i ni sicrhau momentwm o ran llunio Strategaeth Economaidd newydd a 

sicrhau y bydd yn ystyried cynnig diwylliannol y Sir a’i gyfraniad i les economaidd, 

amgylcheddol, cymdeithasol a phersonol.   

 Mae presenoldeb mewn ysgolion cynradd ac uwchradd yn destun pryder ac mae 

nifer yr ysgolion ‘Gwelliant Sylweddol’ neu ‘Mesurau Arbennig’ yn dilyn Adolygiad 

Estyn wedi codi o 3 i 4. Fe fydd perthnasoedd yn parhau i gael eu datblygu gyda 

cholegau a sefydliadau addysg bellach ar ôl i Llwybrau gau, ac mae datblygiadau 

mewn gwelliannau ysgolion rhanbarthol yn parhau i gael eu monitro’n ofalus gan y 

bydd GwE yn dod i ben yn fuan.  

 Mae cyflymder gostyngiadau mewn allyriadau carbon yn nodi bod cynnydd 

annigonol yn cael ei wneud i gyrraedd y nod o fod yn sero net erbyn 2030.  

 Mae’r cyfnod diweddar yma wedi bod yn eithriadol o heriol i’r Cyngor wrth i’r 

gwasanaeth casglu gwastraff ac ailgylchu newydd gael cyfnod anodd iawn ar y 

dechrau.  Rydym wedi dod ynghyd fel “Un Cyngor” i gefnogi ein gwasanaeth 

gwastraff ac rydym yn parhau i weithio’n agos gydag aelodau a phreswylwyr i ddeall 

a datrys problemau.  

 Yn olaf, roedd yr Asesiad Perfformiad Panel yn gadarnhaol iawn.  Dywedodd un 

aelod o’r panel yn ystod yr wythnos gwaith maes mai Sir Ddinbych “Fyddai y math o 

Tudalen 113

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6879&LLL=1


  

le y byddwn i wir yn mwynhau gweithio!” Bydd rhagor o fanylion yn cael eu darparu 

yn y cyfnod adrodd nesaf ar ôl i’r adroddiad terfynol gael ei dderbyn gan y Cyngor.  

4.5. Mae tri cham gwella wedi cael eu canfod drwy drafodaethau am yr adroddiad hwn 

(mae’r cyntaf yn adeiladu ar gam gwella blaenorol).  Mae’r ddau gyntaf yn 

arddangos y cydadwaith rhwng adnoddau, perfformiad a risg.  

 O ystyried perfformiad perthynas â chanran y ffyrdd a phalmentydd wedi’u difrodi a 

wnaed yn ddiogel o fewn y cyfnod targed (CAT1 – Diffygion Categori 1 yr ymdriniwyd â 

nhw o fewn yr amserlen), sydd heb gyrraedd y targed amser o 95% ers rhai 

blynyddoedd, Mae’r gwasanaeth yn parhau i’w chael yn anodd i fodloni gofynion yr 

ased o fewn yr adnoddau cyllidebol a staffio cyfyngedig sydd ar gael. Mae angen 

trafodaeth gadarn am y rhagolygon o wella a beth mae perfformiad gwael parhaus yn 

debygol o’i olygu o ystyried effeithiau cynyddol peryglon llifogydd, tirlithriadau a gwres 

ar gyflwr ffyrdd a chysylltedd cymunedau.  

 Yn gysylltiedig â chamau gwella’r cyfnod diwethaf i gadw ymrwymiadau a disgwyliadau 

perfformiad ein Cynllun Corfforaethol o dan adolygiad parhaus wrth symud ymlaen, fe 

ddylai Adolygiad Cyfran y Cynllun Corfforaethol ystyried effaith lleihau capasiti a 

phrosiectau sydd wedi dod i ben megis Llwybrau, a sut y bydd y rhain yn effeithio ar ein 

gallu i ddarparu’r Cynllun Corfforaethol a’r canlyniadau.   

 Cyhoeddir manylion y rhwydwaith ymgysylltu o bobl a grwpiau sydd â nodweddion 

gwarchodedig ar ein gwefan.   

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Gynllun 

Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: Y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

5.1. Mae’r adroddiad yma’n cynnwys gwerthusiad o’n llwyddiant wrth ddarparu’r Cynllun 

Corfforaethol.  

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 

wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Nid oes unrhyw gost ychwanegol yn gysylltiedig â’r adroddiad hwn. 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Cynhaliwyd Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol, sydd wedi cael ei 

ddiweddaru yn rhan o adolygiad o’r Cynllun Corfforaethol, ac fe ddylai gael ei 

adolygu yn dilyn yr Adolygiad Cyfran.  

Tudalen 114



  

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 

eraill? 

8.1. Cafodd yr adroddiad ei lunio mewn ymgynghoriad gyda gwasanaethau’r cyngor. 

Mae’r adroddiad wedi cael ei drafod ac mae’r Adroddiad Cyfran wedi cael ei rannu 

gyda’r Tîm Arwain Strategol trwy gyfrwng e-bost i bobl allu rhoi sylw.  Trafodwyd yn 

Cabinet ar 19 Tachwedd. 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Nid oes angen datganiad gyda'r adroddiad hwn. 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 

lleihau? 

10.1 Ein bod yn methu â gwella maes o bryder sy’n arwain at ganlyniadau anfoddhaol.  

Byddai methu â chyhoeddi ein Hunanasesiad yn debygol o arwain at argymhellion 

statudol gan Archwilio Cymru gyda goblygiadau i enw da’r Cyngor. Y risg y bydd 

perfformiad gwael yn cael ei adrodd allan o’i gyd-destun, gan effeithio ar ein henw 

da. Ar sail hynny, rydym eisoes wedi rhannu'r adroddiad drafft gyda’r Tîm 

Cyfathrebu. 

 

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Rhan 6 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021. 

11.2. Rhan 2 o Ddeddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

11.3. Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Statudol) (Cymru) 2011; a 

Rheoliadau’r Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb (Awdurdodau sy’n ddarostyngedig i Ddyletswydd 

ynghylch Anghydraddoldebau Economaidd-gymdeithasol) (Cymru) 2021. 

11.4. Mae Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 ac Adran 7 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

amlinellu pwerau Craffu mewn perthynas â rheoli perfformiad. 

Tudalen 115



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is available in Welsh. 

 

Appendix 1 

Corporate Plan Performance 
Update: April to September 
2024 

This document presents the council’s performance against its Corporate Plan themes and 

governance areas between April to September 2024, including our application of the 

Sustainable Development principle, the Public Sector Equality Duty, and Socio-Economic 

Duty. 

  

Tudalen 117



 
2 

Contents 

Contact details and more information .................................................................................. 4 

Summary position ................................................................................................................ 5 

A Note on Measuring Performance .................................................................................... 11 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs ........................................... 12 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 12 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update ................................. 14 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update ...................................... 17 

A round up of news ................................................................................................. 19 

A prosperous Denbighshire ............................................................................................... 19 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 19 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update ................................. 21 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update ...................................... 24 

A round up of news ................................................................................................. 27 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire .................................................................... 28 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 28 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update ................................. 31 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update ...................................... 35 

A round up of news ................................................................................................. 37 

A learning and growing Denbighshire ................................................................................ 38 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 38 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update ................................. 40 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update ...................................... 43 

Tudalen 118



 
3 

A round up of news ................................................................................................. 44 

A Greener Denbighshire .................................................................................................... 46 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 46 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update ................................. 49 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update ...................................... 50 

A round up of news ................................................................................................. 51 

A well-run, high performing council .................................................................................... 53 

Corporate Plan Update ........................................................................................... 53 

Performance Framework: Measures Update .......................................................... 56 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Projects Update .................................... 60 

Self-Assessment: Governance Areas ..................................................................... 62 

Corporate Planning ................................................................................................. 62 

Financial Planning ................................................................................................... 63 

Performance Management ...................................................................................... 68 

Risk Management ................................................................................................... 70 

Workforce Planning ................................................................................................. 71 

Assets ..................................................................................................................... 72 

Procurement ........................................................................................................... 73 

Improvement Actions ......................................................................................................... 75 

Tudalen 119



 
4 

Contact details and more information 

For more information, or to let us know what you think about anything in this report, 

contact us: 

By email: strategicplanningteam@denbighshire.gov.uk 

By telephone: 01824 706291 

Rydym yn croesawu galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg / We welcome telephone calls in Welsh. 

By post: 

Strategic Planning and Performance Team 

Denbighshire County Council 

PO Box 62 

Ruthin 

LL15 9AZ 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. There will be no delay in responding to 

correspondence received in Welsh. 

To keep up-to-date: 

Like us on Facebook 

Follow us on Twitter 

Visit the council’s website for information on the Corporate Plan  

Visit the County Conversation Portal and sign up for Y Panel! 

Subscribe to the County Voice Newsletter  

  

Tudalen 120

mailto:strategicplanningteam@denbighshire.gov.uk
https://www.facebook.com/denbighshirecountycouncil
https://twitter.com/denbighshirecc
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/corporateplan
https://countyconversation.denbighshire.gov.uk/KMS/elab.aspx?noip=1&CampaignId=510&SessionId=7FDKH2G792&CampaignUserRole=register
https://countyvoice.denbighshire.gov.uk/


 
5 

Summary position 

The chapters below provide a summary of activity that has taken place during the last 

period beneath our Corporate Plan themes, with a round-up of contributing news and 

committee items.  

Corporate Plan theme summary 

The measures evaluation for each theme below has been determined through the 

performance management framework that we have in place. The projects evaluation has 

been determined by the status of our projects. 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

The Corporate Plan Housing and Homelessness Board (CPHHB) continues to oversee 

this theme though hasn’t had an opportunity to convene since June 2024. At that meeting, 

the Board reviewed the update on the affordable housing outturn and Programme 

Development Plan / Social Housing Grant for 2023 to 2024 where the Council, in 

partnership with Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), successfully brought forward 156 

additional affordable housing units in total over the year. The number of people on the 

Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) register has increased to 1,842 this period and 

remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. During April to June, as part of efforts to reduce 

reliance on unsuitable temporary accommodation by establishing some in-house 

emergency housing facilities for homeless citizens, we reduced the reliance on Bed and 

Breakfasts. This work progressed for July to September, where we saw the numbers 

reduce to 130. We are confident that further solutions, working with the Sanctuary Trust, 

should contribute to less use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation moving forward.  Other 

housing projects are likely to continue into the next financial year, for example the Tenants 

Participation Advisory Service (TPAS) Cymru will soon be working with the Housing and 

Communities Service to carry out a standards review. Denbighshire will be the first council 

in Wales to undertake this partnership work, and this will inform the future direction of our 

Tenants Engagement Framework, which is reviewed annually. 

A prosperous Denbighshire 

Tudalen 121



 
6 

Measures: Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

The measures status for this theme has been summarised overall as a ‘Priority for 

Improvement’. The percentage of spend with suppliers based within Denbighshire and the 

cumulative percentage of Denbighshire contracts over £25k and under £1m containing 

community benefits have both declined from April to June, while still considered to be 

‘Excellent’. The particularly strong performance in the first quarter reflects two significant 

contracts that were awarded to Denbighshire-based construction companies during that 

time. Community benefits were also included in all contracts during April to June. This 

level of performance cannot be sustained every quarter because it largely depends on the 

scale of procurements, but it does demonstrate that good procurement can deliver 

excellent results. Deaths and Births of businesses per 10,000 of the population are both 

considered a ‘Priority for Improvement’, with business births being half the rate of those 

that started in 2019 (109).  Recognising the local and global economic challenges it faces, 

the council is currently developing an Economic Strategy to include green, rural, and urban 

economic growth plans as well as enhancing tourism, which significantly increased during 

the reporting period. The new Economic Strategy will also take into account the county's 

cultural offer and how it contributes to wider economic and well-being outcomes. Overall, 

progress has been made with the twenty-four programmes, projects and activities 

identified in support of this theme. However, four projects are now showing as ‘At Risk’. 

The overall summary has, therefore, been amended from ‘On Target’ to ‘Experiencing 

Obstacles’ to reflect this current position. 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  On Target 

Most of the data we currently publish in relation to Children’s Social Care is released 

annually and it is therefore difficult to summarise performance at this stage in the year; we 

will be in a better position to make a judgment on this in the next performance report. That 

being said, safeguarding enquiries for adults completed within the target time remained at 

an ‘Excellent’ level and community-based support for health and well-being continued to 

be provided, with 99% of those receiving assistance from Talking Points between July and 

September not needing to be referred into Adult Social Care. The number of schools 

adopting a Whole School Approach to Mental Health and Well-being has remained fixed at 

Tudalen 122



 
7 

67% since the last reporting period, and is considered to be ‘Acceptable’. We continued to 

monitor data giving us an indication of the prevalence of crime in our communities, and 

worked with partners to address these issues. Many projects were ‘On Target’, including 

those providing support to citizens in relation to community well-being and cost-of-living 

pressures. However, the Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint Archive Project continued to 

report an ’At Risk’ delivery confidence status due to being behind schedule. 

A learning and growing Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

In support of early years’ child development, 642 children (considered ‘Good’) took part in 

the childcare offer across Denbighshire in the quietest period, between July and 

September. The learning and development of Denbighshire’s children continues to be a 

priority for the council, and we plan to improve the way we work with schools to collect 

data. This includes data to help us monitor bullying in schools and the use of the Welsh 

language in education. We have received the results of the Pupil Attitudes to Self and 

School survey conducted during the previous academic year, which showed that 81% of 

pupils responded positively in terms of feelings about school (considered ‘Good’). 

Attendance in primary and secondary schools for the academic year 2023 to 2024 

improved but remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’ at 92.3% and 88.2% respectively. We 

monitor schools’ attainment data held internally, supporting and challenging schools to 

improve their attainment. There will be continued development of relationships with 

colleges and further education institutions following the closure of Llwybrau, the project 

designed to support young people to reduce their risk of disengagement. The number of 

schools in either Estyn Review, Significant Improvement or Special Measures rose from 3 

to 4, which is ‘Acceptable’ while disappointing. Developments in regional school 

improvement continue to be carefully monitored in the light of the impending cessation of 

GwE as the regional school improvement service for North Wales. The council will explore 

whether any new project is needed to ensure that progress continues and updates will be 

provided in time. For this period, most projects were ‘On Target’ or ‘Experiencing 

Obstacles,’ which shows good progress overall in support of this theme, including 

improving the well-being of children from low income and disadvantaged 

families.  However, delays to a number of projects continued to impact the progress of the 

Modernising Education Programme - designed to provide high quality buildings and 

facilities that meet the current and future needs of pupils and families as part of the Welsh 

Tudalen 123



 
8 

Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme - meaning that this 

particular stream of work remained ‘At Risk’. 

A greener Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

The first official review and refresh of the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy was 

carried out during 2023 to 2024. The final version following consultation was submitted for 

adoption by Cabinet and Council in June 2024 and is now called the Denbighshire County 

Council Climate and Nature Strategy 2021 to 2022 to 2029 to 2030 (Year 3 Updated 

Version). The percentage of council owned and operated land in highest categories of 

species richness has very slightly increased to 42.5% in 2023 to 2024 and indicates we 

are making ‘Acceptable’ progress towards becoming an Ecologically Positive Council by 

2030. Our 2023 to 2024 carbon emissions data has now been reported to Welsh 

Government as part of the annual public sector reporting. The Council’s Net Carbon Zero 

position as at 31 March 2024 has increased by about 600 tonnes (roughly the equivalent 

of driving 1.5m miles in a car) to 12,653 tonnes, which, by 2030, needs to be zero tonnes.  

This indicator remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. Whilst we have concerns about the 

methodology relating to this indicator, the total carbon tonnage emitted (corporately) 

through supply chains rose from 36,912 in 2022 to 2023 to 50,233 in 2023 to 2024, and 

remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. The pace of reductions in carbon emissions indicates 

that insufficient progress is being made to meet the 2030 goal of net zero. The financial 

pressures all local authorities are facing now and in the coming years will continue to 

impact on that pace. We have maintained our Climate and Ecological Improvement 

ambition and have not adjusted our targets - despite their challenge. During the period we 

saw the roll out of the new recycling service. It soon became apparent that some of the 

assumptions were flawed and several rounds per day were not being completed, resulting 

in large and unacceptable numbers of missed collections. 

A well-run, high performing council 

Measures:  Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

The measures status for this theme remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. This reflects the 

stakeholder survey responses, and also other key indicators, such as one-to-ones and 

Tudalen 124

Denbighshire%20County
Denbighshire%20County
Denbighshire%20County


 
9 

sickness absence, where we are not meeting our expected thresholds for Excellence (it is 

important to acknowledge that these are ambitious thresholds, particularly given increasing 

workforce pressures). This last period has been particularly challenging for the Council as 

the new waste collection and recycling service had a difficult start (the significant increase 

in external complaints upheld or partly upheld reflects this). We pulled together as “One 

Council” (see our values and five principles here) to support our waste service, and 

continue to work closely with members and residents to understand and resolve issues. 

Notwithstanding these issues, the council continued to provide robust financial 

management despite deepening financial challenges around our budget, which all local 

authorities are experiencing. During the period, the Panel Peer Assessment took place 

which engaged a wide range of council stakeholders including city, town and community 

councils, elected members and more – and which has resulted in some very positive 

feedback for the council. A draft report is anticipated in the Autumn. One-to-ones, sickness 

absence and completion of e-learning remain areas for concern. These indicators, 

alongside Services’ financial management and budget and transformation ideas will be 

explored as part of Service Performance Challenges commencing in November. Our new 

Welsh Language Officer is in post and will be working alongside officers and members to 

increase opportunities to use Welsh and celebrate our culture. The Well-run, high 

performing council Board will be focussing in future on how our culture can facilitate 

effective transformation and ways in which we can work more closely with our 

communities. The Board will also be examining the general decline in responses to our 

stakeholder survey. As stated previously, this decline is perhaps unsurprising but there 

does seem to be a dichotomy between stakeholder responses in the survey and the actual 

performance of our council (and indicative feedback from the Panel Performance 

Assessment). It is important that we demonstrate improvement in these areas and respond 

to the expectations of our customers. We are looking to build on the positive findings from 

the recent closer to communities work, which seeks to build stronger and more responsive 

relationships with communities. 

Governance areas 

Significant work continues to ensure we respond effectively to the significant financial 

pressures the council is facing (along with all local authorities) in order to try to protect the 

most vulnerable as far as possible. Tracking of savings has been implemented and budget 

and transformation will be a core focus of Service Performance Challenges commencing in 

November. We continue to examine and find ways to mitigate the impacts of budget 

Tudalen 125

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/jobs-and-employees/work-for-us/working/vision-values-principles.aspx#:~:text=Our%205%20Principles,-Our%205%20principles&text=Our%20culture%20is%20centred%20around,and%20enjoyable%20for%20our%20employees.


 
10 

proposals, building on the cumulative impact assessment presented to County Council in 

January. For example, a workshop with Headteachers was held during the period. The 

budget situation remains extremely challenging and will place further pressure on the 

council’s ability to deliver on customer expectations. Significant engagement across the 

council, with members and with communities, will continue. The months ahead will involve 

key milestones or many governance areas. The September Risk Register Review has now 

been completed and the final reports are due to be presented to Governance and Audit 

and Performance Scrutiny Committees in November. A People Strategy has been drafted 

and will be presented to the Well-run Board in October for feedback. A revised staff survey 

will be presented to our Senior Leadership Team for approval in October for a November 

launch. Approval for a new Asset Management Strategy 2024 to 2029 will be sought from 

Cabinet in October 2024. This will be a critical development and has interdependencies 

with workforce planning. Our Procurement Team continues to prepare the organisation, 

businesses and partners for the changes in procurement legislation, and the opportunities 

for greater local benefits. Efforts continue to be targeted at decarbonising the supply chain 

and the third generation North Wales Construction Framework was launched in May 2024.  

Tudalen 126

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6879&LLL=0


 
11 

A Note on Measuring Performance 

In Denbighshire, our default approach to setting performance thresholds is to take the 

upper quartile (best performing) from nationally comparable information as the point where 

performance is considered ‘Excellent’. The ‘Priority for Improvement’ threshold is usually 

the median. Midway between these two values determines the threshold between 

‘Acceptable’ and ‘Good’ performance. 

If no data is available that we can compare ourselves with (either nationally or by 

comparable grouping), then we will take a local view on what we feel reasonably 

determines ‘Excellent’ and ‘Priority for Improvement’ performance. This should represent 

our ambition. 

Our data tables use this same language, except for ‘Priority for Improvement’, which is 

truncated to ‘Priority to Improve’. Our data tables also show information about trend. Trend 

is identified as ‘Better’, ‘Worse’, or ‘Same’, and is based on a comparison with the previous 

period for which we have data. Where possible, we also show trend for projects and 

activities, which is determined by comparing the overall status of the project or activity with 

its status in the previous period. Project and activity statuses are identified as ‘On Target’, 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’, ‘At Risk’ or ‘Compromised’.  

For more information on how we manage performance, view the Performance 

Management Guide on our website. 

  

Tudalen 127

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
12 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Ensure that there is quality housing that meets the needs of vulnerable 

people, assisting them to lead independent lives in appropriate 

accommodation for as long as possible 

Phase 2 of Llys Awelon in Ruthin is open and existing tenants have been decanted over to 

the new site.  The Phase 1 site is now closed off ready for the refurbishment.  New tenants 

are being supported to move into the new site on an incremental basis. 

Prevent homelessness, and ensure that any instances of it are rare, brief, and 

unrepeated. This includes young care leavers (Equality Objective) 

The number of referrals received into the Early Intervention and Prevention (My Home 

Denbighshire) fluctuated during the reporting period.  For April, May and June it rose from 

64 to 93, however at the end of September this had much reduced to 59.  During the 

period, there was also fluctuation in the percentage of referrals that have been prevented 

from presenting to our homeless prevention services, where for April, May and June the 

figure rose to 95.81% and then dropped to 93.22% (‘Excellent’) for July, August and 

September.  Both figures are an improvement on the last financial year recording of 

90.62%. 

Upgrade the council housing stock to ensure it is safe, secure, and well-

maintained and where possible, suitable for the needs of residents, for 

example, those with disabilities (Equality Objective) 

The percentage of emergency housing repairs completed within target time is 95.24% for 

the period July to September, which, though ‘Acceptable’, has reduced slightly from 

96.26% from the previous period. A total of 315 emergency jobs were completed in the 

period with fifteen falling outside of target.  A further 122 disabled adaptations were carried 

out for council house tenants between April and September. 

Tudalen 128

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx


 
13 

The Energy Company Obligation (ECO4) is a government scheme that helps homeowners 

improve the energy efficiency of their homes and is the newest activity in support of this 

theme. It is promoted and administered via Flintshire County Council for energy efficiency 

in private sector dwellings and has resulted in 197 properties having ECO4 measures 

approved for Denbighshire between April and September. The scheme was on hold in 

early August due to staffing reasons and reopened in mid-September. We are still 

developing the energy pathway to meet the 2030 submission. Retrofit works, including 

some photo voltaic installations, are planned to commence from October in Rhyl and 

Denbigh, which will all count towards the pathway. 

According to Welsh Government’s Social Landlords’ Tenant Satisfaction Survey 2024, 

Denbighshire County Council is the highest performing stock-holding Council in Wales, in 

terms of ‘the percentage of tenants that were satisfied with Denbighshire Housing, taking 

everything into account’ with 85% tenants in agreement. 

Deliver more homes to meet local need and demand 

The delivery confidence for Additional Council Housing Developments has improved and 

reflects the completion of the new apartment development at Llys Llen on Nant Hall Road 

in Prestatyn, the new apartments in the former tax office building at Llys Elizabeth in 

Churton Road, Rhyl; and the appointment of a contractor to complete the fit out works at 

the terrace of Victorian houses at 2-16 Aquarium Street in Rhyl. 

During 2023 to 2024 there were a total of 258 new homes completed in Denbighshire.  

This is two more than the figure for 2022 to 2023, which was 256. 

Delivery confidence remains unchanged for the affordable housing project Edward Henry 

Street – whilst further progress has been made with the construction of the new homes, 

completion has been delayed until autumn 2024.  

Following on from the completion of the Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 

(GTAA), the GTAA Site Selection can now progress. It is, though, still at project brief stage. 

There has been no progress update on the Rhyl Residential Strategy, now running under 

the activity, “Work with Rhyl Regeneration Programme Board to contribute to progressing 

Rhyl Residential Strategy” for this financial year to date however we are advised this 

project is down on the Forward Work Plan for the Prosperous Denbighshire Board to be 

discuss and decide whether it should continue.  

Tudalen 129

https://www.gov.wales/social-landlords-tenant-satisfaction-survey-2024-html
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx


 
14 

Case study: Llys Elizabeth  

Llys Elizabeth is designed for people aged 55 and over and contains 12 new homes 

comprising eight two-bedroom apartments and four one-bedroom apartments. Each home 

is designed to offer high levels of energy efficiency to support the new tenants with the 

cost of living and help the council and Wales achieve its targets of lowering carbon 

emissions. The development is part of the council’s  commitment to tackling 

accommodation waiting times by enabling the creation of more social housing. At an event 

designed to bring the tenants and their neighbours together, one tenant said: “It's really 

lovely, I can't fault it at all. It’s been like winning the lottery really, we have got such a 

beautiful place... Denbighshire Housing have all been very attentive and I can’t say 

anything bad.” 

Ensure that our residents are informed about available housing options and 

routes to housing, seeking also to reduce the Single Access Route to 

Housing (SARTH) waiting list 

The number of people on the SARTH register increased to 1,842 between April and 

September, which is an increase of 7.97% on the previous reporting period and is a 

‘Priority for Improvement’. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity related to the support offered to those experiencing 

homelessness please see our learning and growing theme. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The percentage of 
emergency housing 
repairs completed 
within target time - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

96.90% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

95.82% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

95.57% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

96.26% 

Acceptable 

Better 

95.24% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

Tudalen 130

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=1a9c41cb-bad3-4e10-96c1-30389c02dd41
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f3157ef2-2d93-4028-8f96-cc9d4004c64f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f3157ef2-2d93-4028-8f96-cc9d4004c64f
https://businessnewswales.com/beautiful-rhyl-council-homes-build-foundations-for-strong-community/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/quality-housing.aspx


 
15 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The number of 
disabled adaptations 
carried out for council 
house tenants – Count 
Only (Equality 
Objective) 

56 68 51 61 61 

The number of people 
on the SARTH waiting 
list (live applications 
only) - Benchmarked 
Locally 

1,760 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

1,560 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

1,706 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

1,831 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

1,842 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The number of 
referrals received into 
Early Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) – Count 
Only (Equality 
Objective) 

64 54 64 93 59 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that 
have been prevented 
from presenting to 
homelessness 
prevention service - 
Benchmarked 
Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

92.18% 

Excellent 

Better 

92.59% 

Excellent 

Better 

90.62% 

Excellent 

Worse 

95.81% 

Excellent 

Better 

93.22% 

Excellent 

Worse 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The number of dwellings improved with a 
disabled facilities grant - Benchmarked 
Nationally (Equality Objective) 

66  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

63 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Tudalen 131



 
16 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The number of people who were on the 
Complex Disabilities Specialist Housing Needs 
Register for whom supported housing has 
been secured - Benchmarked Locally 
(Equality Objective) 

16 

Excellent 

Better 

8 

Good 

Worse 

The percentage of households successfully 
prevented from homelessness (section 66) - 
Benchmarked Nationally (Equality 
Objective) 

38.35% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

37.11% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of households successfully 
relieved from homelessness (section 73) - 
Benchmarked Nationally (Equality 
Objective) 

15.96% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

11.68% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of households positively 
discharged from homelessness (section 75) - 
Benchmarked Nationally (Equality 
Objective) 

50.22% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

54.18% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The percentage of care leavers who 
experience homelessness during the year (As 
defined by the Housing (Wales) Act 2014) - 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality Objective) 

15% 

Priority to Improve 

 

17% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of council properties compliant 
with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

100% 

Excellent 

Same 

100% 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of tenants that were satisfied 
with Denbighshire Housing, taking everything 
into account - Benchmarked Locally 

No data: does not 
apply 

85% 

Excellent 

The percentage of existing and acquired 
Council housing stock achieving an EPC 
(Energy) rating of C or above - Benchmarked 
Locally 

41.89% 

Acceptable 

Better 

46.1% 

Acceptable 

Better 

The additional supply of Council Homes 
provided - Benchmarked Locally 

15 

Acceptable 

Better 

25 

Good  

Better 

The total number of (new) homes completed 
during the year in Denbighshire - 
Benchmarked Locally 

256 258 

Tudalen 132



 
17 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The number of empty private properties 
brought back into use through direct action by 
the local authority - Benchmarked Locally  

181 

Good 

Worse 

150 

Acceptable 

Worse 

Stakeholder Survey  

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who agree 
that there is sufficient, good quality housing in 
Denbighshire, which meets people’s needs - 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality Objective) 

40% 

Priority to 
Improve 

31% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures  

Welsh Government’s next Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) update is expected 

in late 2025 or early 2026. Until new data us published please refer to our Performance 

Self-Assessment Update: July to September 2023 report. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Deliver and monitor the Housing and 
Homelessness Strategy Action Plan 
(Equality Objective) 

On target No exception however for 
information, ownership on 
this has now transferred 
from the LDP Team to the 
Housing and Communities 
Service moving forward. 

Llys Awelon (Phase 2) (Equality 
Objective) 

On target No exception 

Reduce the reliance on unsuitable 
temporary accommodation by establishing 
some in-house emergency housing 
facilities for homeless citizens (Equality 
Objective) 

On target No exception 

Tudalen 133

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
18 

Title Status Exception  

Improving Energy Efficiency in Council 
Houses 

 

Complete 
A new activity (directly 
below), reflects the new 
Welsh Housing Quality 
Standards and replaces 
this project, thus it is 
marked Complete. 

Devise and implement a plan to achieve 
SAP 75 housing by 2030 (including 
revising current baseline assessment 
methods and producing a costs analysis) 
along with a Targeted Energy Pathway 

On Target No exception 

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessment (GTAA) (Equality Objective) 

Complete  

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessment (GTAA) Site Selection 
(Equality Objective) 

At Project Brief 

stage 

 

Denbighshire replacement Local 
Development Plan 

At Business 

Case stage 

 

Edward Henry Street On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Additional Council Housing Developments 
(Equality Objective) 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Work with Rhyl Regeneration Programme 
Board to contribute to progressing Rhyl 
Residential Strategy 

Experiencing 

Obstacles 

There has been no update 
since 10 May (where this 
was ‘yellow’, experiencing 
obstacles).  This work will 
be discussed on the 
Forward Work Plan of the 
Prosperous Denbighshire 
Board to see whether or 
not it should continue. 

Develop a tenant involvement framework 
for Denbighshire Housing 

Complete  

Signpost to Welsh Government’s NEST 
Scheme 

Complete  

Tudalen 134



 
19 

Title Status Exception  

Promote and administer the Energy 
Company Obligation Scheme (ECO4) via 
Flintshire County Council – energy 
efficiency in private sector dwellings 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme. We have not listed all of the items here. The council’s website contains a 

wealth of news, which can be found on our news page and filtered by a range of 

categories.  The Communities Scrutiny Committee considered a report in May regarding 

the voids maintenance process and challenge to the budget, mainly as a result of impacts 

of the new Welsh Housing Quality Standards (WHQS) 2023.  In May, Cabinet considered 

the draft Local Housing Market Assessment for Denbighshire, seeking approval of its 

submission to Welsh Government. The Communities Scrutiny Committee, in September, 

considered an update on the Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) and 

homelessness triage service. In September, Partnership Scrutiny Committee considered 

the draft Asset Management Strategy for 2024 to 2029.  

A prosperous Denbighshire 

Measures: Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Work collaboratively with communities and partners to deliver projects and 

initiatives that will stimulate economic growth 

The measures status for this theme has been summarised overall as a ‘Priority for 

Improvement’. However, it should be noted that these include broad and long-term 

indicators such as those from the Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation and stakeholder 

survey responses.  

In September 2023, the UK Government launched the Long-Term Plan for Towns initiative 

as part of its Levelling Up programme. In March 2024, it was announced that Rhyl would 

receive circa £20m as one of the second tranche of towns to be included in the initiative.  

Tudalen 135

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=271&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=271&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=271&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6889&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=271&MId=6927&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx


 
20 

The funding was awarded to Denbighshire County Council and we remain accountable for 

the funding and for delivery of the plan. In May, Cabinet received and supported the 

actions to be taken to meet the requirements of the funding, which included the creation of  

a new Town Board and the appointment of an independent Chair. A further report to 

Cabinet in June confirmed these arrangements and Cabinet was also advised of actions 

required by the Board to be undertaken by 1 November 2024, which include agreeing 

governance, engagement plans, reviewing data and developing a ten year vision and a 

delivery plan for the first three years. 

The council has also secured funding from the Welsh Government Transforming Towns 

Programme to offer the Transforming Towns Property Development Grant to regenerate 

commercial properties located in Rhyl town centre.  Applications opened in August. 

Develop an economic strategy 

Recognising the local and global economic challenges it faces, the council is still 

developing an Economic Strategy.  We are currently consulting on as assessment of our 

strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats as part of the first phase of development. 

We can now report that Denbighshire’s tourism figures have seen a rise for 2023 in 

comparison to the previous year. The latest STEAM (Scarborough Tourism Economic 

Activity Monitor) figures show that the total visitor numbers for Denbighshire in 2023 

reached 6.39 million, an increase of almost 6% (5.9%) in comparison to 2022 figures. The 

data also shows that the number of day visitors to the county for 2023 was 4.72 million, a 

7.5% change when compared to 2022. The total economic impact of tourism was £736.05 

million, an increase of 17.1% on the previous year and is considered ‘Excellent’.  

Work in partnership to support an economy that promotes fair work, justice, 

and socially responsible public procurement, benefitting the local supply 

chain and local communities (Equality Objective) 

The total spend via procurement, including grant funding, during the 2023 to 2024 financial 

year was £226,978,810; £83,426,447 of this being spent within Denbighshire (35.2%).  

56% of relevant procurements contained community benefits and work is ongoing to align 

these with the Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act 2023. Our April to 

June performance was ‘Excellent’ and reflects two significant contracts that were awarded 

to Denbighshire-based construction companies during that time. Community benefits were 

also included in all contracts during April to June. This level of performance cannot be 

Tudalen 136

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6889&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f80fe657-26e7-434e-8b43-7d8184d6c41b
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6890&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/community-and-living/regeneration/transforming-towns/transforming-towns-property-development-grant.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx


 
21 

sustained every quarter because it largely depends on the scale of procurements, but it 

does demonstrate that good procurement can deliver excellent results. 

Support access to education, employment, services, goods, and activities 

There are a number of benchmarked measures that give an indication of performance 

compared to other local authorities in Wales. The data for A, B and C classified roads that 

are in overall poor condition for 2023 to 2024 is unavailable. The percentage of damaged 

roads and pavements made safe within target time (CAT1 - Category 1 defects dealt within 

timescale) has seen an improvement from 27.60% in April to June to 44% between July 

and September.  However, this remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’ (and a continuing 

Improvement Action) as the service continues to struggle with meeting the demands of the 

asset within the limited budgetary and staffing resources available.  

Case Study: Young Carer Secures Full-Time Employment After Work Placement 

Mali, a dedicated young carer, has transitioned into full-time employment following a 

Working Denbighshire Work Start placement. Mali’s journey began with a “Taster to Care” 

training course and work experience, leading her to secure a 12-week placement at 

Dolwen Care Home. Supported by her Work Start Placement Mentor, Mali completed the 

application process for a permanent 24-hour contract at Dolwen Care Home and she 

accepted the job on her 18th birthday. Mali’s exceptional performance during the 

placement earned her a permanent position, marking a significant step towards a 

prosperous career. This case study also links to efforts under our A healthier and happier, 

caring Denbighshire theme. 

 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of skills, training and employment please see 

our learning and growing theme and the well-run, high performing council for further 

activity connected to the local economy. 

Tudalen 137

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/prosperous-denbighshire.aspx
Young%20Carer%20Secures%20Full-Time%20Employment%20After%20Work%20Placement


 
22 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The percentage of 
working age people 
who are claiming Out 
of Work Benefits - 
Benchmarked 
Nationally 

3.6% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

3.5% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

3.8% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

The percentage of 
spend with suppliers 
based within 
Denbighshire – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

15.90% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

41.8% 

Excellent 

Better 

38.6% 

Good 

Worse 

78% 

Excellent 

Better 

36% 

Good 

Worse 

The cumulative 
percentage of 
Denbighshire contracts 
over £25k and under 
£1m containing 
community benefits – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

53.3% 

Good 

Worse 

55..60% 

Good 

Better 

56.00% 

Good 

Better 

100% 

Excellent 

Better 

87% 

Excellent 

Worse 

Year to date average 
for the percentage of 
damaged roads and 
pavements made safe 
within target time 
(CAT1 - Category 1 
defects dealt within 
timescale) 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

23.33% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

52.33%  

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

42.00% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

27.60% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

44.00%  

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The percentage of children in poverty in 
Denbighshire – Benchmarked Nationally 
(Equality Objective) 

28.1% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

Data pending 

Tudalen 138



 
23 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

Average gross annual pay for people who live 
in the area and work full time (£) - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

27,121 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

Data pending 

External funding (in pounds) secured for 
economic development – Count Only 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

£1,041,250 

STEAM - Total Economic Impact of Tourism (£ 
million) - Benchmarked Locally 

£628.58m 

Excellent 

Better 

£736.05  

Excellent 

Better 

Births of businesses per 10,000 of the 
population aged 16 to 64 - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

56  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Data pending 

Deaths of businesses per 10,000 of the 
population aged 16 to 64 - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

69  

Priority to Improve 

Better 

Data pending 

The percentage of principle A roads that are in 
overall poor condition – Benchmarked 
Nationally 

2.2% 

Excellent 

Better 

Data unavailable 

The percentage of non-principal/classified B 
roads that are in overall poor condition – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

3.5% 

Excellent 

Better 

Data unavailable 

The percentage of non-principal/classified C 
roads that are in overall poor condition – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

16.4% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Data unavailable 

The percentage of premises that receive less 
than 30Mbps broadband speed - Count Only 

4.57% 3.88% 

The percentage of premises that receive less 
than 10Mbps broadband speed - Count Only 

2.88% 2.4% 

Tudalen 139



 
24 

Stakeholder Survey  

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire has a 
prosperous economy that provides 
access to the right skills, jobs, and 
income - Benchmarked Locally  

40% 

Priority to Improve 

30% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire has the 
transport and road infrastructure to 
support thriving, cohesive, and well-
connected communities - 
Benchmarked Locally 

31% 

Priority to Improve 

28%  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire has the 
digital infrastructure (such as good 
broadband connectivity, good mobile 
internet or mobile phone signal) to 
support thriving, cohesive, and well-
connected communities – 
Benchmarked Locally 

52.2% 

Acceptable 

52% 

Acceptable 

Same 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the rich cultural heritage 
and natural assets of Denbighshire 
are being used to their full potential - 
Benchmarked Locally (Welsh 
Language and Culture) 

51%  

Acceptable 

49% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Welsh Government’s next Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) update is expected 

in late 2025 or early 2026. Until new data us published please refer to our Performance 

Self-Assessment Update: July to September 2023 report. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Programme: Shared Prosperity Fund On Target No exception 

Tudalen 140

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
25 

Title Status Exception  

Same 

Programme: Levelling Up Fund – Clwyd 
South 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The tight delivery 
timeframe remaining for 
sub-project 3d (Active 
Travel) and the uncertainty 
over the budget position is 
a concern.  

Programme: Levelling Up Fund – Clwyd 
West 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

There is a level of 
uncertainty and increased 
risks that require 
monitoring and mitigation 
at this stage of the 
programme      

Placeholder: Levelling Up Fund Round 3 – 
Vale of Clwyd 

At project brief 
stage 

Awaiting final confirmation 
from UK Government.  
Plans for funding for this 
year and next year are 
expected to be released in 
October. 

Enabling and supporting North Wales 
Growth Deal projects in partnership with 
Ambition North Wales 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Quarterly reports are 
provided to the Partnership 
Scrutiny Committee. The 
annual report from 
Ambition North Wales will 
be presented in November 

Former North Wales Hospital At Risk 

Same 

The project remains ‘At 
Risk’ until all the 
necessary funding and 
planning agreements are 
in place.  

Queen’s Buildings Rhyl At Risk 

Worse 

‘At Risk’ due to delays in 
securing an operator to 
manage and funding 
deadlines. 

Coordinating Welsh Government 
Transforming Towns funding programme 
streams 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop Town Centre Place Making Plans On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop the council’s new Economic 
Strategy (Welsh Language and Culture) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 141



 
26 

Title Status Exception  

Victorian Post Office (Rhyl) On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Progress the Rhyl Public Realm Strategy Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Discussions about the best 
way forward with the 
Strategy are ongoing. 

Reconnect the top of Rhyl High Street with 
the beach (Rhyl promenade) 

At Risk 

Worse 

The project is currently on 
hold due to LUF3 UK 
Government funding. 

Seeking to improve the appearance of 
poorly maintained Rhyl Town Centre 
properties 

At Risk 

Worse 

The Planning Compliance 
Team has halved, and this 
is expected to result in 
targets for this project 
being missed. 

Co-Relocation of Rhyl Tourist Information 
Centre and Rhyl Museum 

At business 
case stage 

No exception 

Develop the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty Sustainable Tourism Plan and 
work with local businesses to develop the 
actions  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Deliver the Denbighshire Tourism Strategy 
and Action Plan 2022 – 2027 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Raise awareness of the provision of Welsh 
training for adults who work in the 
business community (Welsh Language 
and Culture) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Complete feasibility report for move-on 
accommodation at St Asaph Business 
Park 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop a Community Benefits Framework 
to align with the Social Partnership and 
Public Procurement (Wales) Act 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

This is complete, as far as 
possible, while we await 
full implementation of the 
Act.  Reporting on the duty 
will be reliant on contract 
management reporting. 

Aim to deliver the most viable option to 
replace the Llannerch Bridge 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Contribute to the development of the new 
Regional Transport Plan 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 142



 
27 

Title Status Exception  

Work with partners on the proposed 
designation of a National Park in North 
East Wales (Welsh Language and 
Culture) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

3rd Generation - North Wales Construction 
Framework 

Complete The Framework has been 
launched. 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme. We have not listed all of the items here. The council’s website contains a 

wealth of news, which can be found on our news page and filtered by a range of 

categories.  In April, we reported on another successful March For Business. Through the 

Transforming Towns Grant provided by Welsh Government, we managed to work with a 

number of businesses and business owners in Rhyl, helping them to add visual 

improvements to their buildings. In April, Performance Scrutiny Committee received a 

report on Internet Connectivity in Denbighshire. 

  

Tudalen 143

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=1d18702b-6e74-4b5a-82fe-fa52a0bf6822
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5e6b7151-b486-475a-ab7e-3178f36ac8ba
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5e6b7151-b486-475a-ab7e-3178f36ac8ba
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6954&LLL=0


 
28 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  On Target 

Corporate Plan Update  

Ensure that the council’s social care offer is of a high standard 

There continues to be a steady increase in the number of care and support packages that 

have been right sized to single handed care with the right type of specialist equipment. 

Some recognised benefits of right-sizing care include improved outcomes for citizens and 

improved staff efficiency. With regard to projects in relation to this theme, the council has a 

number of ongoing activities in support of those with additional learning or complex needs, 

as can be seen in the table of projects below. There has been a change in delivery 

confidence to ‘Experiencing Obstacles’ for the project at Ysgol Tir Morfa to develop a 

hydrotherapy facility at the school. Successful delivery remains probable, though delays 

are likely due to the funding and design work required to mitigate surface water drainage 

issues.  

In July, the council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee considered the draft Director of 

Social Services Annual Report 2023 to 2024, endorsing it as a clear account of the 

council’s performance whilst acknowledging the financial and resource pressures within 

which the services are operating. At the same meeting, the Committee endorsed the 

Cefndy year end report 2023 to 2024, noting the progress made in planning for the future 

viability of the enterprise. July also saw the council’s Cabinet consider a report on the 

replacement of the Social Care Information Management System. The council’s 

Governance and Audit Committee reviewed the recent Care Inspectorate Wales inspection 

report on Dolwen Care Centre, fully supporting the positive inspection report. In news 

related to the council’s social care offer, topics included local authority fostering services, 

Hafan Deg Day Centre, the Micro-provider initiative, adaptation in social care, and the 

Community Resources Team. 

Support the well-being, mental-health, and resilience of individuals within 

communities (Equality Objective) 

The Talking Points service takes place in libraries across Denbighshire and is a way for 

people to find out what help and support is available in their local area to improve health 

Tudalen 144

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6956&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6956&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6891&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=63b70f4d-c7f4-486b-95a9-645bcc243193
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=0e16dbe2-ce24-4b6c-a92d-0a70bee87536
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=a321d1c9-9abe-4214-b92c-36bd6a0d7aa7
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=b609bfd7-2dcd-491e-9820-ad9eb61850b1
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2746ca87-e6ce-47e6-8935-ade7eacfd3de
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx


 
29 

and well-being. The number of people supported at Talking Points has increased since the 

previous reporting period and the percentage of citizens accessing this support who did 

not need to be referred into the Adult Social Care Service has also increased to 99%.  

Case study: Future Generations thinking 

Talking Points is an example of the way the council is applying the five ways of working for 

the well-being of future generations, by thinking about the long-term needs of our citizens, 

working collaboratively with partners in health services to prevent problems from 

worsening, increasing involvement by reaching out to people in their communities, whilst 

taking an integrated approach to supporting other well-being goals including those that are 

social and cultural as well as the goals of our partner organisations such as the local 

health board.  

During the period we publicised topics such as Ageing Well, support for people living with 

dementia, mental health support, raising mental health awareness, and community food 

initiatives. 

Promote personal and community well-being 

A good number of community well-being projects have received support from the council 

during this period. Many of these projects provide support to citizens in relation to cost-of-

living pressures. Key projects include developing Croeso Cynnes hubs throughout the 

county and the ‘Cogog’ project supporting community food initiatives, which is designed to 

address issues of food waste and food poverty. Both of these are ‘On Target.’ The 

Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint Archive Project continues to report an ’At Risk’ delivery 

confidence status and this is due to being behind schedule. There has been successful 

collaboration between the two organisations, though joint arrangements around funding 

are yet to be finalised.  

We publicised a range of news this period related to Welsh language, culture and heritage 

included the Summer Reading Challenge and art workshops at libraries; young rangers 

volunteering; pupils volunteering with the Salvation Army; Ruthin Gaol immersive activity 

and summer events; St Asaph Workhouse events; Plas Newydd volunteering; and North 

East Wales Archives funding, digital content, and 1920s events. 

Tudalen 145

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f107bdf1-3f78-4524-9cdd-f2fcb8da1981
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7997c079-001b-4f2d-b0df-6d2fbf723dde
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7997c079-001b-4f2d-b0df-6d2fbf723dde
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=edaab915-a31b-455e-87b1-cfd5fed68419
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5ecbc18f-113e-497c-8cf8-f0b0ae7ccc78
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=777c6153-4eb5-471b-9b1e-10e7ecee73b0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=068bcd7b-2843-4246-a14a-6bcbcc0c5a24
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2df8f498-59db-429e-972a-7eb63309d082
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=24f8bf3f-659e-4c3e-b98c-fb61991c1f28
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=412b1c12-7d7e-41d3-90f5-f77aaf7afe9b
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=1d42d5ca-e72d-4b9f-a218-dada0671c254
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4f8a7821-fa9f-4f80-82b2-698bbbb98f89
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3ae57006-1337-4848-a769-2190c5a906e8
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7221ea53-7ebe-4718-a2b1-4570d5ac7cd6
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=34319771-80b4-4c47-9fb0-d4d7a6faf28f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=bde2f03b-7c54-438b-b620-986de4736600
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=944e8748-cfe3-4946-aaec-d233d0536e5f


 
30 

Foster community cohesion by ensuring people are protected from harm, 

abuse, and exploitation (Equality Objective) 

The council continues to monitor the prevalence of reported domestic abuse, hate crime 

and youth offending in Denbighshire. According to North Wales Police, repeat victims are 

people who have been a victim of crime on three or more occasions in 12 months. There 

were 207 repeat victims, and 48 repeat offenders of domestic abuse reported during this 

period. In comparison to the same period last year, for reported repeat victims this is a 

decrease of around 26% (from 279) and for reported repeat offenders this is an increase 

of around 30% (from 37). Reports from the Domestic Abuse Support Unit show that 

referral rates in Denbighshire have remained above 400 each quarter since April 2024, 

and that 27 of the 433 referrals recorded between July and September were for children. 

The number of hate crimes reported for Denbighshire to North Wales Police was 48 

between April and June, with the majority of those categorised as related to sexual 

orientation. Between July and September, 46 reports were made, with the majority of 

those categorised as racial hate crime.  

The number of young people referred to the Youth Justice Service during the year from 

Denbighshire was reported as 106 for July to September, this is an increase of around 

39% from the same period last year (at which point the number was 65). In July, 

Governance and Audit Committee considered a report by the Corporate Director for Social 

Services and Education regarding feedback on the recently published HMIP Joint 

Inspection of Conwy and Denbighshire Youth Justice Service. Of the 12 areas rated, 2 

were deemed inadequate: governance and leadership and partnerships and services. 

Related to these, seven recommendations were made. The Committee acknowledged that 

the report did not contain good news; however, good comments ran throughout the report. 

The committee sought and was given reassurance that the actions identified within the 

report would be carried out. It was agreed that the Denbighshire Youth Justice Service 

Board and Partnership be discussed at the relevant scrutiny committee.  

In September, the council’s Partnerships Scrutiny Committee considered the Community 

Safety Partnership Annual Update for April 2023 to March 2024, accepting the 

performance update within the report. In other news related to community cohesion, topics 

included Rhyl town centre Public Space Protection Order, Armed Forces Day, and 

Emergency Services Day. 

Tudalen 146

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7471bbba-be8b-444b-b6ff-34b19bf8f130
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=13bd3961-8aa4-41b5-9840-f630be0dfaad
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d4651648-f3f9-4964-aed6-5cd9816b61ba


 
31 

Continue to support and resettle refugees through the UK Global 

Resettlement Scheme, in support of Wales’s declaration to be a Nation of 

Sanctuary (Equality Objective) 

The council continues to support unaccompanied asylum seeking children, 15 of whom 

were looked after by the council between April and June, and 14 of whom were looked 

after by the council between July and September. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For information about our work to reduce deprivation and inequality, please see our 

prosperous and well-run, high performing council themes respectively. For further detail 

around our work to support learning, development and well-being, see our Learning and 

Growing theme.    

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The percentage of 
safeguarding enquiries 
from adults completed 
within 7 working days 
from the receipt of the 
reported alleged abuse 
- Benchmarked 
Locally 

99% 

Excellent 

Worse 

96.5% 

Excellent 

Worse 

98% 

Excellent 

Better 

98% 

Excellent 

Same 

97% 

Excellent 

Worse 

The number of 
referrals and enquiries 
recorded on Children 
and Family Support 
Gateway - Count Only 

4,020 3,731 4,001 4,169 2,548 

The number of children 
looked after in 
Denbighshire – Count 
Only 

206 209 210 207 196 

Tudalen 147

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/healthier-happier-caring-denbighshire.aspx


 
32 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The number of care 
and support packages 
that have been right 
sized to single handed 
care with the right type 
of specialist equipment 
– Baseline Year 

11 16 12 22 31 

The percentage of 
schools in the county 
using the Public Health 
Wales Whole School 
Approach to Mental 
Health and Well-being 
Tool – Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 66% 

Acceptable 

Better 

67% 

Acceptable 

Better 

67% 

Acceptable 

Same 

67% 

Acceptable 

Same 

The number of Single 
Point of Access 
contacts for 
information, advice 
and assistance – 
Count Only 

4,911 4,821 4,259 4,936 5,075 

The number of Talking 
Point contacts for 
information, advice 
and assistance 
(libraries, One Stop 
Shops and hosted by 
Community Navigators 
etc) - Count Only 

218 214 194 305 297 

The percentage of 
citizens receiving 
information, advice 
and assistance from 
Talking Points who did 
not need to be referred 
into Adult Social Care -
Baseline Year 

87% 97% 92% 97% 99% 

The number of projects 
or groups supported by 
the Community 
Resilience Team - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

73 

Excellent 

Worse 

75 

Excellent 

Better 

53 

Acceptable 

Worse 

87 

Excellent 

Better 

61 

Good 

Worse 

Tudalen 148



 
33 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The cumulative (year 
to date) number of 
repeat victims of 
Domestic Abuse 
reported including non-
crime occurrences (3 
or more in 12 months, 
measured as year to 
date) - Count Only  
(Equality Objective) 

279 360 490 128 207 

The cumulative (year 
to date) number of 
repeat offenders of 
Domestic Abuse 
reported (3 or more in 
12 months) - Count 
Only (Equality 
Objective) 

37 63 88 23 48 

The number of 
referrals to the 
Domestic Abuse 
Safety Unit North 
Wales (DASU) for 
Denbighshire to 
support victims of 
domestic abuse – 
Count Only (Equality 
Objective) 

Data 
reported 
from 
January 
2024 

Data 
reported 
from 
January 
2024 

382 466 433 

Denbighshire hate 
crimes reported (from 
North Wales Police) – 
Count Only (Equality 
Objective) 

54 52 34 48 46 

The number of young 
people referred to the 
Youth Justice Service 
during the year from 
Denbighshire – 
Baseline Year 

65 78 78 117 106 

The number of 
Unaccompanied 
Asylum-Seeking 
Children (UASC) 
looked after by 

20 18 17 15 14 

Tudalen 149



 
34 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

Denbighshire – Count 
Only 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The percentage of new assessments 
completed for children during the year 
that were completed within statutory 
timescales - Benchmarked Nationally 

77% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

65% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of child protection 
conferences held within statutory 
timescales - Benchmarked Nationally 

95% 

Good 

Better 

93% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

The number of contacts by adult carers 
received by statutory Social Services 
during the year where advice or 
assistance was provided - Count Only 

1,159 1,094 

The total number of carers needs 
assessments for adults undertaken 
during the year (cumulative) – Count 
Only (Equality Objective) 

401 370 

Number of micro providers in existence in 
Denbighshire – Benchmarked Locally 

30 

Excellent 

57 

Excellent 

Better 

The number of schools that have 
achieved Trauma Informed School status 
by 2027 -Benchmarked Locally 

1 

Excellent 

1 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The number of young people who receive 
school-based counselling in Denbighshire 
– Benchmarked Locally 

338 

Acceptable 

Better 

301 

Acceptable 

Worse 

The number of contacts provided through 
the council's Edge of Care volunteer 
service - Count Only 

795 333 

The cumulative number of families 
resettled within Denbighshire – Count 
Only (Equality Objective) 

41 50 

Tudalen 150



 
35 

Stakeholder Survey  

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that they can live safely, happily, 
and independently, in Denbighshire and 
also receive good support when needed 
to promote resilience and well-being - 
Benchmarked Locally 

55% 

Acceptable 

46% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire has the social 
infrastructure needed to support personal 
and community well-being – 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

62% 

Acceptable 

66% 

Good 

Better 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agreed that people in Denbighshire are 
treated fairly and equally, and have 
access to opportunities to promote their 
well-being and community cohesion - 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

46% 

Priority to Improve 

53% 

Acceptable 

Better 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Welsh Government’s next Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) update is expected 

in late 2025 or early 2026. Until new data us published please refer to our Performance 

Self-Assessment Update: July to September 2023 report. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Monitor and implement requirements 
of Foster Wales and monitor 
effectiveness of national approach. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement Post 16 of Additional 
Learning Needs work 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The regional inclusion 
group continues to seek 
further information from 
Welsh Government. 

Tudalen 151

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
36 

Title Status Exception  

Develop an in-county residential short 
breaks and emergency care provision 
for children with complex needs and 
disabilities within Denbighshire  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement and embed the Autism 
Code of Practice requirements at local 
authority level across Children’s 
Services. 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Numerous workstreams 
are progressing with key 
partners and support is 
available to people who 
are awaiting a diagnostic 
assessment. 

Bwthyn y Ddol Phase 2 (Activity) 
Develop and implement, including 
staffing, a new Children’s Assessment 
Centre jointly with Conwy County 
Borough Council and Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board 

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Ysgol Tir Morfa - Hydrotherapy pool Experiencing 
obstacles 

Worse 

This is delayed due to 
the availability of funding 
and design work required 
to mitigate surface water 
drainage issues.   

Work with local unpaid carers to 
identify the respite opportunities they 
need, and how barriers are overcome 
to enable this. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Work towards becoming an age-
friendly Denbighshire, with World 
Health Organisation, in partnership 
with Ageing Well in Denbighshire 
multi-agency group.  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Work in partnership regionally to 
contribute to the embedding of the All 
Wales Dementia Pathway of 
Standards  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Progress towards digitalisation of 
telecare services before the 2025 
deadline for ceasing of analogue 
telephone services. 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Bruton Park, Rhyl (working with Bruton 
Park residents to maximise community 
well-being). 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 152



 
37 

Title Status Exception  

Develop Croeso Cynnes hubs 
throughout the County. 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Develop and deliver the county wide 
Food Strategy and Food Partnership 
Network (including social supermarket 
project – Cogog) around Denbighshire    

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint 
Archive Project 

At Risk 

Same 

Delivery of the project is 
behind schedule and 
joint arrangements 
around funding are yet to 
be finalised.  

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme. We have not listed all of the items here. The council’s website contains a 

wealth of news, which can be found on our news page and filtered by a range of 

categories.  At September’s meeting, the Governance and Audit Committee considered an 

information report on Urgent and Emergency Care: Flow out of Hospital – North Wales 

Region and recommended that the item be referred at the relevant scrutiny committee for 

discussion. In September, the council’s Partnerships Scrutiny Committee considered the 

North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Report 2023 to 2024, taking account of 

the work undertaken by the Board. 

  

Tudalen 153

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&LLL=0


 
38 

A learning and growing Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Promote the learning and development of our children and young people 

(Equality Objective) 

Between July and September, 642 children took part in the childcare offer across 

Denbighshire, which is considered as ‘Good’ performance given this is always the quietest 

period as the children start school. We plan to improve the way we work with schools to 

collect data. This includes data to help us monitor bullying in schools and the use of the 

Welsh language in education. The number of schools in either Estyn Review, Significant 

Improvement or Special Measures rose from 3 to 4, which is ‘Acceptable’. Christ the Word 

Catholic School remained in Special Measures and Ysgol Clawdd Offa was in need of 

Significant Improvement. These are the two statutory categories into which schools may 

be placed by the inspectorate if they are causing concern, with Special Measures being 

the category of highest concern. Ysgol Pendref and Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn were in Estyn 

Review, a status applied if inspectors have seriously considered but rejected placing a 

school in a statutory category, but are concerned that follow-up action is necessary. 

Developments in regional school improvement continued to be carefully monitored in the 

light of the impending cessation of GwE as the regional school improvement service for 

North Wales. The council is working on creating a new project to ensure that progress 

continues in this area of work and updates will be provided in time.  

Attendance in primary and secondary schools for the academic year 2023 to 2024 

improved, though the figures remain a ‘Priority for Improvement’ at 92.3% and 88.2% 

respectively. In news related to learning and development, there was an update on the 

expansion of the Flying Start childcare offer, an article detailing the installation of a 

sensory path in Rhyl, and guidance on Denbighshire’s new schools admissions system. 

During the period, school pupils celebrated GCSE results, A Level results, and the 80th 

anniversary of D-day. 

Tudalen 154

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=0bec30e6-a08c-4253-b068-8ba777f92f7f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=89f588f2-8f4f-4ad7-bf00-c5759dfced72
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=102f174f-eeaf-47ef-bf97-8467a7d00d86
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=52638334-e399-4150-899e-35268941414a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7a0e53a3-63d9-428b-aacd-af78c8c994d0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e7c6aaae-24c7-4c91-b52e-b87b1811f341
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e7c6aaae-24c7-4c91-b52e-b87b1811f341


 
39 

Provide high quality buildings and facilities that meet the needs of pupils, 

families, and the wider community, including working with the Welsh 

Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme 

The council continued to progress its long-term plans for delivering this pledge. 

Unfortunately, delays in the progression of certain projects within the Modernising 

Education Programme - designed to provide high quality buildings and facilities that meet 

the current and future needs of pupils and families as part of the Welsh Government’s 

Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme meant that this stream of work 

remained ‘At Risk.’ The Community Focussed Schools pilot project in Prestatyn remained 

‘On Target’ and continued to strengthen, with work being undertaken to grow this initiative. 

In April, Cabinet approved the submission to Welsh Government of the draft Strategic 

Outline Programme for the Sustainable Communities for Learning. In May, the 

Partnerships Scrutiny Committee, considered a review of the Cabinet decision relating to 

Sustainable Communities for Learning, in accordance with the Council’s call-in procedure, 

and it was resolved that Cabinet’s original decision be upheld.  

Work with partners to ensure that people of all ages, including those who are 

vulnerable or in our care, are resilient and prepared for employment, further 

education, or training (Equality Objective) 

We are no longer able to report on Llwybrau data, as it has not been possible to secure 

funding to extend the project, which supported young people to reduce their risk of 

disengagement. There was continued development of relationships with colleges and 

further education institutions following the closure of Llwybrau and the council continued to 

work collaboratively with partners such as Ambition North Wales and the Regional Skills 

Partnership, to enhance people’s opportunities to develop skills and receive training. The 

council’s Working Denbighshire Service continued to support citizens seeking 

employment, further education or training though the Work Start Scheme. We have now 

received the results of the Pupil Attitudes to Self and School (PASS) surveys which were 

conducted during the 2023 to 2024 academic year and these show that a ‘Good’ 

proportion (81%) of pupils responded positively against feelings about school. 

Tudalen 155

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6888&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6989&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=659a0392-9e87-4b77-9031-04670f274949


 
40 

Improving the well-being of children from low income and disadvantaged 

families (Equality Objective) 

Projects in support of this pledge were ‘On Target’, including the roll-out of universal free 

school meals for all primary school pupils. We are working on gathering data around the 

numbers of primary and secondary school pupils that are eligible (based on household 

income) for free school meals as this will help us to understand the levels of child poverty 

in Denbighshire. We will publish this data as soon as it is available. The council also 

issued guidance for families to support them to access the School Essentials Grant. In 

September, County Council considered and agreed a notice of motion brought by the Plaid 

Cymru group proposing that the council write to all the members of parliament who 

represent Wales in Westminster on the matter of the two-child benefit cap supporting the 

need to abolish it. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of well-being please see our healthier, happier 

and caring theme and for further detail around our work to support employment and the 

economy see our prosperous theme. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The number of children 
taking part in the 
childcare offer – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

624 

Good  

Better 

 701 

Excellent 

Better 

772 

Excellent 

Better 

822 

Excellent 

Better 

642 

Good 

Worse 

The number of schools 
in either Estyn Review, 
Significant 
Improvement or 
Special Measures – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

2 

Good 

Same 

2 

Good 

Same 

3 

Acceptable 

Worse 

4 

Acceptable 

Worse 

4 

Acceptable 

Worse 

Tudalen 156

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/learning-and-growing-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c53c70fe-2b5a-44aa-bebd-59bf24bc68b4
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c53c70fe-2b5a-44aa-bebd-59bf24bc68b4
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=dd744382-f3b7-42dc-b23a-61b5f3ca0c52
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6883&LLL=0


 
41 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The percentage of children entering nursery 
that have been provided with a ‘Me in a 
Nutshell’ profile by Family Link Workers, 
supporting their effective transition – 
Benchmarked Locally 

82% 

Excellent 

Better 

83% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of parents that have reported 
a positive impact through attending Bookstart 
and Rhyme-time – Benchmarked Locally 

99% 

Excellent 

99% 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of pupils (using Pupil Attitudes 
to Self and School - PASS) who respond 
positively against pupils’ feelings about school 
– Benchmarked Locally 

85% 

Good 

Worse 

81% 

Good 

Worse 

The number of reported occurrences of 
prejudice related bullying in schools - 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality Objective) 

No data Data expected 
October 2024 

The percentage of pupil attendance in primary 
schools – Benchmarked Locally 

90.8% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse  

92.3% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The percentage of pupil attendance in 
secondary schools – Benchmarked Locally 

86% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse  

88.2% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The percentage of reception pupils receiving 
Welsh medium education - Count Only 
(Welsh Language and Culture) 

27.4% 28.4% 

The number of schools providing education 
through suitability and condition categories C 
and D – Benchmarked Locally 

27 

Excellent 

Same 

27 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of Year 11 Leavers from 
schools know Not to be in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET), at the 
preceding 31 August in Denbighshire – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

2.3% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

2.4% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of Year 11 pupils that do not 
have an identified Post-16 pathway in place – 
Benchmarked Locally 

10.5% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

2.4% 

Good 

Better 

Tudalen 157



 
42 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The percentage of children or young people 
who are looked after that have a Personal 
Education Plan in place – Benchmarked 
Locally 

96% 

Good 

Worse 

98% 

Good 

Better 

The percentage of care leavers in categories 2, 
3 and 4 who have completed at least 3 
consecutive months of employment, education 
or training in the collection year – Count Only 

73% 

Excellent 

Better 

75% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of primary school pupils 
assessed as eligible for Free School Meals 
(Denbighshire) – Benchmarked Locally  

Data expected 
October 2024 

Data expected 
October 2024 

The percentage of secondary school pupils 
assessed as eligible for Free School Meals 
(Denbighshire) – Benchmarked Locally 

Data expected 
October 2024 

Data expected 
October 2024 

The percentage of primary school pupils taking 
up the offer of a free school meal – 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality Objective) 

61% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

76% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of secondary school pupils 
taking up the offer of a free school meal – 
Benchmarked Locally (Equality Objective) 

76% 

Excellent 

Better 

81% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of children entering nursery 
that have been provided with a ‘Me in a 
Nutshell’ profile by Family Link Workers, 
supporting their effective transition – 
Benchmarked Locally 

82% 

Excellent 

Better 

83% 

Excellent 

Better 

Stakeholder Survey 

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that good quality learning and 
training is available in Denbighshire, 
allowing people of all ages to reach their 
personal and professional potential – 
Benchmarked Locally 

62% 

Acceptable 

56% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire is a county 
where the Welsh language is a living, 

62% 

Acceptable 

56% 

Acceptable 

Tudalen 158



 
43 

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

thriving language - Benchmarked 
Locally (Welsh Language and 
Culture) 

Worse 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Welsh Government’s next Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) update is expected 

in late 2025 or early 2026. Until new data us published please refer to our Performance 

Self-Assessment Update: July to September 2023 report. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Flying Start Expansion On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement School Improvement Guidance: 
Framework for evaluation, improvement 
and accountability 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Delayed by reforms in the 
Welsh Government School 
Improvement Partnership 
Programme. 

Support the regional project on Emotional 
Health, Well-being and Resilience 
Framework, which will provide resources 
for parents 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Support schools in developing digital 
competency through educational 
leadership of the EdTech project 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

A change in systems is 
required and the Schools 
Digital Strategy will need to 
be revised to reflect these 
changes, which were 
overseen by Welsh 
Government. 

Implement the WESP to support 1 million 
speakers by 2050 (Welsh Language and 
Culture) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 159

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
44 

Title Status Exception  

In partnership with GwE, Support schools 
and non-maintained settings to deliver the 
new curriculum for Wales to ensure our 
learners become capable, ambitious, 
enterprising, ethical, healthy and confident 
adults 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement requirements of the of ALN 
Reform Act within Education and 
Children's Services to ensure compliance 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Modernising Education Programme At Risk 

Same 

Delays continue in the 
progression of Sustainable 
Communities for Learning 
projects.  

Community Focussed Schools: Prestatyn 
High Pilot 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Engage with the North Wales Ambition 
Board and the Regional Skills Partnership 
to ensure that skills and training secured 
through our Community Benefits Policy is 
fit for the future and / or transferrable 

Experiencing 
obstacles 

Worse 

We are working with the 
Ambition Board on a 
procurement and social 
value conference which 
will be held in November. 

Through our Community Benefits Policy, 
secure business led strategy workshops 
for the benefit of residents seeking to 
upskill 

Experiencing 
obstacles 

Same 

We are still working with 
Balfour Beatty to deliver 
workshops.  

Universal Free School Meals for all 
Primary School Pupils (Equality 
Objective)  

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Enhance the School Holiday Enrichment 
Programme to support children to eat well 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Reducing the impact of poverty on 
Education Attainment, including 
implementing the Price of Poverty project 
(Equality Objective) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme. We have not listed all of the items here. The council’s website contains a 

wealth of news, which can be found on our news page and filtered by a range of 

Tudalen 160

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news.aspx


 
45 

categories.  In June, the council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee considered, and was 

satisfied with, a report on the progress made in addressing the recommendations in the 

2018 Estyn Inspection Report of Denbighshire County Council education services. In July, 

Governance and Audit Committee received a report regarding the recent CIW and Estyn 

inspection at Little Acorns at Christ the Word and fully supported the positive inspection 

report. In September, the council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee received and 

discussed the Additional Learning Needs Transformation Update report. At the same 

meeting, the Committee considered a report on the current position with regards to School 

Attendance And Engagement In Education. The Committee also reviewed the Welsh in 

Education Strategic Plan (WESP) Transformation Update report. Finally, the Committee 

considered a report providing an update on the progress made by schools since the 

Curriculum for Wales became statutory in September 2022. 

  

Tudalen 161

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6955&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6957&LLL=0


 
46 

A Greener Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Deliver our Climate and Ecological Change Strategy to become a net carbon 

zero and ecologically positive council by 2030 

The first official review and refresh of the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy was 

carried out during 2023 to 2024. The final version following consultation and feedback 

received was submitted for adoption by Cabinet and Council in June 2024.  The document 

approved now being entitled : Denbighshire County Council’s Climate and Nature Strategy 

2021/22 to 2029/30 (Year 3 Updated Version).  

There are a number of key performance indicators that are being used to judge the 

performance of the council in achieving its 2030 goals, including: reducing carbon 

emissions the Council emits from various sources, increasing carbon sequestration of land 

the Council owns/leases and manages and increasing the species richness of the land the 

Council owns/leases and manages. Data for the year 2023 to 2024 is now contained 

within this report. The percentage of council owned and operated land in highest 

categories of species richness has very slightly increased to 42.5% in 2023 to 2024 and 

indicates we are making ‘Acceptable’ progress towards becoming an Ecologically Positive 

Council by 2030.  

Our 2023 to 2024 carbon emissions data has now been reported to Welsh Government as 

part of the annual public sector reporting.  The Council’s Net Carbon Zero position as at 31 

March 2024 is 12,653 tonnes, which, by 2030, needs to be zero tonnes. This indicator 

remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. 

The total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) through supply chains rose from 36,912 in 

2022 to 2023 to 50,233 in 2023 to 2024.  The target is a reduction by 35% from 2019/20 

baseline. This indicator remains as a ‘Priority for Improvement’. 

The pace of reductions in carbon emissions indicates that insufficient progress is being 

made to meet the 2030 goal of net zero. The financial pressures all local authorities are 

facing now and in the coming years will continue to impact on that pace. We have 

Tudalen 162

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx


 
47 

maintained our Climate and Ecological Improvement ambition and have not adjusted our 

targets - despite their challenge. 

Improve recycling rates and reduce waste 

In June 2024 we introduced a new recycling system to help us meet Welsh Government’s 

70% recycling target which has been set for all local authorities in Wales. The new 

household waste collection model is a specific project within this Greener theme because 

it will help us to increase the quantity and quality of recycling collected from households 

and increase opportunities for “closed loop recycling”. Through adoption of low carbon 

technologies at the new Waste Transfer Station and inclusion of infrastructure for Zero and 

Ultra Low Emission Vehicles, the aim is to minimise the impact of the service in support of 

the wider corporate goals on net zero by 2030. The project also supports the Prosperous 

theme, which aims to support economic recovery, capitalising on opportunities to enable 

residents to access decent employment and income. The project has led to the creation of 

additional jobs within the waste service. In addition, the building of the new depot enabled 

the creation and protection of many local private sector jobs. We worked with four 

important local businesses at the Colomendy Business Park, Denbigh, as part of the 

development of the new Depot. This allowed them to unlock and develop new employment 

land to enable those four businesses to remain in Denbigh and expand their operations. 

It soon became apparent after the roll out of the new service that some of the assumptions 

were flawed. The main issue being some of the daily recycling rounds had been designed 

with too many properties requiring collection. This meant we were seeing several rounds 

per day not completing, resulting in large and unacceptable numbers of missed 

collections. At Cabinet in June, the Leader raised the roll out of the new recycling and 

waste collection service as an urgent item, apologising on behalf of the council to  

residents affected by problems associated with the roll out of the new service and to 

elected members who had been working hard on behalf of residents. He also thanked 

members for reporting missed collections in their wards and residents for their patience 

and efforts in recycling. A report will be taken to Cabinet on 1 October regarding Additional 

resources required for the new weekly trollibocs recycling service and associated waste 

collection functions. There will be a full review of how the roll out was planned and 

implemented, which will include an examination of the assumptions underpinning the 

design of the new service. Elected Members and residents will be involved in the review. 

Tudalen 163

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6890&LLL=0
http://mgintranet/documents/s57588/2024.10.01_Cabinet%20Report_Waste%20and%20Recycling%20Service.pdf?LLL=0
http://mgintranet/documents/s57588/2024.10.01_Cabinet%20Report_Waste%20and%20Recycling%20Service.pdf?LLL=0
http://mgintranet/documents/s57588/2024.10.01_Cabinet%20Report_Waste%20and%20Recycling%20Service.pdf?LLL=0


 
48 

Support communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of climate 

change  

Case study: Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme provides work experience 

This is an example of the community benefits that can be delivered through our 

procurement and the ways in which our themes complement each other. The work 

experience was arranged between the council’s Llwybrau project (that supports young 

people at risk from disengaging from education) and Balfour Beatty, the contractor 

undertaking the works for the Rhyl and Prestatyn Coastal Defence schemes. Nine young 

people from Rhyl College and Christ the Word Schol were given the work experience 

placements to gain an insight into civil engineering.  

Two participants said: “I think the positives about Balfour Beatty are that what they are 

doing is amazing and will help Rhyl out in the long run. The staff are also really nice and 

the stuff behind how machines work and what the actual plan is for the sea defences is 

really interesting.” 

“I liked how nice the people were and how they treat you with respect. I really enjoyed 

going out on site to see how things get done and why they do it.” 

Develop a Sustainable Transport Plan that makes travel and tourism within 

our county ‘greener’ 

The Sustainable Transport Plan project has now been closed and removed from the 

Corporate Plan as recommended in our last report.  Working closely with the Corporate 

Joint Committee on the Regional Transport Plan is now the council’s priority going forward. 

The unreported Active Travel measures have also been removed. To learn more about 

active travel you can visit the Active Travel page on our website. 

We are now able to report the cumulative number of journeys using the Fflecsi bus service 

and cumulative number of concessionary journeys and have provided data in this report. 

Support our county’s green infrastructure 

By August, our EV charging public network reached its first anniversary by providing 

thousands of green miles for motorists to travel around Denbighshire.  The network 

located at all towns have provided 239,146kwh of charging for motorists using the 

Tudalen 164

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://businessnewswales.com/rhyl-coastal-defence-scheme-provides-work-experience-opportunities/
https://businessnewswales.com/rhyl-coastal-defence-scheme-provides-work-experience-opportunities/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/parking-roads-and-travel/active-travel/active-travel.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/greener-denbighshire.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=04157ea9-e603-4246-8c8a-978b17961553


 
49 

facilities, the equivalent of 837,000 miles of greener lower carbon travelling and nearly 34 

times travelling around the circumference of the earth. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of greener initiatives please see our Housing 

theme for energy efficiency and our Prosperous for sustainable travel. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

Cumulative number of 
journeys using Fflecsi 
bus services – Count 
Only 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

3,644 6,915 

Cumulative number of 
concessionary 
journeys – Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

178,922 370,709 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

Net Carbon Zero - Total carbon tonnage 
emitted and absorbed by the council (excluding 
supply chains) – Benchmarked Locally 

12,062 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

12,653 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of DCC owned and operated 
land in highest categories of species richness 
– Benchmarked Locally 

42.00% 

Acceptable 

Better 

42.50%  

Acceptable 

Better 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through fleet – Benchmarked Locally 

2,302 

Acceptable 

Better 

2,166 

Acceptable 

Better 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through business travel– Benchmarked 
Locally 

251 

Excellent 

Worse 

276 

Excellent 

Worse 

Tudalen 165



 
50 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through supply chains– Benchmarked Locally 

36,912 

Priority to Improve 

Priority  

50,233 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Capacity (in MW) of renewable energy 
equipment installed in our buildings (owned 
and operated) - Count Only 

1Mw 1.190Mw 

The percentage of municipal waste reused, 
recycled or composted - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

65.91% 

Good 

Worse 

67.59% 

Excellent 

Better 

The number of properties with a high or 
medium risk of flooding (DCC wide) - Count 
Only 

1,171 1,171 

Stakeholder Survey 

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that Denbighshire is resilient 
against the impacts of climate change 
and nature’s decline - Benchmarked 
Locally 

52% 

Acceptable 

44% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Welsh Government’s next Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) update is expected 

in late 2025 or early 2026. Until new data us published please refer to our Performance 

Self-Assessment Update: July to September 2023 report. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Programme: Climate and Ecological 
Change Programme 2021 – 2030 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

This is due to delays in 
some projects and their 
delivery not being at the 

Tudalen 166

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
51 

Title Status Exception  

pace required to meet our 
ambition. 

Deliver the annual programme of 
Ash Dieback work 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Rhyl Green Infrastructure On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Remodelling Waste Service Operations At Risk 

Worse 

The roll out of the new 
service hasn't gone entirely 
to plan and the service has 
encountered a variety of 
issues. 

Reduce plastics in schools and promote 
recycling in relation to the new waste 
model 

 

On Target 

Better 
No exception 

Develop and implement a new 
Denbighshire Flood Risk Management 
Strategy for the county 

On Target  

Same 
No exception 

Prestatyn Central Coastal Defence 
Improvement Scheme 

On Target  

Same 

No exception 

Rhyl Central Coastal Defence 
Improvement Scheme 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Review, develop and modernise rural, 
urban and inter-urban transport services, 
where appropriate, working with partners 
within the Metro project and alongside the 
emerging bus reform 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Work with Conwy and Denbighshire Public 
Service Board to develop and assess our 
organisation’s climate risk resilience 

On Target 

New 

No exception 

 A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme. The council’s website contains a wealth of news about nature, our local 

environment and community activity around climate change, which can be found on our 

news page by applying the filter for “Climate and ecological change”. 

Tudalen 167

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news.aspx


 
52 

As part of the current programme of work on the Rhyl Coastal Defence scheme, Balfour 

Beatty will also be undertaking the demolishment of the old SeaQuarium building to 

improve the public realm and declutter the promenade. In September, Cabinet agreed to 

endorse a Local Area Energy Plan (LAEP) for the county.  The LAEP is an evidence-

based, holistic plan that outlines the scale of change and opportunity to decarbonise 

Denbighshire’s local energy system.  

Tudalen 168

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ad3fa913-538e-40b3-a2c8-d169cb9fc688
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ad3fa913-538e-40b3-a2c8-d169cb9fc688
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6892&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=96ddee28-a3e1-4dc7-971c-04e70c23d838


 
53 

A well-run, high performing council 

Measures:  Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Embed a positive “one council” culture (Equality Objective) 

This last period has been challenging for the Council as the new waste collection and 

recycling service has had a difficult start (the significant increase in external complaints 

upheld or partly upheld reflects this). We pulled together as “One Council” (see our values 

and five principles here) to support our waste service, and worked closely with members 

and residents to understand and resolve issues. We are a learning organisation and are 

committed to listen and apply the lessons learned to future transformational projects. 

Whilst wider communications about the Well-run, high performing council Board (that 

supports this theme of the Corporate Plan) were postponed during the period, the Board, 

in April, inputted into the annual self-assessment, service performance challenges and the 

peer-led Panel Performance Assessment, which has now concluded. Two further 

workshops were held with office-based staff, and a task and finish group consisting of 

officers, elected members and partners has progressed ideas about how the council could 

build stronger relationships with and improve its engagement, support and collaboration 

with communities and partners, including City, Town and Community Councils. This is 

likely to contribute to wider efforts to improve engagement in council business, for example 

Scrutiny Committees, which was also cited as part of the Annual Report of the Scrutiny 

Committees 2023 to 2024 provided to County Council in July. The Board’s July meeting 

was postponed and will take place in October. The theme for that meeting will be the 

emerging transformation agenda and how our culture can enable transformation; bringing 

staff along on that journey and to ensure our values and principles are reflected in the 

customer experience.  

We aim to provide consistently good customer service, and a key part of that is about our 

systems. During the period, the council signed a new contract with Civica for C360 CRM, 

our customer relationship management system, until February 2027. This will enable us to 

consider opportunities to integrate, unify and streamline business operations and IT 

systems as well seek out digital transformation possibilities. 

Tudalen 169

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/jobs-and-employees/work-for-us/working/vision-values-principles.aspx#:~:text=Our%205%20Principles,-Our%205%20principles&text=Our%20culture%20is%20centred%20around,and%20enjoyable%20for%20our%20employees.
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/jobs-and-employees/work-for-us/working/vision-values-principles.aspx#:~:text=Our%205%20Principles,-Our%205%20principles&text=Our%20culture%20is%20centred%20around,and%20enjoyable%20for%20our%20employees.
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6882&LLL=0


 
54 

Case study: Example of our values and principles in action 

Officers from across the council have been supporting Llanfair Community Council | 

Dyffryn Clwyd DC Community with its Llanfair Playground Planning Application. Our 

support has ranged from helping with the technical aspects of the Application, to 

supporting conversations with external funders on timescales. 

Performance in relation to the percentage of staff who have had at least one or three one-

to-ones in the last 12 months has deteriorated these last two quarters from 91% at the end 

of March to 72% at the end of September, and is considered a ‘Priority for Improvement’. 

Every Services’ performance in relation to one-to-ones will be included in Performance 

Reports for Service Performance Challenges in November and December this year. 

Sickness levels corporately have also increased slightly to an average of 9.07 working 

days / shifts per full time equivalent. Following a review of the thresholds that determine 

what excellent performance looks like, we have decided to retain existing thresholds rather 

than update them in line with wider sector averages. Our own thresholds, based on 

employee absence across all sectors and the public sector, are significantly more 

stretching and help us to maintain a focus on managing sickness absence. The 

percentage of employees that have completed all 10 mandatory e-learning modules by the 

end of the year (excluding schools) has decreased to 45.79% and remains a ‘Priority for 

Improvement’. 

Reduce inequalities by ensuring that the experiences of people from diverse 

backgrounds, seldom heard groups, and those at a socio-economic 

disadvantage are heard and inform decision making (Equality Objective) 

An engagement network of people and groups with protected characteristics has been 

developed in partnership with the Community Cohesion Team, the North Wales Public 

Sector Equality Network and Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council (DVSC). The final 

list was presented to the Strategic Equality and Diversity Group in April 2024 and will be 

published on our website.  

The Youth Council and youth forums are being relaunched. This work is closely linked our 

workstream to be closer to communities. A report to the Well-run Board will include 

recommendations about how we can enable young people’s voices to be heard. This work 

also supports our healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire theme. 

Tudalen 170

https://www.llanfaircommunitycouncil.co.uk/
https://www.llanfaircommunitycouncil.co.uk/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx


 
55 

Case study: Denbigh Youth host consultation event for safer bike routes 

A group of young people from Denbigh Youth Club recently came together to start a 

“Bumps and Jumps” campaign to highlight the need for safer biking routes in the town for 

young people to be able to get out and about and keep active. The idea came when Osian 

Gregson, 13, who attends Denbigh Youth Club decided to take action after becoming 

frustrated that there wasn’t anywhere suitable in the town for him and other young people 

in the area to be able to play out on their bikes safely. He shared his concerns with a 

Youth Worker who advised him on what he would need to do to get his voice heard. The 

group also set up a portable pump track at the event to show off some of their biking skills 

and to exhibit the benefits of a potential pump track in Denbigh. Osian said: “The idea for 

this campaign came partly from the fact that I love being outside; I would rather be outside 

than on my PlayStation! But also, not everyone is able to easily get about. Some parents 

don’t drive and so young people rely on our bikes a lot to get around and I want to be able 

to feel safe riding from one place to the other in Denbigh. That’s why something like a 

pump track in the area would be great because it would offer a space for us to go where 

we can socialise and keep active and not just sit at home.” 

Play our part in achieving one million Welsh Speakers in Wales by 2050, by 

building a culture and ethos that encourages the daily use of Welsh (Welsh 

Language and Culture) 

During the period, a new Welsh Language Officer was appointed and started in post in 

August. The Officer has recommenced ‘gair y wythnos’, delivered local celebrations on 

Diwrnod Owain Glyndŵr and will be recommencing monthly ‘paned a sgwrs’ sessions to 

provide staff with an informal opportunity to practice speaking in Welsh. There is now a 

cohort of 33 officers participating in Welsh language training and there continues to be a 

growing use of Welsh formally at committee meetings, and informally in the day-to-day 

business of the council. A meeting with our Welsh language partners will take place in 

October, to expand and promote Welsh-medium opportunities, in particular those available 

to young people in Denbighshire. Notwithstanding these positive developments, the 

percentage of staff that have completed Welsh Language Awareness e-learning is not 

increasing and remains ‘Acceptable’. Corporate Support Services: People has been 

tasked with an action to support and encourage the greater use of Welsh, informally and 

formally, throughout the council following its Performance Challenge in March 2024. As 

reported previously, officers have been developing guidance to inform recruitment of staff 

Tudalen 171

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=963994a8-1ab9-4268-bfa9-cdac40beebbb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx


 
56 

with Welsh essential and Welsh desirable skills. The aim is to move to a position whereby 

every job has, as a minimum, a Level 1 Welsh language skills requirement (some positions 

will require a Level 5 skill). During the period, we published our annual report to monitor 

the work done over the past year to comply with the requirements of the Welsh Language 

Standards. 

Working collaboratively to alleviate problems with recruitment and retention 

A social care workshop was hosted at County Hall in Ruthin on August 1, for people who 

are looking for a new opportunity to get into the social care field. The event provided 

information about Denbighshire’s successful social care teams and the specific job 

vacancies that were available. Information on how to apply was also shared at the event, 

with the chance for applicants to complete an application form. Interviews were also be 

held on the day and four appointments were made. Another event was held on September 

19 focussing on recruiting into vacancies in Domiciliary Support Services, community 

roles, and roles supporting citizens who are based in the south of Denbighshire, resulting 

in another four appointments. 

Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of procurement and community benefits, 

please see the Prosperous theme. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The percentage of 
projects whose 
delivery confidence 
was updated in the last 
three months – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

100% 

Excellent 

Better 

98% 

Good 

Worse 

90% 

Good 

Worse 

88 

Acceptable 

Worse 

88 

Acceptable 

Same 

Tudalen 172

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/welsh-language-standards.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/well-run-high-performing-council.aspx


 
57 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The cumulative 
number of Internal 
Audit low assurance 
reports, financial year 
to date – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

Corporate and Service 
Budget Variance (£k) – 
Count Only 

3,446 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

3,229 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

513 

Excellent 

Better 

0 

Excellent 

Better 

-400 

Excellent 

Better 

Council reserves (£k) – 
Count Only 

5,531 

Excellent 

Same 

5,600 

Excellent 

Better 

5,577 

Excellent 

Better 

5,531 

Excellent 

Worse 

5,531 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of 
forecast savings 
achieved for the year – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

No data. 
New to 
2024 to 
2025 

45.4% 

Priority to 
Improve 

 

53.3% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

The percentage of 
external complaints 
upheld or partly upheld 
over the last quarter – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

55% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

20% 

Excellent 

Better 

44% 

Good 

Worse 

80% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

95%  

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The rolling average 
number of working 
days / shifts per full 
time equivalent (FTE) 
local authority 
employee lost due to 
sickness absence – 
Benchmarked 
Nationally 

8.82 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

8.63 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

8.55 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

8.69 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

 

9.07 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

 

 

Tudalen 173



 
58 

Title Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 3 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 4 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 1 
2024 to 
2025 

Quarter 2 
2024 to 
2025 

The percentage of staff 
who are eligible for 
one or three one-to-
ones and who have 
had at least one or 
three one-to-ones in 
the last 12 months (by 
person) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

56% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

54% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

91% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

75% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

72% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of 
employees that have 
completed all 10 
mandatory e-learning 
modules by the end of 
the year (excluding 
schools) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

49.8% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

39.5% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

48.32% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

50.06 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

45.79 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of staff 
that have completed 
Welsh Language 
Awareness e-learning - 
Benchmarked 
Locally (Welsh 
Language and 
Culture) 

79.26% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

82.6% 

Acceptable 

Better 

 

85% 

Good 

Better 

84.59 

Acceptable 

Worse 

82.68 

Acceptable 

Worse 

 

Annual or biennial measures  

2020 to 2023 data 

Title 2020 to 
2021 

2021 to 
2022 

2022 to 
2023 

The percentage of new appointees from 
applications where it was disclosed that they 
are either from a racial or religious minority 
group, have a disability, are gay or bi-sexual, 
or had their gender reassigned – Count Only 
(Equality Objective) 

4% 21% 20% 

    

Tudalen 174



 
59 

2022 to 2024 data 

Title 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024 

The percentage of the lowest paid 
salaries (bottom quarter) that are women 
– Benchmarked Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

80.7% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

80.6% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The number of community projects co-
produced with the community and third 
sector - Count Only 

No data: does not 

apply 

15 

Excellent 

 

Stakeholder Survey 

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council is transparent, well-
run, and high performing – 
Benchmarked Locally 

49% 

Priority to Improve 

39% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council works well with 
partners – Benchmarked Locally 

74% 

Good 

63% 

Good 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that there is a good working 
relationship between political leaders and 
senior management – Benchmarked 
Locally 

55% 

Acceptable 

47% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council manages its 
performance well – Benchmarked 
Locally 

53% 

Acceptable 

43% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council manages its risks 
and challenges well – Benchmarked 
Locally 

55% 

Acceptable 

44% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council manages its 
finances well – Benchmarked Locally 

48% 

Priority to Improve 

30% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Tudalen 175



 
60 

Title 2022 to 2023 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

2023 to 2024 

With an opinion, 
and agree 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council has effective long-
term plans in place – Benchmarked 
Locally 

56% 

Acceptable 

40% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council treats its workforce 
well – Benchmarked Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

76%  

Excellent 

67% 

Good 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council makes best use of 
its assets and resources – Benchmarked 
Locally 

35% 

Priority to Improve 

30% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council purchases its 
goods and services in a fair and efficient 
way – Benchmarked Locally 

54% 

Acceptable 

47% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council acts on the 
concerns of residents – Benchmarked 
Locally 

48% 

Priority to Improve 

44% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council treats all people 
fairly – Benchmarked Locally (Equality 
Objective) 

58% 

Acceptable 

51% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

The percentage of stakeholders who 
agree that the council’s Corporate Plan 
and priorities reflect the needs of the local 
community - Benchmarked Locally  
(Equality Objective)  

51% 

Acceptable 

42% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Projects Update 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Well-Run, High Performing Council 
workstream: Embed a positive culture of 
ambition, transparency and continuous 
improvement by placing our values of 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Whilst two workshops took 
place in the period, we 
need to examine progress 
by other workstreams to 
agree next steps. This will 

Tudalen 176



 
61 

Title Status Exception  

integrity, respect, unity, and pride at the 
heart of everything that we do 

be discussed by the Board 
in October. 

Well-Run, High Performing Council 
workstream: Be close to our communities 
(Equality Objective) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Well-Run, High Performing Council 
workstream: Have clear performance 
expectations 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Two workshops have 
taken place with staff. A 
change in staff mood was 
apparent in the meetings in 
June. We await further 
direction from the Board 
when we meet in October. 

Well-Run, High Performing Council 
workstream: Promote strong staff and 
elected member relations 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

This has been delayed and 
will re-commence in 
January 2025. 

Well-Run, High Performing Council 
workstream: Ensure Denbighshire County 
Council is a good employer and is an 
excellent place to work (Equality 
Objective) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement new Panel Performance 
Assessment Process and report findings to 
Council 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Review and revise the Youth Council for 
Denbighshire 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Undertake an annual review of the 
Corporate Workforce Plan 2022 to 2027 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Improve the information we have about our 
workforce, including equality information, 
to support more detailed analyses in future 
Public Sector Duty Reports (Equality 
Objective) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Subject to the outcome of the corporate 
conversation regarding corporate 
contact/customer service, review 
requirements for and procure a Corporate 
Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) system (including undertaking 
workshops with members and services to 
inform development of the new system) 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

The activity has been 
delayed. The council has 
now signed a new contract 
for our CRM system. 
Workshops to inform 
further developments to 
the system will commence 
in the next few months. 

Tudalen 177



 
62 

Self-Assessment: Governance Areas 

The following is our self-assessment against the seven key governance areas and seeks 

to paint a picture of how well the council is performing, how we know that (linking to 

evidence where it is available), and what we can do to improve. Our news round up is 

included in each governance section. 

Corporate Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Corporate Planning is about how the council sets out and makes 

arrangements to deliver on its strategic objectives. 

Corporate Plan Governance Arrangements 

Since the revised Corporate Plan was unanimously adopted by County Council at its 

meeting in February 2024, governance structures have subsequently been amended 

(including revised terms of reference for our Boards) to align with the new themes. This 

has resulted in the cessation of the Fairer, Safer, More Equal Denbighshire Board, but will 

place greater importance on the work of the Strategic Equality and Diversity Group. 

Governance arrangements will be reviewed as part of the planned Corporate Plan 

Tranche Review1 taking place in October. 

Respond to the requirements of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) 

Act 2021 

Our first (and the first in Wales) Panel Performance Assessment (PPA) took place 

between 9-12 September 2024. Initial informal feedback was positive and we expect to 

receive the draft Panel Performance Assessment report in October. We will then be 

working on a Management Response to the final report which will be presented to Council 

in January 2025. The Management Response will be developed with input from our Senior 

Leaders, Cabinet, Governance and Audit Committee.  

                                            

1 The purpose of a Tranche Review is to review and evaluate performance and delivery, with an opportunity 
to both reflect and look ahead to consider progress towards achieving the ambitions set out in our Corporate 
Plan. Tranche Reviews take place around every six months and are attended by Cabinet and the Senior 
Leadership Team. 

Tudalen 178



 
63 

Transformation Agenda 

Work is underway on establishing the council’s transformation programme, with 

governance structures now in place, helping to move the council to a place where it can 

respond innovatively and collaboratively to the challenges ahead. The Strategic Planning 

and Performance Team has delivered a number of ‘insight’ projects during the period 

including about agricultural estates, city, town and community councils, housing voids, and 

social care delivery models. A project looking at building control is currently underway. 

Training was delivered between May and July in Continuous Improvement theories and 

practices to support this work. Staff from across various Services participated to ensure 

the learning is shared across the organisation.  

Other developments in the last period 

New Ways of Working Journey Checker 

We previously committed to an improvement action to consider the findings and 

recommendations of the Well-being of Future Generations Commissioner’s New Ways of 

Working Journey Checker. Findings of the checker (previously reported) informed the 

focus of the Panel Performance Assessment and a report about the findings, and their 

relationship to Well-being Impact Assessments (our integrated impact assessment 

screening tool), was presented to our Senior Leadership Team in September. The same 

report will be presented to Cabinet at Cabinet Briefing in October. We are also making 

improvements to our Well-being Impact Assessment resources, by offering new web 

pages and training for example, which will also offer information and guidance about the 

sustainable development principle and the five ways of working (Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015) and equality, diversity and inclusion.  

Financial Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Financial planning relates to the management of our income and expenditure. 

Finance Update Reports 

In April, Cabinet was updated on outstanding matters relating to the 2024 to 2025 budget. 

The report set the scene for budget setting in the medium term (2025 to 2026 – 2027 to 

2028) and self-assessed the council’s current level of financial resilience and 

Tudalen 179

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6888&LLL=0


 
64 

sustainability. Cabinet approved the commencement of the design phase for Ysgol Bro 

Elwern, Ysgol Henllan, Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch and Ysgol y Llys projects to enable the full 

business case to be submitted to the Welsh Government for approval. The same report 

was considered by Governance and Audit Committee in April.  

At its meeting in June, Cabinet received an update on the council’s financial position. The 

2023 to 2024 final Revenue Outturn figures were provided. The final position on service 

and corporate budgets (including schools nondelegated budget underspend of £115k) was 

an overspend of £513k. On the funding side, there was a small shortfall in Council Tax 

collection of £163k. This resulted in the requirement to use £676k of the Budget Mitigation 

reserve to fund the net overspend. The School overspend was £5.258m resulting in a total 

budget overspend of £5.934m. The 2023 to 2024 budget included savings and efficiencies 

of £8.172m, of which £6.09m were achieved from corporately held budgets and by schools 

at £0.82m. Services put in place measures and monitored the remaining £1.26m within 

overall budgets. Collectively services overspent by £3.2m during the year. Budgetary 

control measures to mitigate against increasing costs and demand for services, put in 

place in Autumn 2023 (and detailed in our Performance Update Report October 2023 to 

March 2024 here) due to the predicted level of overspend which reached a peak of £4.5m, 

helped to reduce the overall level of overspend. Most services ended the year with an 

underspend. To help deliver the overall budget strategy, it is proposed that services do not 

carry forward any under spends. Education and Children’s, Highways and Environmental, 

and Adult Social and Homelessness Services ended the year in an overspend. Despite 

budgets increasing in 2023 to 2024, increases in demand and the complexity of delivering, 

what are mainly statutory services, has outstripped the enhanced budgets. Transfers to 

and from reserves had also been set out and most of the movements had been budgeted 

for or had been previously approved. 

Cabinet received a Finance Update report in July. The net revenue budget for 2024 to 

2025 was £271.021m (£250.793m in 2023 to 2024). In setting its budget for 2024 to 2025 

the Council faced pressures of £24.6m from inflationary increases such as pay and 

increases in demand and costs of providing social care. The increase in Welsh 

Government funding and in the level of Council Tax meant the 2024 to 2025 budget 

required service savings and efficiencies of £10.384m. These included: 

 Major Savings Proposals – large-scale saving projects (£2.388m) 

Tudalen 180

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6932&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6890&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6891&LLL=0


 
65 

 Non-Strategic savings – Operational efficiencies/smaller scale savings within Head 

of Service delegated responsibility in consultation with Lead Members. These 

include both the proposals already identified in the budget setting report, as well as 

the further £3m target given to Heads of Service at the time of setting the budget to 

enable a balanced budget to be set (£5.296m) 

 Schools received funding to cover all inflationary pressures including pay awards, 

pension contributions and energy, and an increase for demography. Given the 

scale of the challenges, schools were asked to find savings of 3% (£2.7m). The net 

position was an increase of £4.916m (5.82%). 

The report emphasised that at that point it was still early in the financial year and the 

budget position in some service areas would not become evident until early Autumn. 

Delivery of savings approved as part of setting the 2024 to 2025 budget is being tracked 

and a status update was provided in the report. All of the major saving proposals were 

progressing and 62% of the non-strategic savings had already been achieved. Progress 

updates for the remaining non-strategic saving proposals will continue to be reported to 

Cabinet on a quarterly basis going forward.  

Cabinet received an updated Finance Update Report in September. High risk areas 

included changes to residential placements in Children’s Services, Homelessness, care 

fees in Adult Social Care and school transport. Pressures are emerging in some of these 

areas, which are on current forecasts, and will be mitigated by underspends recurring from 

last financial year in the centrally held contingency budgets. Significant service narratives 

explaining pressures and risks of over- and under-spend were detailed in the appendices. 

Cabinet agreed that the gainshare of £1.2m received from the refinancing of the North 

Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership could be treated as income for the Waste 

Service and used to offset additional costs since the new service was launched. 

Budget pressures 

The council has faced a significant financial challenge in setting its 2024 to 2025 budget, 

which is set to continue in the medium term due to a combination of no increases in 

funding from Welsh Government (working assumption), the continued impact of inflation 

and increases in demand for services and the complexity of needs. The scale of the 

financial challenge facing the council should not be underestimated. Pressures are difficult 

to forecast but are ranging from £12m to £24m in 2025 to 2026 with a mid-range of £18m. 

Similar ranges are forecast for 2026 to 2027 and 2027 to 2028. Further detailed 

Tudalen 181

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6892&LLL=0


 
66 

information is available in the reports taken to Governance and Audit Committee and 

Cabinet in July. Performance Scrutiny Committee considered the Medium-Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS) and Plan (MTFP) in June and made observations about the key role of 

Scrutiny going forward, whose feedback would inform feedback to Cabinet.  

The budget is being viewed as an evolving process rather than a one-off event every year 

in January, as it used to be. Significant engagement across the council, with members and 

with communities continues. Staff briefing sessions took place both in person at various 

locations (including depots) and online. These were well received, and staff appreciated 

the opportunity to speak with senior officers and lead members to gain a better 

understanding of the council’s financial position.  One of the main issues was better 

engagement with the public around the council’s financial position and understanding how 

complicated local government finances are.  

A meeting with City, Town and Community Councils (CTCC) took place in July to discuss 

the financial position and they were asked to continue those discussions at their own 

CTCC meetings to discuss how we can work together in the future. A report will be 

presented to the Budget and Transformation Board and Cabinet to explore ways in which 

we can support and work closely with CTCCs. 

Statement of Accounts 

The council has a statutory duty to produce a statement of accounts that complies with 

approved accounting standards. The annual statement of accounts reports on the 

council’s position at the end of the financial year and transactions during that year. The 

draft Statement of Accounts for 2022 to 2023 is available online.  

The Responsible Financial Officer has not signed and certified the accounts for the years 

ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 and due to continuing work on the audit of 

2022 to 2023 accounts, will work to an extended deadline for completion of the Statement 

of Accounts. After consulting with Audit Wales, it is currently planned that the audited 

accounts will be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in autumn 2024 for 

formal approval. 

Treasury Management 

Treasury Management involves looking after the council’s cash, which is a vital part of the 

council’s work because approximately £0.5bn passes through the council’s bank account 

Tudalen 182

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6891&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6955&LLL=0
The%20Responsible%20Financial%20Officer%20has%20not%20signed%20and%20certified%20the%20accounts%20for%20the%20year%20ended%2031%20March%202024%20and%20due%20to%20continuing%20work%20on%20the%20audit%20of%202022/23%20accounts,%20will%20work%20to%20an%20extended%20deadline%20of%20September%202024%20for%20completion%20of%20the%20draft.


 
67 

every year. At any one time, the council normally has up to £20m in cash so it needs to 

ensure that the best rate of return possible is achieved without putting the cash at risk. In 

April, Governance and Audit Committee examined the council’s governance around 

treasury management (includes the council’s borrowing, investments and cash flow) and in 

July, reviewed the annual treasury management report for 2023 to 2024. 

Other developments in the last period 

T1 

The council introduced its new financial system called T1 during the period. This is a 

significant change project to replace most of the council’s existing financial systems to a 

new single finance system. We have encountered some issues but there are no major 

concerns. We are working to reduce the backlog of invoices, delays in implementation of 

the budget enterprise module and continuing to work on the salary worksheets for 

forecasting. 

Audit Wales’s Financial Sustainability Review – Denbighshire County Council 

During the period, Governance and Audit Committee reviewed the report of the recent 

Audit Wales review and the management response to its recommendations. The review 

concluded that “the Council engages well with Members and officers when setting its 

budget, but it currently lacks an approach to find sufficient savings or an implemented 

transformation plan to bridge its funding gap.”  

Changes to Libraries opening hours 

In June, the council announced the new opening hours of Denbighshire Libraries and One 

Stop Shops. No Library within Denbighshire is closing its doors permanently through these 

changes, and core Library services have been protected and are fully accessible during 

these new hours. We want to continue working with partners and community groups so 

that we can continue to keep Libraries at the heart of our local communities. For some 

areas, additional funding and support is received through local town councils, for example 

Rhuddlan Town Council has contributed additional funds to ensure that existing hours at 

Rhuddlan Library were maintained. 

Tudalen 183

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6932&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=03538c08-6475-4ae5-9536-55190d837450


 
68 

Consultation to develop a new Public Toilet Scheme 

In July, the council launched a public consultation and needs assessment to support work 

to review the needs of the local population and to produce a public conveniences strategy 

that will set out how it will try to meet these needs. From the autumn, we will commence a 

two-stage process to develop and consult on a draft strategy. It is anticipated that the final 

strategy will be approved by Cabinet in April 2025.  

Performance Management 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Performance management means the structures and processes we have in 

place to ensure that we deliver what we said we would, whilst encouraging active 

involvement and challenge from across the council, our elected members, and residents. 

Internal Audit Reviews 

The Chief Internal Auditor attended the Governance and Audit Committee in June to 

provide the annual internal audit report for 2023 to 2024 and to report on the Internal Audit 

Charter, strategy and quality assurance improvement programme for 2024 to 2025. At the 

same meeting a presentation was received on the outcomes of the External Audit 

Assessment of Denbighshire Internal Audit function, which concluded in April. The 

assessment was undertaken by Ceredigion County Council, as a member of the Welsh 

Chief Auditor Group. In July, Governance and Audit Committee reviewed the draft annual 

governance statement for 2023 to 2024, including progress made on the associated action 

plan. In September, the Governance and Audit Committee received an update on the work 

of the Internal Audit Team and a summary of Internal Audit reports. Since the last 

Governance and Audit Committee update in March, 10 internal audit reports had been 

completed with six being awarded a high assurance rating and four receiving a medium 

assurance rating (ICT Contract Management; Wellbeing Impact Assessment Medium; 

Climate and Ecological Change; and Flood Risk Strategy). During the period, to support 

the new waste collection and recycling service, three members of the Internal Audit team 

were seconded over to support the waste service initially on a part-time basis, followed by 

two staff members working with the service on a full-time basis for a short period. This 

resulted in the Audit Plan falling behind schedule, which the team are now working 

towards getting back on track. It was also noted that the Internal Audit Team had been 

engaged in two special investigations during this period, affecting the capacity of the team. 

Tudalen 184

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3a41f854-453b-4271-83be-d36f9acb15dd
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6933&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6933&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6933&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6934&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0


 
69 

As part of a plan to tackle recruitment challenges, we are pleased to report that two Career 

Pathway Senior Auditors have passed their level 2 qualification with the Association of 

Account Technicians (AAT) and are enrolled onto level 3. 

Self-Assessment of Performance 

Our annual Self-Assessment of Performance was approved by County Council in July, 

following discussion at Performance Scrutiny Committee in April, and Governance and 

Audit Committee and Cabinet in June. The Self-Assessment summarises our performance 

and governance across the year 2023 to 2024 into some general observations about our 

strengths and weaknesses, opportunities and challenges. It concluded that we have 

responded to the financial pressures all local authorities are facing responsibly; we have 

used our resources economically, efficiently, and effectively; our governance is good; and 

our focus is on securing the best possible outcomes for our environment and communities 

in Denbighshire. Our efforts to actively engage members and staff from across the 

organisation around the budget have been good and positively received, and we will build 

on this approach with our 2025 to 2026 budget. Our governance is well-functioning and 

responsive - demonstrated by the additional Scrutiny that was put in place, at the request 

of members, around aspects of our budget proposals.  We want to capitalise on the 

growing understanding of our culture, what it means to be a part of the “Denbighshire 

family” and promote our One Council approach. In the year ahead, we want to establish an 

on-going programme of cross-service conversations and capitalise on the growing 

confidence of members and officers using Welsh informally and formally during council 

business. We must strive to be agile in recognising and resolving barriers to progress; and 

ensure we remain resilient as our capacity reduces. The report, including our October 

2023 to March 2024 Performance Update Report, is published on our website – 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/performance.  

Corporate Plan Performance Management Framework and Tranche Review 

In the context of the present difficult financial environment, we committed to an 

improvement action in our last performance report to keep our Corporate Plan 

commitments and performance expectations under continual review going forward. This 

will form part of the planned Corporate Plan Tranche Review taking place in October. 

Update the Performance Management Guide 

The updated guide may be viewed on our website. 

Tudalen 185

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6882&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6955&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6933&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6933&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6890&LLL=0
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/performance
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
70 

Annual Stakeholder Survey 

Our last report identified an improvement action to “Consider the Stakeholder Survey 2023 

to 2024 responses”. A report was presented to our Corporate Executive Team and 

Cabinet, and individual Corporate Plan Boards will be considering the results and 

comments that relate to their portfolio. We are now planning our next Stakeholder Survey, 

due to go live in October. 

Service Performance Challenge 

Service Performance Challenges will be concentrated over a one-month period during 

mid-November to early-December, which will support ongoing budgetary discussions with 

a greater focus on finance and transformation. Broadly the agenda will be in three parts – 

Identified Savings and Performance; Future Savings and Performance; Transformation, 

Change and Re-Shaping. 

Risk Management 

Risk management refers to our planned approach to identify, assess, control and monitor 

risks and opportunities facing the council. As per our guide `Managing Risk for Better 

Service Delivery’ 

Corporate Risk Register 

The purpose of the Corporate Risk Register is to identify the potential future events that 

may have a detrimental impact on the council’s ability to deliver its objectives, including its 

corporate priorities. The identified controls and actions are, therefore, crucial to the 

delivery of the Corporate Plan 2022 to 2027. The September Review has now been 

completed and the final reports are due to be presented to Governance and Audit 

Committee and Performance Scrutiny Committee in November. 

Risk Appetite Statement 

As part of the current September 2024 review the Risk Appetite Statement has also been 

revisited. 

Tudalen 186

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/risk-management-strategy.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/risk-management-strategy.aspx


 
71 

Risk Reporting 

We are currently facilitating quarterly, lighter touch reviews with risk owners. Summaries 

are provided to Governance and Audit throughout the year and are tabled for discussion, 

as was previous practice, in November.   

Workforce Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Workforce planning means the process by which we analyse, forecast and 

plan workforce supply and demand, and assess gaps to ensure that we have the people 

and skills - now and in the future - to deliver our services and fulfil our strategic objectives. 

Staff Training, Development and Mental Health 

A People Strategy has been drafted and will be presented to the Well-run Board in 

October for feedback. The strategy includes health and well-being, equalities, diversity and 

inclusion and Welsh language considerations alongside staff voice, pay and rewards. A 

revised staff survey will be presented to our Senior Leadership Team for approval in 

October for a November launch. Training has taken place for mental health champions 

and further work needs to be done with information to support mental health champions 

and publicise the initiative. Work will commence one the Learning and Development 

Specialist position is filled. 

Improve the information we have about our workforce 

Due to continual changes in staff, the equality information we have about our workforce 

tends to fluctuate. HR has completed a data collection survey, which asked staff to update 

the information we hold about them to ensure that we have as much data in the HR 

system as possible. It should be noted however that some staff choose not to disclose 

information about themselves. Updated data will be available from Autumn 2024 to 

support our Public Sector Duty Reports. 

Workforce planning 

Workforce planning is a continually important area of work and HR Business Partners work 

closely with all services on a regular basis by issuing monthly reports. Workforce planning 

will commence in the autumn/winter of 2024 (by which time the senior leadership structure 

will have been in place since November 2023) and will focus on supporting the pressures 

Tudalen 187



 
72 

associated with the budget and its impacts. A follow up review of the Internal Audit Review 

of workforce planning (previously Medium assurance) is being completed. 

Impact on the workforce (and any risks to effective governance) as a result of budget 

proposals and the voluntary exit scheme remain under consideration and a report will be 

presented for discussion to the council’s Strategic Equality and Diversity Group in October. 

Other developments in the last period 

A Pay Policy Statement for 2024 to 2025 was taken to County Council in May. A council 

policy on Member Training was discussed County Council in September. Our annual 

health and safety and annual whistleblowing reports were presented to Governance and 

Audit Committee in September. 

Assets 

Below are updates on areas of governance for assets. By assets we are referring to our 

management of the council’s estate (including office buildings and highway infrastructure 

owned and / or controlled by the council) and digital assets. 

Asset Management Strategy 

The Asset Management Strategy 2024 to 2029 was reviewed by Partnerships Scrutiny in 

September 2024 and will be submitted for approval by Cabinet in October 2024. The 

underlying principle is that “we will provide the right assets, in the right place, and in the 

right condition to meet current and projected future service delivery needs, considering 

who best to own and operate each asset and opportunities for collaboration”. There are 

four priority outcomes in the strategy aligning with the Council’s Corporate Plan, which are: 

 Climate Action and Nature Recovery – which would include improving energy 

performance of buildings, reducing the overall building footprint, facilitating reduced 

travel, increasing carbon sequestration from existing and new properties, improving 

biodiversity on our sites, etc. In addition to increasing the understanding of, and 

improving, our assets resilience to climate impacts. 

 Modernising Education – delivered primarily by Education but will involve significant 

investment in our school buildings over the next five years. 

 Regeneration – where the council is directly intervening in the property market to 

promote regeneration and economic development, particularly in town centres. 

Tudalen 188

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6881&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6883&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0


 
73 

 New Ways of Working (NWOW) and Collaboration – looking specifically at our 

office portfolio and how this needs to change considering significant increase in 

home working (post-COVID), along with progressing collaboration opportunities to 

create an asset ownership and operation model that is sustainable. 

The New Ways of Working project continues to progress well. The Caledfryn office in 

Denbigh closed in August 2024, with staff now working from Russell House, Rhyl, County 

Hall, Ruthin and at the new Waste Depot in Denbigh. Plans for disposal of Caledfryn are 

progressing with informal tenders closing on 27 September 2024. 

In September, the Audit and Governance Committee received an information report from 

the Asbestos Property Manager regarding the Annual Property Compliance Report. 

ICT (Digital) strategy 

The current ICT (Digital) Strategy runs until the end of 2025 and a review has taken place 

on delivery of each of the seven priorities listed in that strategy. This was reported to the 

Partnerships Scrutiny Committee in September 2024 addressing Audit Wales’s 

recommendations (following its review of the Council’s current Digital Strategy).  

Development of a new strategy from 2026 onwards will commence in the next period. 

Procurement 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Procurement is the process by which the council meets its needs for goods, 

services, works and utilities in a way that achieves value for money and good outcomes for 

society, culture and the economy, whilst contributing to decarbonisation and nature’s 

recovery. 

Denbighshire Procurement Strategy 

The council’s Procurement Strategy reflects and supports the council's corporate priorities 

and the seven well-being goals and aligns with the UK Government Procurement Act and 

the Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act. Expectations about what we 

buy and how we buy it are increasing, and we will be expected to deliver not only value for 

money but also have a positive impact on the social, economic, environmental and cultural 

well-being of our communities, known as socially responsible procurement. A joined up 

and streamlined approach to commissioning, procurement, contract management and 

Tudalen 189

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6935&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6991&LLL=0


 
74 

reporting will be required to ensure Denbighshire gains the best possible outcomes from 

new procurement regulations. This will involve working across the council to support 

Denbighshire’s local supply chain. These outcomes include community benefits.  

The Procurement Service is a collaborative service shared with Flintshire County Council. 

The Joint Management Board is the governing body of the joint procurement service, in 

place until March 2025, established as part of a collaborative agreement in 2014. Between 

now and March 2025, we will review, refresh or redesign the service, and consider the 

resources that are available to support and provide greater resilience for the collaboration. 

We are starting to explore opportunities that may exist for more collaborative working on a 

regional footprint. 

During the period, just under 300 commissioning staff, across both councils, attended new 

procurement regulations “Knowledge Drop” sessions.  New procurement forms and 

accompanying decision trees will be produced when statutory guidance is finalised and 

received. 

Biodiversity Protection and Decarbonisation in Procurement 

During the period, we have been working with other local authorities across Wales to 

develop a common approach to measuring decarbonisation through the life of all 

contracts. The Procurement team is signposting businesses to carbon reduction plan 

training delivered by Crown Commercial Services. We will be seeking agreement to use 

the WLGA procurement toolkit and to incorporate decarbonisation indicators within that 

toolkit. We have successfully completed a pilot for the North Wales Construction 

Partnership Framework. We can ask bidders wishing to join the Framework to provide 

Cabon Reduction Plans and each client local authority will apply their own carbon priority 

asks. Further work is required to work across the council to embed a decarbonisation 

approach at the earliest stages of procurement; when services are being designed or we 

are determining what and how something needs to be procured - this where most carbon 

savings can be achieved. During the period, we have been working with other local 

authorities across Wales to develop a common approach to measuring decarbonisation 

through the life of all contracts.  

Contract Procedure Rules 

Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) have been reviewed to reflect new UK Public 

Procurement legislation but we are still awaiting secondary legislation and statutory 

Tudalen 190



 
75 

guidance is to finalise CPRs. We will continue to report on progress through this report in 

the meantime.  

Supporting Businesses and Partners to Adapt 

Following on from carbon-themed events as part of the 2024 March for Business 

campaign, our Economic and Business Development Team is developing the draft 

Economic Strategy, which includes a theme around supporting small and medium sized 

enterprises with procurement. As reported previously, Balfour Beatty, as part of the coastal 

defence schemes, has committed to deliver workshops - supported by Denbighshire 

Voluntary Services Council - to community-led organisations on how to develop strategies. 

Whilst workshops have not yet taken place, the intention to deliver them remains.  

North Wales Construction Framework Phase 3 

The third generation of the North Wales Construction Partnership Framework is complete 

and has been launched. This is a framework for all North Wales local authorities and has 

been a catalyst for engagement and upskilling of local contractors operating within the 

regional supply chain. 

Improvement Actions 

Three improvement actions have been identified though discussions about this report (the 

first builds on a previous improvement action). The first two, in particular, demonstrate the 

interplay between resources, performance and risk. 

Improvement Actions 

Three improvement actions have been identified though discussions about this report (the 

first builds upon a previous improvement action). The first two demonstrate the interplay 

between resources, performance and risk. 

 Consider performance relating to the percentage of damaged roads and pavements 

made safe within target time (CAT1 - Category 1 defects dealt within timescale), 

which has fallen short of the 95% target time for some years. The service continues 

to struggle with meeting the demands of the asset within the limited budgetary and 

staffing resources available, and a substantive discussion is needed about the 

prospects of improvement and what continuing poor performance is likely to mean 

Tudalen 191



 
76 

given expected increased impacts of flooding, landslips and heat risks on road 

condition and community connectivity. 

 Linked to last period’s improvement action to keep our Corporate Plan 

commitments and performance expectations under continual review going forward, 

the next Corporate Plan Tranche Review should consider the impact of reducing 

capacity and ceased projects such as Llwybrau, and how these will impact on our 

ability to deliver the Corporate Plan and outcomes.  

 Publish details of the engagement network of people and groups with protected 

characteristics on our website.  

Tudalen 192



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 28 Tachwedd 2024 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Catrin Roberts, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Cymorth 

Corfforaethol:  Pobl  

Awdur yr Adroddiad Rhian Evans, Cyd-lynydd Craffu 

Teitl Rhaglen Waith Craffu 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad adolygu ei raglen 

gwaith i'r dyfodol drafft (gweler Atodiad 1).  Wrth ei hadolygu gofynnir i’r 

Pwyllgor adlewyrchu ar sut y gall Craffu gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflawni Cynllun 

Corfforaethol y Cyngor a’i nod o ddod yn Ddi-Garbon Net ac yn Ecolegol 

Bositif erbyn 2030, tra ar yr un pryd flaenoriaethu materion sydd yn nhŷb y 

Pwyllgor yn bwysig craffu arnynt. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu a chytuno ar ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol, a rhoi’r 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i aelodau ar faterion perthnasol.  

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

Bod y Pwyllgor yn:  

 

3.1 ystyried yr wybodaeth a ddarparwyd ac yn cymeradwyo, diwygio neu'n newid ei 

raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol fel y gwêl yn briodol;  ac 

 

3.2 yn penderfynu os oes unrhyw prif bwyntiau neu themau o’r cyfarfod hwn y 

dymuna dynnu sylw atynt trwy’r wasg a/neu’r cyfryngau cymdeithasol. 

Tudalen 193

Eitem Agenda 7



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1 Mae Adran 7 Cyfansoddiad Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn nodi cylch gorchwyl, 

swyddogaethau ac aelodaeth pob Pwyllgor Craffu, yn ogystal â rheolau 

gweithdrefnau a trafodaethau.   

 

4.2 Mae’r Cyfansoddiad yn amodi bod yn rhaid i bwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor osod, 

ac adolygu’n rheolaidd, rhaglen ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r dyfodol.  Trwy adolygu a 

blaenoriaethu materion, gall aelodau sicrhau bod y rhaglen waith yn cyflwyno 

agenda a arweinir gan yr aelodau. 

 

4.3 Arfer sydd wedi’i fabwysiadu yn Sir Ddinbych ers nifer o flynyddoedd yw bod 

pwyllgorau craffu’n cyfyngu ar nifer yr adroddiadau a ystyrir mewn unrhyw 

gyfarfod i uchafswm o bedwar, yn ogystal ag adroddiad rhaglen waith y 

Pwyllgor ei hun.  Nod y dull hwn yw hwyluso trafodaeth fanwl ac effeithiol ar bob 

pwnc. 

 

4.4 Yn y blynyddoedd diweddar mae Llywodraeth Cymru (LlC) ac Archwilio Cymru 

(AC) wedi tynnu sylw at yr angen i gryfhau rôl craffu ar draws llywodraeth leol a 

gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys defnyddio craffu fel 

modd o ymgysylltu â phreswylwyr a defnyddwyr gwasanaeth.  O hyn allan, 

disgwylir i graffu ymgysylltu'n well ac yn amlach â'r cyhoedd gyda bwriad i 

sicrhau penderfyniadau gwell a fydd yn y pen draw yn arwain at well 

canlyniadau i ddinasyddion.  Bydd Archwilio Cymru yn mesur effeithiolrwydd 

craffu wrth gyflawni'r disgwyliadau hyn. 

 

4.5 Gan ystyried y weledigaeth genedlaethol ar gyfer craffu a chanolbwyntio ar yr 

un pryd ar flaenoriaethau lleol, gwnaeth y Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu (GCIGC) argymell y dylai pwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor, wrth 

benderfynu ar eu rhaglenni gwaith, ganolbwyntio ar y meysydd allweddol 

canlynol:  

 arbedion ar y gyllideb a’r Rhaglen Drawsnewid; 

 cyflawni Themau y Cynllun Corfforaethol (gyda phwyslais arbennig ar y 

modd o’u cyflawni yn ystod cyfnod o galedi ariannol);  

Tudalen 194



 
 

 unrhyw eitemau eraill a gytunwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu (neu'r GCIGC) fel 

blaenoriaeth uchel (yn seiliedig ar y meini prawf profion PAPER - gweler ochr 

gefn y ‘Ffurflen Cynnig gan Aelodau’ yn Atodiad 2); a 

 Materion brys, na ragwelwyd neu flaenoriaeth uchel 

 

4.6 Ffurflenni Cynnig ar gyfer Craffu 

 Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 uchod, mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

gofyn i bwyllgorau craffu baratoi ac adolygu rhaglen ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r 

dyfodol.  Er mwyn cynorthwyo’r broses o flaenoriaethu adroddiadau, os yw 

swyddogion o’r farn fod pwnc yn haeddu amser i gael ei drafod ar raglen fusnes 

Craffu, mae’n rhaid iddynt wneud cais ffurfiol i’r GCIGC i Graffu ystyried derbyn 

adroddiad ar y pwnc hwnnw.  Gwneir hyn trwy gyflwyno ‘ffurflen gynnig’ sy’n 

egluro pwrpas, pwysigrwydd a chanlyniadau posibl craffu ar y pynciau a 

awgrymir. 

 

4.7 Er mwyn gwneud gwell defnydd o amser craffu drwy ganolbwyntio adnoddau 

pwyllgorau i archwilio testunau’n fanwl, gan ychwanegu gwerth drwy’r broses o 

wneud penderfyniadau a sicrhau gwell canlyniadau ar gyfer preswylwyr, 

penderfynodd y GCIGC y dylai’r aelodau, yn ogystal â swyddogion, lenwi 

'ffurflenni cynnig ar gyfer craffu’ yn amlinellu pam eu bod yn credu y byddai'r 

testun yn elwa o fewnbwn craffu.  Mae copi o’r ‘ffurflen gynnig gan aelod’ i’w 

gweld yn Atodiad 2.  Mae ochr gefn y ffurflen hon yn cynnwys siart lif sy'n 

rhestru'r cwestiynau y dylai aelodau eu hystyried wrth baratoi i gynnig eitem ar 

gyfer craffu, ac y dylai pwyllgorau eu gofyn wrth benderfynu ar addasrwydd 

testun i'w gynnwys ar y rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol craffu.  Os, ar ôl cwblhau’r 

broses hon, y penderfynir nad yw’r testun yn addas i’w archwilio’n ffurfiol gan 

bwyllgor craffu, yna gellir ystyried dulliau eraill o rannu’r wybodaeth neu 

archwilio’r mater e.e. darparu ‘adroddiad gwybodaeth', neu os yw’r mater yn un 

o natur leol gellir ei archwilio gan y Grŵp Ardal Aelodau (GAA) perthnasol.  Ni 

fydd unrhyw eitemau'n cael eu cynnwys ar raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol heb lenwi 

‘ffurflen gynnig ar gyfer craffu' a derbyn cymeradwyaeth i'w gynnwys ar y 

rhaglen gan y GCIGC.  Mae cymorth ar gael i lenwi’r ffurflenni gan y Cydlynydd 

Craffu.  

 

   
 

Tudalen 195



 
 

  Adroddiad cynnydd ar Ysgol Crist y Gair  
4.8  Gan fod swyddogion Estyn yn ymweld â’r ysgol i gyfarfod â staff a 

llywodraethwyr ar yr un diwrnod a chyfarfod y Pwyllgor bu'n rhaid aildrefnu 

cyflwyniad yr adroddiad cynnydd uchod.  Bydd nawr yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r 

Pwyllgor yn ei gyfarfod ar 30 Ionawr 2025 (Gweler Atodiad 1). 

 

  Recriwtio, Cadw a Chynllunio Gweithlu 
4.9  Roedd yr adroddiad uchod i'w gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor yn y cyfarfod presennol.  

Fodd bynnag, gofynnodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Cymorth Corfforaethol: Pobl 

am i gyflwyniad yr adroddiad gael ei ohirio tan fis Mawrth 2025. Yn dilyn 

trafodaeth rhwng y Pennaeth Gwasanaeth a'r Cadeirydd caniatawyd gohirio 

cyflwyniad yr adroddiad ac mae nawr yn ymddangos ar raglen waith i'r dyfodol y 

Pwyllgor ar gyfer ei gyfarfod ar 13 Mawrth 2025 (gweler Atodiad 1 ynghlwm). 

 
 Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet 

4.10 Wrth benderfynu ar eu rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol mae’n ddefnyddiol i’r 

pwyllgorau craffu ystyried amserlen rhaglen waith y Cabinet.  At y diben hwn, 

mae copi o rhaglen gwaith i'r dyfodol y Cabinet ynghlwm yn Atodiad 3.  

Datblygiad Penderfyniadau’r Pwyllgor  

4.11 Yn Atodiad 4 o’r adroddiad hwn mae tabl yn crynhoi penderfyniadau diweddar y 

Pwyllgor ac yn cynghori’r aelodau ar ddatblygiadau yn sgîl y penderfyniadau.   

5. Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion Craffu 

5.1 Dan drefniadau craffu’r Cyngor mae’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion 

Craffu (GCIGC) yn gweithredu fel pwyllgor cydlynu.  Cynhelir cyfarfod nesaf y 

Grŵp ar 25 Tachwedd 2024.  Adroddir ar lafar yng nghyfarfod y pwyllgor ar 28 

Tachwedd am unrhyw faterion a drafodwyd fydd â goblygiadau ar raglen waith 

y pwyllgor hwn. 

Tudalen 196



 
 

6. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Cynllun 

Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: Y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

6.1. Bydd craffu effeithiol yn gymorth i'r Cyngor gyflawni ei Gynllun Corfforaethol yn 

unol ag anghenion cymunedau a dymuniadau trigolion.  Bydd datblygu ac 

adolygu rhaglen waith gydlynol yn barhaus yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i ddarparu 

ei themau corfforaethol, i wella canlyniadau i breswylwyr tra hefyd yn dygymod 

â phwysau ar adnoddau ac ar y gyllideb. 

 

6.2. Er bydd y penderfyniad ar flaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor ei hun yn gyfraniad 

niwtral tuag at nod y Cyngor o ddod yn Ddi-Garbon Net ac yn Ecolegol Bositif 

erbyn 2030, gall y Pwyllgor, trwy graffu’n effeithol ar yr holl faterion a ystyrir 

ganddo gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflawni'r uchelgais hwn. 

 

7. Beth fydd y gost a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 

eraill? 

7.1. Mae’n bosib y bydd yn rhaid i wasanaethau neilltuo amser swyddog i 

gynorthwyo’r Pwyllgor gyda’r eitemau a nodwyd yn y rhaglen waith a chydag 

unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn dilyn ystyried yr eitemau hynny. 

8. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les?  

8.1. Nid oes Asesiad o Effaith ar Les wedi ei wneud mewn perthynas â phwrpas neu 

gynnwys yr adroddiad hwn.  Ond bydd y Pwyllgor Craffu, drwy ei waith yn 

archwilio darpariaeth gwasanaethau, polisïau, gweithdrefnau ac argymhellion, 

yn ystyried eu heffaith neu eu heffaith posib ar yr egwyddor o ddatblygu 

cynaliadwy a'r amcanion o ran lles a nodir yn Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r 

Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

9. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gyda Chraffu ac eraill? 

9.1. Does dim angen cynnal ymgynghoriad ar yr adroddiad hwn  Fodd bynnag, 

mae’r adroddiad ei hun a’r ystyriaeth a roir gan y Pwyllgor i’w raglen waith ar 

Tudalen 197



 
 

gyfer y dyfodol yn gyfystyr ag ymgynghoriad gyda’r Pwyllgor o ran ei raglen 

waith. 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 

lleihau? 

10.1. Nid oes risg wedi ei ganfod o ran y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ei raglen waith.  Fodd 

bynnag, drwy adolygu ei raglen gwaith i'r dyfodol yn rheolaidd, gall y Pwyllgor 

sicrhau y rhoddir ystyriaeth ac yr archwilir meysydd risg pan eu bod yn cael eu 

nodi, a gwneir argymhellion gyda’r bwriad o fynd i’r afael â’r risgiau hynny. 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 

11.1. Adran 21 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

11.2. Mae Adran 7.11 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn datgan y bydd pwyllgorau craffu 

ac/neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu yn gyfrifol am osod eu 

rhaglenni gwaith eu hunain, gan ystyried dymuniadau Aelodau o’r Pwyllgor nad 

ydynt yn aelodau o’r grŵp gwleidyddol mwyaf ar y Cyngor. 

Tudalen 198



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

        

30 January 
2025 

Cllr. Diane 
King 

1. Christ The Word  
 
[Education] 

To consider the progress made in 
delivering the Post Inspection 
Action Plan (PIAP) and the joint 
local authority & GwE school 
support plan following the 2022 
Estyn inspection of the school, 
along with the consequential 
impact of the plans’ delivery on 
the school as a whole 

Regular monitoring of the 
arrangements in place to 
address the 
recommendations contained 
in the Regulator’s report will: 
(i) secure continual 

improvement in all 
aspects of the school’s 
work to ensure that all 
pupils are supported to 
achieve their full 
potential; and  

(ii) ensure that the lessons 
learnt by all stakeholders 
are applied across all 
schools in Denbighshire 
as they introduce the new 
curriculum; and  

support the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities 
of a learning and growing 
Denbighshire as well as a 
fairer, safe and more equal 
county. 

Nicola 
Stubbins/ 
Geraint 
Davies/Jam
es 
Brown/Gw
E/Christ the 
Word staff 
& 
Governing 
Body 

September 
2023 
(reschedule
d June & 
November 
2024) 
(RhE) 

 Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

2. Medium Term 
Financial Strategy & 
Plan Update 

To examine the Council’s 
progress in delivering its Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Early identification of any 
slippages in delivering the 
Strategy and/or pressures 
experienced with the Plan 
gives Scrutiny an opportunity 
to make suggestions or 
recommendations to Cabinet 

Liz Thomas By SCVCG 
May 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 199



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

with a view to strengthening 
the Council’s financial 
resilience 

 Leader 3. Economic & 
Business 
Development 
Strategy 
 
(TBC) 
 

To:   
(i) consult with the Committee on 

the draft new Denbighshire 
Economic & Community 
Ambition Strategy for 2024 
onwards; 

(ii) detail how the current and 
proposed new Strategy 
dovetail with the work of the 
North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board, Welsh & UK 
Governments and other 
economic development 
partners to support the 
delivery of a thriving economy 
in Denbighshire; and  
outline the work being 
undertaken to mitigate against 
the potential outcomes 
identified in Risk 36 of the 
Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register 

Formulation of 
recommendations in relation 
to the new Strategy that will 
help secure the delivery, in 
partnership with all 
stakeholders, of a more 
prosperous Denbighshire 
that provides employment 
and business opportunities 
for residents to improve the 
quality of lives and support 
thriving, cohesive 
communities 

Emlyn 
Jones/ 
Gareth 
Roberts/Ja
mes Evans 

By SCVCG 
November 
2022 
(reschedule
d 
November 
2023, Jan 
& June 
2024) 
(RhE) 

 Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 

4. Library Service 
Standards 2023-24 
 

To consider the results of the 
WG’s annual evaluation of the 
Council’s Library Service and 
receive information on how the 
Service has progressed and 
adapted its service provision 
during the year  

Identification of any 
slippages in performance in 
order to formulate 
recommendations to redress 
the situation and ensure that 
the Service delivers the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and 
its corporate themes in 
relation to a learning & 
growing; healthier, happy 

Liz 
Grieve/Deb
bie Owen 

January 
2024 (RhE) 

T
udalen 200



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

and caring; better connected; 
fairer, safer and more equal 
Denbighshire; a 
Denbighshire of vibrant 
culture and thriving Welsh 
language as well as a well-
run and high performing 
Council. 

        

13 March Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 

1. Internet and 
Telephony 
Connectivity in 
Denbighshire  
 
Invitation to be 
extended to a 
representative from 
Openreach 

To consider the progress made to 
date, and future plans for: 
(i) increasing and 

improving/upgrading internet 
connectivity for all areas of the 
county (including the latest 
position in relation to Fibre 
Community Partnerships and 
the UK Government’s Project 
Gigabit roll out along with any 
other potential 
support/voucher packages that 
may be available for 
businesses and residents to 
access); and  

(ii) the provision of support to 
communities and residents by 
the Council to help them 
access fibre/broadband and 
other digital communication 
channels with a view to 
making sure that vulnerable 
residents and rural 
communities aren’t adversely 
disadvantaged  

Support accessibility for all 
businesses and residents in 
the county to fibre 
broadband/telephony speeds 
that meet their individual 
needs, that will in turn 
support the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate themes 
of ‘a prosperous’ county that 
is ‘fairer, safe and more 
equal’ as well as a learning 
and growing county. 

Liz Grieve/ 
/Cath 
Taylor/Fran 
Williams/Ph
ilip Burrows 

April 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 201



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

 Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

2. Recruitment, 
Retention & 
Workforce Planning  

To provide details of: 
(i) the work underway to recruit, 

develop, support and retain 
staff 

(ii) interventions put in place to 
support and strengthen 
recruitment, retention & 
workforce planning across the 
Council; and  

(iii) identification of any hard to 
recruit services/positions 
across the authority and 
interim measures taken to 
alleviate the pressures caused 
within those services (Heads 
of Service for those services 
to be invited to attend to 
discuss the impact of 
staffing pressures on 
operational service delivery) 

Identification of potential 
future workforce pressure 
areas and the formulation of 
recommendations with a 
view to alleviating those 
pressures and secure the 
Council’s ability to 
sustainably deliver its 
services in future  

Gary 
Williams/C
atrin 
Roberts/Lo
uise 
Dougal 

July 2023 
(reschedule
d May, 
June & 
November 
2024) 
(RhE) 

 Leader & 
Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

3. Council processes 
and procedures for 
applying for high 
value grant funding 
(in the post-Brexit 
era) 
 
 

To examine current Council 
processes and procedures for 
applying for high value grant 
funding and maximising the 
benefits of all funding 
opportunities on offer (incl. any 
lessons learnt from recent 
Levelling Up & Shared Prosperity 
Fund applications with a view to 
improving our processes for any 
future funding that becomes 
available) 

Establishment of a simple, 
effective and easily 
adaptable funding application 
process which can be 
initiated immediately funding 
streams are announced to 
enable well-evidenced 
applications to be submitted 
within tight timescales, with a 
view to realising maximum 
benefit and impact for 
residents from each 
application submitted, and 
wherever possible mitigate 

Tony 
Ward/Gary 
Williams/E
mlyn 
Jones/Hele
n Vaughan-
Evans 
(with input 
from Liz 
Grieve on 
learning 
from SPF 
funding) 

By SCVCG 
November 
2023 (RhE) 

T
udalen 202



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

the effects of budget 
pressures 

        

1 May Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register: February 
2025 Review 
 

To seek the Committee to review 
the risks facing the Council and 
the Council’s risk appetite 
statement.  

Determination of whether the 
Committee is satisfied with 
risk management within the 
Council and is assured that 
all identified risks are 
appropriately managed. 

Helen 
Vaughan 
Evans/ 
Heidi 
Barton-
Price  

May 2024 
(RhE) 

        

12 June Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

1 Council Performance 
Self-Assessment 
2024 to 2025 (year-
end) 

To present an update on the 
Council’s performance against its 
functions, including Corporate 
Plan and Strategic Equality 
objectives 

Identification of areas for 
improvement and potential 
future scrutiny 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Em
ma Horan 

Reschedule
d 03/10/24 
(KE) 

 Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 

2.  Library Service/One 
Stop Shop Provision 
 
(TBC) 

To consider: 
(i) the initial findings of the 

Working Group established to 
measure the impact of the 
reduction in Library/OSS 
opening hours on residents, 
communities, and the 
authority; and  

(ii) alternative proposals or 
solutions under consideration 
for enhancing and/or 
expanding service delivery 
going forward  

Formulation of 
recommendations on the 
best solutions for delivering a 
comprehensive citizen 
focussed service within the 
resources available for the 
future which supports the 
delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Plan  

Liz 
Grieve/Deb
bie Owen 

January 
2024 
(reschedule 
June & 
November 
2024) 
(RhE) 

        

17 July Cllrs. Diane 
King & Elen 
Heaton 

1. Draft Director of 
Social Services 
Annual Report 
2024/25 

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance and 
clearly articulates future plans 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins/A
nn 
Lloyd/Rhiai
n 

May 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 203



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

Morelle/Da
vid Soley 

 Cllr. Elen 
Heaton 

2 Cefndy Performance 
Report 2024/25 

To consider Cefndy’s annual 
performance report for the 
2024/25 financial year, including 
the delivery of its financial, 
business and social well-being 
objectives 
 

To ensure the future financial 
and business sustainability of 
Cefndy in order that it 
effectively supports the 
delivery of the Council’s 
corporate themes of learning 
and growing; healthier and 
happier, caring; and 
prosperous Denbighshire 

Ann 
Lloyd/Nick 
Bowles 
 

July 2024 
(RhE) 

        

18 Sept Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

1. Medium Term 
Financial Strategy & 
Plan Update 

To examine the Council’s 
progress in delivering its Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Early identification of any 
slippages in delivering the 
Strategy and/or pressures 
experienced with the Plan 
gives Scrutiny an opportunity 
to make suggestions or 
recommendations to Cabinet 
with a view to strengthening 
the Council’s financial 
resilience 

Liz Thomas By SCVCG 
May 2024 
(RhE) 

 Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

2. Climate & Nature 
Strategy 

To monitor the progress made 
with the Strategy’s delivery 

An assessment of whether 
the Council will realise its 
ambition of becoming a Net 
Carbon Zero authority by 
2030, identification of any 
slippages with the Strategy’s 
delivery and the formulation 
of recommendations in order 
to address performance with 
a view to delivering the 
Strategy on time. 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Jane 
Hodgson 

June 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 204



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 7 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

 Cllr. Diane 
King 

3. Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) 
Transformation 
 
(School staff to be 
invited to attend) 
 
[Education] 

To analyse the Local Education 
Authority and the county’s schools 
progress in fully complying with the 
statutory requirements placed 
upon them under the Additional 
Learning Needs  and Education 
Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018. 

Assurance s that the 
Authority and its schools are 
complying with all of Act’s 
duties ensuring that every 
pupil and student in the 
County is provided with the 
required support and 
opportunities to realise their 
full potential whilst ensuring 
that school-based staff are 
adequately supported and 
equipped to deliver the 
required support. 

Geraint 
Davies/Rut
h 
Thackray/J
oseph Earl 

September 
2024 (RhE) 

 Cllr. Diane 
King 

4. Promoting School 
Attendance and 
Engagement in 
Education 
 
(School staff to be 
invited to attend) 
 
[Education] 

To detail the progress made in 
improving school attendance 
rates and educational 
engagement across the county’s 
schools during the 2024/25 
academic year following the 
introduction of the new template 
attendance policy and in line with 
WG Guidance  (report to include 
illustrative data) 

Assurances that all possible 
steps are being taken to 
monitor pupils’ engagement 
with education, including the 
provision of appropriate 
encouragement and support 
for vulnerable and hard to 
reach pupils to re-engage 
with their education and to 
help them understand the 
long-term implications of not 
engaging.  All of which 
should support the county’s 
pupils to reach their full 
potential and the Council to 
deliver its corporate priority 
relating to a learning and 
growing Denbighshire 

Geraint 
Davies/Wa
yne 
Wheatley 

September 
2024 (RhE) 

        

6 
November 

Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

1. Medium Term 
Financial Strategy & 
Plan Update 

To examine the Council’s 
progress in delivering its Medium 

Early identification of any 
slippages in delivering the 
Strategy and/or pressures 

Liz Thomas By SCVCG 
May 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 205



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 8 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

Term Financial Strategy and 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

experienced with the Plan 
gives Scrutiny an opportunity 
to make suggestions or 
recommendations to Cabinet 
with a view to strengthening 
the Council’s financial 
resilience 

 Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

2. Corporate Risk 
Register: September 
2025 Review 
 

To seek the Committee to review 
the risks facing the Council and 
the Council’s risk appetite 
statement.  

Determination of whether the 
Committee is satisfied with 
risk management within the 
Council and is assured that 
all identified risks are 
appropriately managed. 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/ 
/Heidi 
Barton-
Price  

May 2024 
(RhE) 

        

2026 

        

January 
2026 

Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

1. Council Performance 
Self-Assessment 
Update (Q1 & Q2)) 
 
 

To present an update on the 
Council’s performance against its 
functions, including Corporate 
Plan and Strategic Equality 
objectives 

Identification of areas for 
improvement and potential 
future scrutiny 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Em
ma Horan 

May 2024, 
reschedule
d 
07/10/2024
(RhE) 

        

Sept 2026 Cllr. Diane 
King 

1. Curriculum for Wales 
 
[Education] 
 
(School staff to be 
invited to attend) 

To detail the progress made in 
relation to implementing and 
embedding the new Curriculum 
for Wales and provide an 
evaluation of the implementation 
process across all key stages, the 
Curriculum’s impact on staff 
recruitment and retention, along 
with feedback from headteachers, 
teachers and school-based staff 
on their experiences of the 
implementation process and the 
advantages and/or disadvantages 

Assurances that all 
educational establishments 
and staff are fully equipped 
and trained to deliver the 
new curriculum, identification 
of any gaps or risks 
associated with the provision 
and solutions to address 
them, with a view to ensuring 
that children and young 
people in Denbighshire 
realise their full potential in 

Geraint 
Davies/Jam
es 
Brown/Ruth 
Thackray 

September 
2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 206



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 9 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered/ 
Updated 

by 

of the new Curriculum for 

learners. 
line with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan   

 
  

T
udalen 207



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 10 

Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

     

Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 
 
 
[Education] 
 
TBC – once outcome of WG Review 
available (possibly not until after 
Senedd elections in 2026) 

To outline the conclusions of the recent 
Welsh Government consultation on the 
Measure and its implications for 
Denbighshire schools and pupils 

Identification of potential changes 
to the Council’s learner travel 
policy and any associated costs 
and budget implications 

Geraint 
Davies/Ian 
Land 

January 
2021 
(rescheduled 
Sept 2022 & 
Jan & May 
2023) (RhE) 

Denbigh Health and Social Care and 
the Rebalancing of Social Care 
Agenda (now widened was Dolwen 
Residential Care Home  
(now to be considered as part of the 
future vision for health and social 
care services in the Denbigh area) 
 
Sometime during 2024/25 (tbc) 

To review the future provision of services 
at Dolwen to meet the growing demand 
and complexity of need, whilst supporting 
people to live in a home that meets their 
needs and allows them to live an 
independent and resilient life.  
 

Pre-decision scrutiny of the task 
and finish group’s findings and the 
formulation of recommendations 
for presentation to Cabinet with 
respect of the future provision of 
services at Dolwen with a view to 
ensuring that everyone is 
supported to live in homes that 
meet their needs and are able to 
live independent and resilient lives  

Task and Finish 
Group/Ann 
Lloyd/Katie 
Newe 

July 2018 
(delayed due 
to COVID-
19) (RhE) 

     

 
  

T
udalen 208



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 11 

Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

October/November 2024 Car Parking Fees To provide information on the progress to date 
in achieving the estimated £700K increase 
from car parking fees 

Mike Jones/Liz 
Thomas 

July 2024 
(RhE) 

January/July Corporate Risk Register Review – Risk 
Review Summary 

To share with the Committee a summary of the 
conclusions of the ‘light-touch’ review of the 
Register  

Helen Vaughan-
Evans/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

April 2024 
(RhE) 

Feb/May/Sept/November 
each year 
 
[Information] 

Quarterly ‘Your Voice’ complaints 
performance to include social services 
complaints  

To scrutinise Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints and 
identify areas of poor performance with a view 
to the development of recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  The report to include: 
(i) a comprehensive explanation on why 

targets have not been met when dealing 
with specific complaints, reasons for non-
compliance, and measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe;  

(ii) how services encourage feedback and use 
it to redesign or change the way they deliver 
services; and 

(iii)details of complaints which have been 
upheld or partially upheld and the lessons 
learnt from them. 

 
Report to include example(s) of complaints and 
compliment(s) received. 
 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Kevin Roberts/Ann 
Lloyd 

September 
2023 (RhE) 

March 2025 
 
[Education] 

Elective Home Education To provide data on the number of home 
educated pupils in Denbighshire along with 
information on current trends with respect of 
the number of families choosing to educate 

Geraint 
Davies/Ruth 
Thackray/Jayne 
Williams  

March 2024 
(RhE) 

T
udalen 209



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 12 

their children at home and the measures in 
place to support those families and those 
wishing to return to mainstream education. 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

30 January 2025 16 January 2025 13 March  27 February 1 May  15 April (due to Easter 
B/Hs) 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
 
Updated 20/11/2024 RhE 

T
udalen 210



 

Atodiad 2 

Ffurflen Gynnig ar gyfer Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol Craffu 
 

 
ENW'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
 

 

 
AMSERLEN I'W HYSTYRIED 
 

 

 
TESTUN   
 

 

 
Beth sydd angen ei graffu arno (a 
pham)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn un o bwys i 
drigolion/busnesau lleol? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi craffu yn gallu dylanwadu ar bethau 
a’u newid?  
(Os 'ydi' nodwch sut rydych chi’n meddwl y 
gall craffu ddylanwadu neu newid pethau) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn ymwneud â gwasanaeth 
neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi’r mater yn effeithio ar nifer fawr o 
drigolion neu ardal fawr o’r Sir?  
(Os 'ydi', rhowch syniad o faint y grŵp neu’r 
ardal yr effeithir arni) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

Ydi’r mater yn gysylltiedig â themau 
corfforaethol y Cyngor? 
(Os 'ydi' nodwch pa thema(u)) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 

 
Hyd y gwyddoch, oes yna rywun arall yn 
edrych ar y mater hwn? 
(Os 'oes', nodwch pwy sy'n edrych arno) 
 

 
OES/NAC OES 

 

Os derbynnir y testun ar gyfer craffu, 
pwy fyddai arnoch chi eisiau eu 
gwahodd e.e. Aelod Arweiniol, 
swyddogion, arbenigwyr allanol, 
defnyddwyr y gwasanaeth? 

 

 
Enw'r Cynghorydd/Aelod Cyfetholedig 
 

 

Tudalen 211



 

 
Dyddiad 

 

 

Ystyried addasrwydd pwnc ar gyfer craffu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NA (dim cam gweithredu nac adroddiad 

gwybodaeth pellach) 

 

 

Ffurflen Gynnig / Cais a dderbyniwyd 

(dylid rhoi ystyriaeth ofalus i’r rhesymau dros wneud cais) 

 Ydi o’n bodloni’r gofynion canlynol? 

 Diddordeb Cyhoeddus – ydi’r mater o bwys i drigolion? 

 Effaith– fedr craffu yn gael effaith ar bethau a’u newid? 

 Perfformiad – ydi o’n wasanaeth neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 

 Graddfa – ydi o’n effeithio ar nifer o drigolion neu ardal 

ddaearyddol fawr? 

 Ailadrodd – ydi’r mater yn destun craffu/ymchwiliad gan berson 

neu gorff arall? 

 

 Penderfynu ar y canlyniadau a ddymunir  

 Penderfynu ar gwmpas a swmp y gwaith craffu sydd ei angen a’r dull mwyaf 

priodol o graffu (h.y. adroddiad pwyllgor, ymchwiliad grŵp tasg a gorffen neu 

aelod cyswllt ac ati) 

 Os penderfynir sefydlu grŵp tasg a gorffen, dylid penderfynu ar amserlen yr 

ymchwiliad, pwy fydd yn rhan o’r ymchwiliad, beth yw’r gofynion ymchwilio, a oes 

angen cyngor arbenigol a thystion, a beth yw’r trefniadau adrodd ac ati. 

YDI 

NAC 

YDI 

Dim gweithredu pellach gan y 

Pwyllgor Craffu. Gellir ei gyfeirio 

at gorff arall neu ofyn am 

adroddiad er gwybodaeth. 

Tudalen 212



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of Report Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Date Entered 
/ Updated By 

 

17 Dec 1 Housing Rent Setting & Housing 
Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2025/26 

To seek approval for the proposed 
annual rent increase for council 
housing and to approve the 
Housing Revenue Account Capital 
& Revenue Budgets for 2025/26 
and Housing Stock Business Plan 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Geoff 
Davies 

28.06.24 
KEJ 

 2 Denbighshire County Council 
Draft Local Toilet Strategy   

To approve the draft Strategy for 
Public Consultation 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Paul 
Jackson/Hayley 
Jones 

14.10.24 
KEJ 

 3 Housing Support Grant – 
Domestic Abuse Safety Unit 

To seek Cabinet approval to award 
the contract for the new service 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Ann Lloyd / 
Nigel Jones / Alison 
Hay 

03.09.24 
KEJ, 
rescheduled 
22.10.24 

 4 Voids Framework Contractor 
Appointment 

To inform Cabinet of the outcome 
of the recent Voids Framework, 
advise of winning bidders and then 
seek approval from Cabinet to 
award the contracts 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Mark 
Cassidy 

25.10.24 
KEJ 

 5 Queen’s Market Rhyl – 
operator/management 

To seek approval from Cabinet to 
appoint a management company 
for the Queen’s Market in Rhyl 

Yes Cllrs Jason McLellan 
and Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Emlyn 

25.10.24 
KEJ 

T
udalen 213



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of Report Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Date Entered 
/ Updated By 

Jones / Gareth 
Roberts / Russell 
Vaughan 

 6 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Council’s 
current financial position for 
2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

Standing Item 

 7 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues raised by 
Scrutiny for Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – 
Scrutiny Coordinators 

Standing Item 

       

 

21 Jan 1 North Wales Domiciliary Care 
Agreement 

Contract Award Agreement of the 
formal tender 

Yes Cllrs Elen Heaton & 
Diane King 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Nicola 
Stubbins / Ann Lloyd / 
Llinos Howatson 

17.09.24 
KEJ 

 2 Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales Annual Letter 

To provide an overview of 
Denbighshire’s summary of 
performance from the PSOW and 
actions required 

Yes Cllr Julie Matthews 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Ann Lloyd / 
Kevin Roberts 

10.09.24, 
rescheduled 
02.10.24, 
rescheduled 
22.10.24 KEJ 

 3 Corporate Joint Committee 
Governance Arrangements 

To agree the governance 
arrangements for the transfer of 
the NWEAB into the CJC 

Yes Cllr Jason McLellan 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Gary 
Williams 

26.04.24, 
rescheduled 
11.06.24, 
10.09.24, 
25.10.24 KEJ 

T
udalen 214



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of Report Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Date Entered 
/ Updated By 

 4 Updated Contract Procedure 
Rules 

To seek approval of the updated 
Contract Procedure Rules 

Yes Cllr Julie Matthews 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Karen Bellis 

12.11.24 
KEJ 

 5 Revenue Budget Setting 
2025/26 

To review and approve the budget 
proposals for forthcoming financial 
year 2025/26 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

15.05.24 
KEJ 

 6 Capital Plan 2025/26 – 2027/28 To review and approve proposals 
for inclusion in the Capital Plan 

Yes Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

15.05.24 
KEJ 

 7 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Council’s 
current financial position for 
2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

Standing Item 

 8 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues raised by 
Scrutiny for Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – 
Scrutiny Coordinators 

Standing Item 

       

 

18 Feb 1 Economic Strategy Outline of Denbighshire’s new 
Economic Strategy & Action Plan 
and request for Cabinet to approve 
the final documents. 

Yes Cllr Jason McLellan 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Emlyn 
Jones / James Evans 

27.09.24 
KEJ 

 2 Panel Performance Assessment 
Response 

To approve the Council’s 
management response to the 
Panel Performance Assessment 
Report 

Yes Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Helen 
Vaughan-Evans / 
Heidi Barton Price 

12.04.24 
KEJ, 
rescheduled 
25.10.24 KEJ 

T
udalen 215



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of Report Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Date Entered 
/ Updated By 

 3 Revenue Budget and Council 
Tax Setting 2025/26 

To review and approve the budget 
and Council Tax setting proposals 
for the forthcoming financial year 
2025/26 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

15.05.24 
KEJ 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Council’s 
current financial position for 
2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

Standing Item 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues raised by 
Scrutiny for Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – 
Scrutiny Coordinators 

Standing Item 

       

 

25 March 1 Residential Care Fees 
2025/2026 

To seek Cabinet approval for the 
setting of care home fees for the 
financial year 2025/26. 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Nicola 
Stubbins / Ann Lloyd 

25.09.24 
KEJ 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Council’s 
current financial position for 
2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

Standing Item 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues raised by 
Scrutiny for Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – 
Scrutiny Coordinators 

Standing Item 

       

 

29 April 1 Denbighshire County Council 
Local Toilet Strategy   

To approve the Local Toilet 
Strategy 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Paul 

14.10.24 
KEJ 

T
udalen 216



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of Report Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Date Entered 
/ Updated By 

Jackson/Hayley 
Jones 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Council’s 
current financial position for 
2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author Liz Thomas 

Standing Item 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues raised by 
Scrutiny for Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – 
Scrutiny Coordinators 

Standing Item 

       

 
FUTURE ITEMS 2025 
 

24 June 
2025 

Council Performance Self-
Assessment 2024 to 2025 (year-
end) 

To consider a report on the 
Performance Self-Assessment 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Helen 
Vaughan-Evans / 
Emma Horan 

03.10.24 KEJ 

18 
November 
2025 

Council Performance Self-
Assessment Update - April to 
September (QPR1&2) 2025 

To consider an update report on 
the Performance Self-Assessment 
April to September 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report 
Author – Helen 
Vaughan-Evans / 
Emma Horan 

03.10.24 KEJ 

 
Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 

 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

T
udalen 217



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan  

      

17 December 3 December 21 January 7 January 18 February 4 February 
 

Updated 19/11/2024 – KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

T
udalen 218



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and title Resolution  Progress 

26 
September 
2024 

5.  Additional Learning 
Needs Transformation 
Update 

Resolved:  subject to the above observations and 
acknowledging both the local and national challenges 
faced in meeting the statutory requirements of the 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) and Education 
Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018, to – 
(i) congratulate all stakeholders and endorse the 

work undertaken to date to deliver the 
transformation work required to comply with the 
duties placed upon them under the Act; and 

(ii) request that a further progress report be 
presented to the Committee in twelve months’ 
time when all schools and the Local Education 
Authority (LEA) are expected to be fully compliant 
with the duties placed upon them under the Act.  

 
 
Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
recommendations and a 
progress report has been listed 
on the Committee’s forward work 
programme for presentation to 
members in September 2025 
(see Appendix 1 attached). 

 6.  Promote School 
Attendance and 
Engagement in 
Education 

Resolved:  subject to the above observations – 
(i) to endorse the schools and the Local Education 

Authority’s efforts and approach to date to 
promote the importance of school attendance and 
engagement in education with both pupils and 
parents/guardians; and  

(ii) with a view to monitoring the effectiveness of the 
new template attendance policy for 2024/25 along 
with any other initiatives deployed on pupils’ 
school attendance and their engagement with 

Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
recommendations.   
A further monitoring report has 
been scheduled into the 
Committee’s forward work 
programme for presentation to 
the Committee at is September 
2025 meeting (see Appendix 1 
attached). 

T
udalen 219



education, to request that a further progress report 
be presented to members in twelve months’ time. 

 7.  Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan 
Transformation 

Resolved:  subject to the above comments – 
(i) to endorse the progress achieved to date in 

delivering the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
(WESP) in all of the county’s schools in line with 
the Welsh Government’s vision for Welsh 
language provision; and  

(ii) that future monitoring of the Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan’s delivery be undertaken by the 
Welsh in Education Strategic Group on the proviso 
that if significant issues or obstacles to the Plan’s 
delivery are encountered, they are referred to 
Scrutiny for detailed examination.  

Lead Members and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
recommendations. 

 8.  Curriculum for 
Wales 

Resolved:  subject to the above observations to –  
(i) acknowledge the work undertaken to date in 

implementing and embedding the Curriculum for 
Wales in the county’s primary schools, and in 
years 7 and 8 in secondary schools, including 
identified best practices, lessons learnt and areas 
for improvement for the continuing staggered roll-
out of the Curriculum in the secondary education 
sector; and  

(ii) request that a further progress and evaluation 
report on the Curriculum’s implementation be 
submitted to the Committee in September 2026 
following the introduction of Wave 1 of the new 
GCSE qualifications.   

Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
decision. 
 
A progress and evaluation report 
has been scheduled for 
presentation to the Committee in 
September 2026 (see Appendix 
1 attached). 

 

T
udalen 220


	Rhaglen
	2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT
	4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF
	5 ADRODDIAD AR Y GOFRESTR RISGIAU CORFFORAETHOL
	Corporate Risk Register Review Report 281124 - App 1
	Corporate Risk Register Review Report 281124 - App 2
	Corporate Risk Register Review Report 281124 - App 3
	Corporate Risk Register Review Report 281124 - App 4

	6 CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL
	Corporate Plan Performance Update Report Q1 & 2 2024-25 - App 1

	7 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU
	Performance FWP - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report - App 2 Eng
	Work Programme Report 281124  - App 3
	Work Programme Report 281124  - App 4


